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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is the
largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacturer in China. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of high-end
knitwear on an OEM basis. The Group was also the knitwear
garment manufacturing enterprise with the largest exporting
amount of knitwear and ranked first among PRC garment exporting
enterprises according to the 2015 report on the development
of China’s home textile trade in the garment industry and the
2015/2016 report on China’s foreign trade in textiles and garment.

The Group’s production base is located in Economic Technical
Development Zone of Ningbo and Vietnam, and the Group has
strategically set up garment factories in Quzhou and Anging of
China and Cambodia. The Group also established sales offices
or representative offices in Shanghai, Hong Kong and Osaka.
The Group currently has over 74,600 employees. The area of
the factories is over 3,890,000 sg.m. and floor area covers over
3,000,000 sqg.m., which can produce various knitwear of over 310
million pieces every year.

The Group focuses on producing sports wear, casual wear and
lingerie wear for major international renowned clients including
UNIQLO, ADIDAS, NIKE, and PUMA. The production market is also
gradually expanding from Japan to Asia Pacific, Europe and the US.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2005 with an aim to
be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer in the world. The
stock code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou International was
included in Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang Seng Composite
Industry Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang Seng Composite
MiddleCap Index, all effective from 8 March 2010. In June 2014,
Shenzhou International issued convertible bonds of HK$3.9
billion in Hong Kong, of which the code is 5762. Meanwhile,
Shenzhou International has been included in Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index Series since September 2015. Shenzhou
International has also been included in MSCI Index since June 1
2013..

From the year of 2010 to the year of 2015, Shenzhou International
has been named in the “Top 1000 Asian Companies” List of Yazhou
Zhoukan and during the year of 2010, it was recognised by Forbes
Asia as one of the “Best Under A Billion” Companies. Shenzhou
International was selected by Finet and QQ.COM as one of the “Top
100 HK Listed Companies” in 2012, 2015 and 2016. In addition,
Shenzhou International was recognized as the one of the “2015
Best Listed Company in Corporate Governance” by Ta Kung Pao
in November 2015. At the same time, Shenzhou International was
awarded “The Largest Capitalization Private Company Award” in
Mainland Enterprises Listed in Hong Kong Ranking in 2014-2015 by
Yazhou Zhoukan in 2015. During this year, Shenzhou International
was awarded “ENTERPRISE AWARD 2016” in the DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Awards 2016.
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Financial Highlights

BERFETENKESR

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST
FIVE YEARS

HE+t-A=t+-ALEE/R+=A=+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E-XE —Z-0% —Z-mE =% 3
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
TERKER Key Financial Information
(AR®T ) (RMB’000)
HER Sales 15,099,076 12,639,332 11,131,532 10,047,217 8,937,578
B B 45 35 A1 FIB Profit before income tax 3,642,947 2,886,901 2,543,347 2,201,209 2,005,465
FEFE Profit for the year 2,947,680 2,354,842 2,066,630 1,803,912 1,621,480
RPFEREEA Profit attributable to equity
45 7 owners of the Company 2,947,673 2,354,664 2,065,867 1,802,989 1,620,158
FRBEE Non-current assets 8,980,567 7,450,113 5,633,884 4,324,581 3,967,507
MBEE Current assets 12,835,495 10,911,501 10,309,144 6,992,693 5,927,902
nBEE Current liabilities 3,004,482 2,154,769 1,265,177 985,617 1,773,275
REBEEFE Net current assets 9,741,013 8,756,732 9,043,967 6,007,076 4,154,627
BEE Total assets 21,816,062 18,361,614 15,943,028 11,317,274 9,895,409
BEERTDARE Total assets less current liabilities 18,721,580 16,206,845 14,677,851 10,331,657 8,122,134
FEL Total equity 15,309,602 13,089,836 11,811,326 10,331,657 8,122,134
RekReEED Cash and cash equivalents 2,105,184 1,815,678 1,428,074 2,609,050 2,144,405
TEMBLE Key Financial ratios
EME %) Gross profit margin (%) 32,5 305 29.0 28.3 285
FFIEE (%) Net profit margin (%) 19.5 18.6 18.6 18.0 18.1
FEARBELE %) Net gearing ratio (%) 16.6 15.0 12,6 THEBN/A THEBN/A
B E Current ratio 4.1 5.1 8.1 74 3.3
YRRz BEE (8) Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 56 53 49 50 55
FEZBEEH(A) Inventory turnover period (days) 124 121 116 110 11
B3 - Note:
1. FEAEBEBHRZFEABEE (BTEZR 1. Net gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings (bank
AR ESR) IR RE RS EYHEE loans plus convertible bonds), less cash and cash equivalents and total
BRI equity.
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Financial Highlights

REMBRIMNEAREHEER

ANALYSIS OF SALES OF THE GROUP BY

PRODUCTS
BET-A=t+-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-5E “Z-n% —EF-mF —%-=% —F--f

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ARBT T % ARETn % ARETR % ARETR % ARETR %
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB’'000 %

RER By products
EFE Sports wear 9,815,537 65.0 8,028,054 63.5 6,830,432 61.4 5,561,070 55.4 4,994,455 55.9
REE Casual wear 3,886,024 25.7 3,476,499 27.5 2,724,394 24.5 2,872,104 28.6 2,993,648 33.5
AKE Lingerie wear 1,293,111 8.6 1,022,233 8.1 1,462,274 13.0 1,378,932 13.7 701,766 7.8
HiHtim Other knitting 104,404 0.7 112,546 0.9 124,432 11 235,111 2.3 247,709 2.8
HERE Total sales 15,099,076  100.0 12,639,332 100.0 11,131,532 100.0 10,047,217 100.0 8,937,578  100.0
0.7%
8.6% 2 8.1% 0.9% 13% 1.1%
24.5%

65.0%

55.4%

o {KE%E Casual

2.3%
13.7%

EB)#F Sports

63.5%
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BhmeomoiNAREEER

ANALYSIS OF SALES OF THE GROUP BY

REGIONAL DISTRIBUTION OF MARKET

BET-A=t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
ZE-RE 2% —Z-mF —2-=f —E-f
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

AR®ETR % ARBTRL % ARETR % ARETR % ARETR %

RMBOOD %  RMBOOO %  AMBOOD %  RMBOOO %  AMBOOO %
ks By market regions
HRHEE International sales

il Europe 3,355,516 22.2 2,319,860 18.4 1,929,613 173 1,744,070 17.4 1,849,436 20.7

=k Japan 3,003,735 19.9 2,859,692 22.6 3,081,139 21.7 3,392,580 33.8 2,805,902 31.4

E3E us 1,548,387 10.3 1,588,689 12.6 1,300,040 117 900,013 8.9 727,913 8.1

it Others 3,501,563 23.2 2,875,548 22.7 2,333,311 21.0 2,101,090 20.9 1,778,979 19.9

AHE Domestic sales 3,689,875 244 2,995,543 23.7 2,487,429 22.3 1,909,464 19.0 1,775,348 19.9

HEBE Total sales 15,099,076 100.0 12,639,332 100.0 11,131,632 100.0 10,047,217 100.0 8,937,578 100.0

24.4% 23.7% 22.3%
27.7%

23.2%

12.6%

19.0%
33.8%

20.9%

17.4% 8.9%

O B85 Domestic Sales o HAth™45 Others

31.4%

22.7%

20.7%

17.3%

19.9%

8.1%

o %[ US o BN Europe

21.0%

11.7%

H 7K Japan
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(RZZE—EF=A=++tB ([&EEEATAL])) (asat 27 March 2017 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

A EE

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

R ER CHINESE NAME

RO B B SR B HE i B BR A A FRNBEBREBIER AR A A
EES BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HITES Executive Directors

BREEE (/) Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)
E@AMELAE Mr. Huang Guanlin

BEMmEE Mr. Ma Renhe

B4 5 2+ Ms. Zheng Miaohui

(R—T—tF—A—HEE)
EFREE

(resigned on 1 January 2017)
Mr. Wang Cunbo

BRE %+ Ms. Chen Zhifen

BIKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

PRAR FE o & Mr. Chen Genxiang
(R=ZE—+tF—F—HET) (resigned on 1 January 2017)

B JIB 5 £ Mr. Chen Xu

BEMEE Mr. Jiang Xianpin

EEBRESE Mr. Qiu Weiguo

NEWE COMPANY SECRETARY

PR 128 L 5 A Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji

REAXR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

B gL+ Ms. Zheng Miaohui
(RZF—tF—A—HEMT) (resigned on 1 January 2017)

FREEEE Mr. Wang Cunbo

(R=—F—tF—A—BEZE)
PR 18 B 55 A

(appointed on 1 January 2017)
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji

EEgTEZET KEY BOARD COMMITTEES

EREE® Audit Committee

BERLE (FE) Mr. Jiang Xianpin (Chairman)

PRARTE L A4 Mr. Chen Genxiang
(RZZF—+tF—A—HEMT) (resigned on 1 January 2017)

BRB5E A& Mr. Chen Xu

EEBRESE Mr. Qiu Weiguo

FHEER Remuneration Committee

BRIBSEAE (/) Mr. Chen Xu (Chairman)
(R=ZZ—+&—F—HEZMT) (appointed on 1 January 2017)

PRARKE S (/) Mr. Chen Genxiang (Chairman)

(R—TB—+F—F—HEE)
B meE

(resigned on 1 January 2017)
Mr. Ma Renhe

BEBREE Mr. Jiang Xianpin

REZEE Nomination Committee
BREEE (F/F) Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)
BEBEREE Mr. Jiang Xianpin

EEBEE Mr. Qiu Weiguo
AMMREE REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

FR M B £ @42 fR A BR A 8] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



ANEER
Corporate Information
(RZE—+tF=A=Z+tB ([ &REERA{TEE]))

EREEMEY
S XEaChi
BERES
271#2708%F

FETEm
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e

R

IR BIR R AN E A
BEAERMERAT
XERMEBRT

ROBFETHRE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

ROBFELEERIE

BEAFTREBHREBLERRA A
BBET
ERRER183%R

A AR
17181712-1716%F

FEFRET
FEIRT (BB BRRAA
FERITRGD BRA A
RBWITRD BR A A
BRRITROBRA A
FEREEZRRITROBEAF
FERITIRHDER DA
FEIRTT (BB BR AR
PR RIRITRODBRAF
BEERITERAA
FETERTROBRAF
FEBERERRITRMHBERRA A
BITRIT (BB BRAA
BB LBELRITERAR
REEREEBERER
iPREE N

A B 483k

www.shenzhouintl.com

R 42 4 5%

2313

GR35k

5762

(as at 27 March 2017 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2708, 27th Floor

Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS
Allen & Overy

Lennon & Lawyers
Morrison & Foerster

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Bank of Ningbo Company Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Everbright Bank Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER

iPR Ogilvy Limited
COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com

STOCK CODE
2218

CONVERTIBLE BOND CODE
5762
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The Largest vertically-integrated
knitwear manufacturer in China
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Chairman’s Statement
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FooRINER Z DRI ERME

#E 2 3 [FChairman of the Board
B # % Ma Jianrong

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”)
of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| hereby am pleased to announce the annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together as the “Group”) for 2016 for your kind
review.

In 2016, textile and apparel industry was confronted with a bigger
challenge. Exports of textile and apparel products of China to
Europe, United States and Japan (top three largest markets)
decreased. In particular, exports to United States dropped for the
first time in the past twenty years. The upward trend of domestic
consumption also declined markedly. A decrease in market demand,
an increase in labor costs and stricter environmental protection
requirements and other factors added a lot of pressure to the
development of the industry. Historically, the low cost of resources
was a major advantage of textile and apparel industry in China.
However, as China’s economy booms, the cost factor has become a
weakness of the industry. Many small and medium-sized enterprises
that are not strong enough to sustain the pressure from the changes
in demands and costs had to pull out of the market, resulting in a
higher market concentration ratio. Leading enterprises in the industry
are speeding up their transformations and upgrades. Technical
innovation, delicacy management, application of informatisation and
automation technologies are what leading enterprises in the industry
are working on. Successfully transformed enterprises are going to
enjoy new development opportunities.

FR M B £ @42 fR A BR A 8] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
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The Group has continued to set up new factories abroad during the
year, and the improvement of our production capacity and operating
results are impressive. Manufacturing bases in Mainland China
are becoming more efficient, effectively offsetting the pressure of
increasing cost. We always put customers’ interest in the first place,
and try to offer better and more compressive service to customers.
Our efforts on the management for lean production has effectively
lowered our costs. Thanks to everyone’s efforts, the Group has
managed to perform well even in this difficult industry environment.
Sales revenue and operating results increased ideally. | hereby hope
that investors will appreciate the Group’s achievement and continue
to support the business development strategies of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s sales
revenue and results continued to grow ideally. The annual sales
was RMB15,099,076,000, representing an increase of 19.5%
as compared to 2015. The profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company increased from RMB2,354,664,000 in 2015 to
RMB2,947,673,000 in 2016, representing an increase of 25.2%.
Earnings per share was RMB2.11. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents totalled RMB2,105,184,000.

Given that the Group has excellent results and strong financial
position, the Board of the Company proposes to declare a final
dividend of HK$1.20 per share (including a special dividend of
HK$0.35), which equals to approximately RMB1.07 per share.

According to the statistics of China Customs, exports of textile
and apparel products of China dropped for two consecutive years.
Our industry is losing its advantages over others, due to rising
labor costs, heavy taxes and changing trade environment. China’s
rapidly aging population has led to a shrinking labor force and
as the economy grows, the level of remuneration rises as well.
Manufacturing industry which is labor intensive will be confronted
with a rising labor costs for a long time. In addition, many other
developing countries are setting lower tax rates than that of China
to attract foreign investment. Apparel industry is more likely to have
a favourable tax rate from governments because the industry can
create jobs, stimulate exports and obtain foreign exchange. Some
developed economies are paying more attention to its manufacturing
industry for the purpose of boosting their economies. For instance,
the United States plans to recover manufacturing industry by
lowering taxes. Meanwhile, the Government of China pays attention

Annual Report 2016 4 5
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Chairman’s Statement
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to lowering taxes for enterprises. In May 2016, Business Tax was
replaced by Value-Added Tax, helping to relieve the tax burden on
enterprises. The Government is also cancelling inappropriate types
of charge for enterprises. However, China still has a less favourable
tax rate for apparel industry than those of other countries. In terms
of trading environment, the major import markets (e.g., EU, US and
Japan) for apparel have imposed differential duties against China and
some underdeveloped countries, resulting in higher importers’ costs
of procuring products from enterprises in China. Although the United
States has announced to pull out of TPP, this does not mean that the
pressure on exports of China’s apparel products is reduced. It is still
uncertain what kind of trade policy with China the new government
of the United States is going to adopt.

The operational difficulties in this industry are stimulating its
transformation. Under the circumstances, enterprises should make
the most out of what they have already got and be ambitious
about enterprise development. The knitwear industry in China has
a stronger foundation than those of other countries. Lots of talents
have come to this industry during the past years of development.
Enterprises should do their best in innovation. For a long-
term sustainable enterprise development, we should coordinate
population, resources, environment etc. The Government of China
are working on its supply-side structural reform. Some weak and
outdated enterprises will be shut down for an orderly development.
Cross-border transfer of industry will lead to the increase in the
manufacturing costs in receiving countries. China’s market has
the greatest growth potential in the world. Our industry also has
a bright future in domestic market. Enterprises should work on
reducing costs, offering better products and being innovative to
boost consumption. During the industrial transformation, the textile
and apparel industry is likely to create more advantages over other
industries.

The Company continued to provide each professional committee
of the Company with all-rounded support in the past year. The
Board and every committee cooperated closely and communicated
effectively with each other. The results of all the projects that we
worked on were impressive. Members of the Company are in pursuit
of excellent corporate governance and a fair and square decision
making process. We are maintaining a transparent administration to
provide all shareholders and stakeholders with an open channel to
communicate.

FR M B £ @42 fR A BR A 8] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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| appreciate every director’s great efforts over the past year. | also
would like to thank management personnel and other staff members
for their attentiveness to duties. Thanks to everyone’s dedication, the
Group managed to achieve an impressive growth in such an adverse
operational environment. Operating an enterprise is like a boat
sailing against the current. | hope that management personnel take
what we have already achieved as a beginning and forge ahead. We
should also stick to the principle of “innovation breeds evolution, and
quality always comes first”, aiming to be stronger and contribute to
the sustainable development of our enterprise! | would like to thank
each shareholder, customer and supplier for their lasting trust in the
Company. | hope their ongoing support will continue into the future.

In terms of the strategies for future operation, we will continue to
develop the Group with the concept of “Innovation and Compliance”
in mind. We will also recruit more talents and improve our trainings.
The informatisation of our enterprise management will be brought to
the next level for better management efficiency and better judgment.
The automation level of our production will be enhanced to create
more comfortable working conditions for our staff and lower the
skill requirement for junior personnel. We never stop optimising
our production management, aiming at offering better and greener
products while reducing costs.

The Group will spare no efforts in innovating and evolving. Offering
better and more comprehensive services to our customers is what
we are always after. We also want to sharpen our competitive edges
in the industry, expand the size of our enterprise and increase our
revenue at an ideal pace, aiming at offering shareholders a better
return on investment.

Ma Jianrong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2016, the recovery of global economy was slow amid the weak
demand of overseas market as the growth of domestic market also
significantly slowed down amid the increasing demand for upgrading
of the consumer structure and the transformation of the traditional
mode of production of the industry becoming more urgent. With the
increase in production costs and the disappearance of demographic
dividend, the competitive advantage of the textile and apparel
industry of China became weaker and the industry further shifted to
countries with lower costs. Competitive enterprises in the industry
speeded up structural adjustment and transformation and upgrade
as they pushed forward consolidation of the domestic industry
while small and medium sized enterprises lacking competitiveness
gradually quitted. As the Chinese government pushed forward the
supply side reform and increased the environmental requirements of
enterprises, the costs of environmental protection increased, with the
prices of dyes, cartons and other raw materials also increased as a
result.

According to the statistics compiled by China Customs, the total
export value of Chinese textile and garment products (including
textile yarns, fabrics and finished products as well as garments
and apparel accessories, referred the same as below) in 2016
was US$262.44 billion, representing a decrease of approximately
7.5% year-on-year. Out of the total export value, the export value
of textile products amounted to US$104.99 billion, representing
a drop of approximately 4.1% year-on-year; the garment export
value amounted to US$157.46 billion, down by approximately
9.6% year-on-year, of which the knitwear export value accounted
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for US$66.26 billion, decreased by approximately 10.2% year-on-
year. The export value of textile and garment products had declined
for two consecutive years and the drop of garment export value
remained greater than that of textile, while the knitwear export value
had declined for three consecutive years. In 2016 the three major
importers, namely the EU, the US and Japan, together accounted
for 43.0% (2015: 43.2%) of China’s total export value of textile and
apparel products, of which exports to the EU decreased by 6.8%
year-on-year to US$49.5 billion; exports to the US dropped by 5.7%
year-on-year to US$45.02 billion; and exports to Japan dropped by
6.1% vyear-on-year to US$20.33 billion. The decline in the export
value of the major overseas markets at the same time was rare in
the past. Meanwhile, the percentage of Chinese apparel products in
major import markets has been declining, reflecting the weakened
competitive advantage of China’s textile and apparel products in the
overseas market. In addition, exports to ASEAN countries dropped
by 6.9% to US$33.36 billion, of which textile export amounted to
US$24.12 billion, representing an increase of 1.9% year-on-year and
the increase dropped 4.6 percentage points year-on-year. Although
ASEAN countries currently still mainly rely on textile raw materials
from China, foreign industrial capital including mainly China shifted
the production base of textile and garment to South East Asia
countries in recent years, promoting the gradual improvement of raw
materials of the garment industry of ASEAN countries.

In 2016, the top five coastal provinces in terms of textile and
garment export value together accounted for 75.1% (2015: 73.7%)
of the total export value of China, representing an increase of 1.4
percentage point over the previous year. The export value of Zhejiang
Province decreased by 5.9% over the previous year to US$64.66
billion, and that of Guangdong Province decreased by 3.4% over
the previous year to US$50.43 billion. The export value of Jiangsu
Province amounted to US$43.81 billion, down by 0.6% over the
previous year, and those of Fujian Province and Shandong Province
were US$21.01 billion and US$20.89 billion, down by 8.2% and
1.8% over the previous year respectively. The export of all the top
five coastal provinces declined, which was the first time since the
financial crisis in 2009 while the proportion of their combined export
value to the national export value increased for two consecutive
years, reflecting the development of textile and garment industry
remained competitive compared to central and western areas.

According to statistics released by the General Administration of
Customs of China, the total import and export value of China’s
foreign trade in 2016 was US$3,684.93 billion, decreased by
6.8% over 2015 and declined for two consecutive years. The total
export value and the total import value were US$2,097.44 billion
and US$1,587.48 billion respectively, down by 7.7% and 5.5%
respectively as compared to 2015. During the year, China’s import
and export trade surplus amounted to US$509.96 billion, decreased
by US$84.54 billion as compared to the US$594.5 billion reported
in 2015, representing a decline of 14.2%. According to statistics
released by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, as of 31
December 2016, the country’s foreign exchange reserves amounted
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to US$3,010.52 billion, representing a decrease of US$319.84
billion as compared to the end of last year. According to information
released by the Ministry of Commerce of China, the Chinese non-
financial outbound direct investment amounted to US$170.11 billion,
representing a growth of 44.1% vyear-on-year, of which US$31.06
billion flowed to manufacturing industry, representing a growth of
116.7% year-on-year. The rapid increase in costs and the limited
supply of resources promoted the industrial investment overseas of
Chinese enterprises.

According to the primary statistics from the General Department of
Vietnam Customs, the export value of Vietnam'’s textile industry was
about US$26.77 billion in 2016, representing an increase of 5.6%
over the previous year. The export value of textile and garment was
about US$23.84 billion, representing an increase of 4.6% over the
previous year; while the export value of yarn increased 15.3% year-
on-year to about US$2.93 billion. Vietnam’s textiles and garments
were mainly exported to the US, Japan and South Korea, with
export values of US$11.45 billion, US$2.90 billion and US$2.28
billion, respectively, representing growth rates of 4.5%, 4.1% and
7.4% respectively over 2015; Vietnam’s yarns were exported mainly
to China, with export value increasing by 20.9% to approximately
US$1.65 billion over the last year. According to the data compiled by
China Customs, the textile export from China to Vietnam decreased
by approximately 3.8% to approximately US$10.00 billion in 2016, of
which fabrics export was approximately US$7.76 billion, representing
a drop of approximately 4.9% over the previous year, and accounted
for approximately 14.7% of China’s total fabrics export. On 23
January 2017, the US president Donald Trump signed an executive
order at the White House announcing that the US had officially
withdrawn from the Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPP). As
the US is Vietnam’s largest garment export market, the withdrawal
of the US from the TPP changed the expected rapid growth of
Vietnamese clothing products export to US and would also affect
the industrial investment scale and progress of foreign enterprises in
Vietnam. In the short term, due to the withdrawal of the US from the
TPP, Vietnam’s impact on the export of China garment products will
be reduced and the future real impact would depend on whether US
and Vietnam would reach a bilateral trade agreement and whether
US would adopt differentiated trade policies for China and Vietnam.
In addition, Vietnam’s incentive policy for foreign investment and
labor costs are more competitive than China.

During the year, the exchange rate of RMB against US dollar
depreciated by approximately 6.4% at the middle rate, representing
depreciation of the exchange rate for three consecutive years.
According to the forward exchange rate of RMB against US dollar
in the financial market, RMB is expected to continue its downward
trend against US dollar. The exchange rate of RMB against Euro
and Japanese yen depreciated by approximately 2.9% and 9.6% at
the middle rate respectively. From the RMB exchange rate regime
reforms in 2005 to the end of 2016, the cumulative appreciation
in the exchange rate of RMB against the Euro and Japanese yen
are approximately 37.1% and 22.6% respectively. The moderate
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depreciation of Renminbi against major currencies would be
beneficial to reducing the export pressure of Chinese textile and
garment enterprises.

In 2016, the gross domestic product (“GDP”) of Mainland China
grew by 6.7% over the previous year to about RMB74.4 trillion. The
economic growth was relatively stable. According to the statistics
bulletin announced by the National Bureau of Statistics of China,
at the end of 2016, the population aged between 16 and 59 in
Mainland China was 907.47 million, reduced by 3.49 million as
compared to 2015; while the population aged 60 and above was
230.86 million, increased by 8.86 million as compared to last year.
The aging population is becoming serious. The size of labor force
continued to decrease while the ageing population continued to
increase, which would bring great challenges to the economic
and social development in China. The manufacturing industry of
China would face the long-term serious impact of the problem of
population age structure and the improvement in the automation
of the manufacturing industry had become an important factor in
guaranteeing the competitiveness of the industry.

According to the information released by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, China’s cotton cultivation area in 2016 was 3.38
million hectares, decreased by 0.42 million hectares as compared
to the previous year, representing a decrease of approximately
11%. Cotton production output for the year was 5.34 million tons,
representing a drop of 260,000 tons or 4.6% over the previous
year. The cultivation area for cotton in China had declined for five
consecutive years. According to the information released by the
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) in February 2017,
the world’s cotton production output in 2016/17 is estimated to
be about 22.95 million tons, representing an increase of about
1.95 million tons, or about 9.3%, as compared to 2015/16. The
global cotton consumption in 2016/17 is about 24.50 million
tons, representing an increase of 280,000 tons, or about 1.1%,
when compared to 24.22 million tons in 2015/16. The world’s
cotton carryover inventory stocks amounted to 19.57 million tons,
representing a decrease of about 7% when compared to the
previous year. Inventory consumption ratio was about 80%. The
cotton inventory in China is estimated to be about 10.64 million
tons, accounting for about 54% of the global stock. China’s
cotton consumption accounts for about 32% of the world’s total
consumption and cotton import accounts for about 13% of the
world’s total import. The global cotton inventory continued to
decline, however, affected by the sale of State cotton reserve by
the Chinese Government, it is expected that the market supply
of domestic cotton would remain sufficient in 2017 while the
uncertainty of the quality of State cotton reserve would have certain
impact on the market supply and demand. As the current total global
cotton consumption was higher than the total production, the global
cotton reserve would further decrease and the market price of cotton
of China remained lower than the cost of planting. As the global
cotton reserve further decreased, further increase in cotton price still
existed.
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In 2016, the consumer price index rose by 2.0% as compared to
2015, the growth increased 0.6 percentage point year-on-year.
The drop of producer price for manufactured goods narrowed
significantly, with the decrease of 1.4% year-on-year in 2016, the
decline dropped by 3.8 percentage points as compared to last
year and was the smallest since 2012. During the year, the drop in
China’s foreign-exchange reserves decreased RMB in the market.
To keep the liquidity of the banking system, People ‘s Bank of
China cut the Renminbi deposit reserve ratio of financial institutions
in general by 0.5 percentage point in March 2016. In addition,
People ‘s Bank of China adjusted the liquidity of the market and
guided market interest rates by financial instruments such as
convenience of middle-term and standing lending facility as well as
reverse repurchase. The current growth of the real economy has not
significantly improved and it is expected that the People’s Bank of
China would not shrink the liquidity of the market. The interest rates
hike of US dollar had reduced the room of lowering the interest rates
of RMB. If the deposit reserve ratio did not further decline or decline
slightly, the chance of lowering financing costs of the real economy
would be smaller.

Problems such as ageing population, rise of environmental costs and
limited supply of resources would continue to affect the development
of Chinese textile and garment industry. Enhancing production
automation and pursuing sustainable development model is the
inevitable direction for the transformation of the industry. In addition,
enterprises also need to focus on changes in consumers’ increasing
demands and provide consumers with stylish, personalized, eco-
friendly quality products by continuous innovation of products
and promote consumers’ demands by supply side reform of
products. The withdrawal of US from TPP did not imply that the
export pressure of China’s garment products would be reduced.
Significant uncertainty remained with the trade policy of the new US
government and enterprises still need to prevent risks in layout of
production base and market diversification.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The challenging business environment faced by the whole industry
is also a great challenge for the Group. Enterprises only have
the opportunity to further develop with continuous innovation.
In 2016, the Group continued to expand the scale of overseas
production bases and the production efficiency of the Group is
increased by detailed management and application of automation
equipment. Products delivery time is shortened by according priority
to customers’ demands while control of cost of expenditure is
In 2016,
the revenue and profit attributable to equity holders of the Group

enhanced by deepening lean production management.

increased by 19.5% and 25.2% respectively over 2015, breaking
historical results of the Group again.

Expand the scale of overseas bases

As the Phase Il project of fabric plants commenced production
in Vietnam during the year, production capacity had increased
significantly, effectively guaranteeing the growth of the Group’s
production capacity and results. In addition to supplying the
demands for fabric from garment factories in Vietnam and
Cambodia, it also met certain shortage in fabric of domestic garment
factories in Mainland China. In addition, satisfactory progress was
made in the performance of production management and the
connection with businesses of the base in Mainland China became
smoother. Through training and retention of relevant personnel,
preparation for further expansion of the production capacity of fabric
was completed in terms of management and technical capacity. After
construction of the garment factory in Vietham was completed at
the beginning of the year, staff recruitment progressed according to
plan and production efficiency also steadily increased with products
and services being provided to all core clients of the Group. With the
increase in staff size and production efficiency, the garment factory
in Vietnam will play an important role in the further growth of the
Group. In late 2016, the Group also completed the construction of
the special fabrics project in Vietham and the installation of some of
its equipment, and will provide clients with the production of relevant
products.
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Improve the efficiency of garment production

The intensified aging trend of China’s population brought cost
pressures and recruitment difficulties to manufacturing enterprises.
The Group devoted efforts to continuously improving the production
efficiency of enterprises for coping with rising labor costs and
reducing the workload of employees, laying a solid foundation for
the long-term development of production bases in Mainland China.
During the year, the Group made the use of production capacity
more balanced by measures such as application of automation
equipment, development of production mold, optimization of job flow
and improvement of planned control. We will strengthen our care of
employees by continuous improvement of their working and living
environment. Significant increase in production efficiency is achieved,
especially in the labor-intensive garment process, effectively reducing
the pressure of rising costs.

Improve customer service

Improvement of the capabilities of providing all-round customer
service is the most important foundation of continuous development
of the Group. In recent years, the intensive capital expenditure of
the Group guaranteed meeting the demand for production capacity
arising from growing orders from our core clients as well as laying
the foundation for the future development of the Group. The
Group overcame the pressure of management and, in a relatively
short period of time, has enabled overseas factories to achieve
the desired scale and performance of production and better meet
clients’ demands for purchase in different markets. In particular, the
guarantee provided by fabric plants in Vietham for raw materials
required by garment factories in Cambodia had shortened the
production and delivery time for clients to satisfy purchase orders
from the European Union market while products exported by
Vietnamese garment factories had saved tariff costs for clients to
satisfy purchase orders from the Japanese market. Despite the
pressure on production scheduling and manufacturing costs, the
Group met the demands for short delivery orders from core clients
by internal detailed management. During the year, the Group
also achieved good results in products development. Provision of
better new products for clients is an important component of the
capabilities of providing customer service by the Group.
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Strengthen the control of cost expenditure

During the year, the Group strengthened the control of cost
expenditure, promoted the effective use of materials through detailed
management of materials and strengthened the ability in matching
product design of clients. The use of DFM (Design-Focused
Manufacturing) concept had optimized the technique of products
production; enhancing RFT (Rightness of First Time) percentage of
products in various production segments had reduced the cost of
correction; promotion and improvement of TPM (Total Production
and Maintenance) management model had increased integrated
efficiency of equipment while reducing material wastage arising from
scraping. The Group had set relevant assessment targets for each
production department and achieved the desired results of cost
control through participation and efforts of all staff.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenues

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
approximately RMB15,099,076,000, representing an increase
of RMB2,459,744,000 or about 19.5% when compared to
RMB12,639,332,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
increase in revenue was mainly due to: (1) the increase in production
efficiency of the garment plants in Mainland China; (2) the expansion
in productivity of the factories in Vietnam; and (3) satisfactory
revenue growth in sportswear.

UTAREB -_ZT—XFER_Z—AHFE The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2016 and 2015 by
RERBNODNHHEERLER: product categories is as follows:
BEZ+-HA=1+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-RE —T—RF -4l
2016 2015 Change
ARBT R % ARETIT % ARETFIT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
% E o By products
EBE Sports wear 9,815,537 65.0 8,028,054 63.5 1,787,483 22.3
NGRS Casual wear 3,886,024 25.7 3,476,499 27.5 409,525 11.8
N 1K 8 Lingerie wear 1,293,111 8.6 1,022,233 8.1 270,878 26.5
E b5 Other knitting 104,404 0.7 112,546 0.9 (8,142) (7.2)
HE A Total revenue 15,099,076 100.0 12,639,332 100.0 2,459,744 19.5

Annual Report 2016 4 5

23



24

BEEENWE DM

Management Discussion and Analysis

BE_Z—XR"F+-_A=+—BULEE &
BfEEm HERRL /A ARM9,815,5637,000
TREEZE-AFTA=T—HIHF
&2 E R4 AR #8,028,054,0007T + 141
T AR #1,787,483,0007T © #iE £22.3% °
BEYHEEMCHEERIZRGEFELER
BUNTISMPBRAEM S CREFTRK EAR
EFEMMER 2 HIEM-

KRABEMCHEEEHBEE_T—hFd+=
A=+—HIFEK ARMS,476,499,000
T EAEEE-ZT-XR"F+=ZA=+—H
IEFE R AR ES,886,024,0007C 0T A
R #409,525,0007T ' B 18 B 411.8% ' £ 2
HABEAENSG EEMSENREEERZ
RERRBZE R LF-

AXEERZHEEEREE-T—RAF =
A=+—HIEFE/ AEK%1,022,233,000
T FAEREE-_E—XF+-_A=+—H
IEFE/HARE1,293,111,0007C 0T A
K #270,878,0007T ' G 18 & 4926.5% ' £
HBAATS 2 AXKER RKIRELRATE -

NTIRAEE _ZT-—RFER-_ZT—RHFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from sale of
sportswear amounted to approximately RMB9,815,537,000,
representing an increase of RMB1,787,483,000 or 22.3% from
approximately RMB8,028,054,000 for the year ended 31 December
2015. The increase in revenue from sales of sportswear was mainly
attributable to the increase in demands of international brands in the
Europe and garment in the Mainland China, as well as increase in

demands of sportswear fabric.

Revenue from sale of casual wear increased from
RMB3,476,499,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB3,886,024,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016,
representing an increase of RMB409,5625,000 or approximately
11.8%, which was mainly attributable to the increase in demand for
purchase of casual wear in Mainland China, Taiwan and Southeast
Asia.

Revenue from sale of lingerie products increased from
RMB1,022,233,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB1,2983,111,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016,
representing an increase of RMB270,878,000 or approximately
26.5%, which was mainly attributable to the increase in demand for
purchase of lingerie resumed in Japan.

The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2016 and 2015 by

Em5Els 2 HERELER: market regions is as follows:
BE+t-A=t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-RE —hF #E
2016 2015 Change
ARET T % ARETFT % ARETT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
'mis By market regions
B Europe 3,355,516 222  2319,860 18.4 1,035,656 44.6
HA Japan 3,003,735 19.9 2,859,692 22.6 144,043 5.0
x Us 1,548,387 10.3 1,588,689 12.6 (40,302) (2.5)
Hip Others 3,501,563 23.2 2,875,548 22.7 626,015 21.8
BIpR $H & /N et Sub-total for
international sales 11,409,201 75.6 9,643,789 76.3 1,765,412 18.3
A & Domestic sales 3,689,875 24.4 2,995,543 23.7 694,332 23.2
HE B Total revenue 15,099,076 100.0 12,639,332 100.0 2,459,744 19.5
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The Group’s revenue from the European market for the year ended
31 December 2016 amounted to approximately RMB3,355,516,000,
representing an increase of RMB1,035,656,000 or approximately
44.6% from approximately RMB2,319,860,000 for the year ended
31 December 2015. During the year, the Group’s revenue from
the European market surpassed the Japanese market for the first
time, which was mainly attributable to the increase in demands for
purchase of sportswear in Europe and the increase in productivity of
the Group’s overseas production bases.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s revenue from
the Japanese market was approximately RMB3,003,735,000,
representing an increase of RMB144,043,000 or approximately 5.0%
as compared to approximately RMB2,859,692,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2015. It was mainly attributable to the increase
in demand for purchase of lingerie wear resumed in Japan.

The Group’s revenue from the US market for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to approximately RMB1,548,387,000,
representing a decrease of RMB40,302,000 or approximately 2.5%
from RMB1,588,689,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in import demand for
garment in the US.

The Group maintained its satisfactory revenue growth in other
markets including Korea, Taiwan and Hong Kong. Revenue from
other markets for the year ended 31 December 2016 surged by
21.8% as compared with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue of the Group
from domestic market increased by 23.2% as compared with last
year, with sales of apparels in the domestic market amounting to
approximately RMB3,601,660,000, representing an increase of
RMB718,443,000 or approximately 24.9% from RMB2,883,217,000
last year. Sales growth in the domestic market was mainly from the
sales of international brand clients in the domestic market.
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Cost of sales and gross profit

The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2016 amounted to approximately RMB10,189,636,000 (2015:
RMB8,790,416,000). The Group’s gross profit margin of sales in
2016 was 32.5%, representing an increase of approximately 2.0
percentage points when compared to 30.5% in 2015. During the
year, major factors affecting the gross profit margin included: (1) the
significant increase in productivity of the Group’s production bases
in Mainland China during the year; (2) the continous optimization of
product structure; and (3) the depreciation of exchange rate of RMB
against US.

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company amounted to RMB15,092,944,000
(2015: RMB13,074,120,000), of which non-current assets, net
current assets, non-current liabilities and equity attributable
to non-controlling interests amounted to RMB8,980,567,000
(2015: RMB7,450,113,000), RMB9,741,013,000
(2015: RMB8,756,732,000), RMB3,411,978,000 (2015:
RMB3,117,009,000) and RMB216,658,000 (2015: RMB15,716,000),
respectively. The increase in equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company was mainly attributable to the increase in retained
earnings during the year.
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Liquidity and financial resources

For the year ended 31 December 2016, net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB3,061,398,000; in 2015, it was approximately
RMB2,259,107,000. Cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at
31 December 2016 was approximately RMB2,105,184,000, of which
RMB983,234,000 was denominated in RMB, RMB1,033,681,000
was denominated in US dollar, RMB35,925,000 was denominated
in Hong Kong dollar, RMB39,168,000 was denominated in Euro,
RMB12,256,000 was denominated in Viethamese dong and
the remaining balance was denominated in other currencies
(2015: RMB1,815,678,000, of which RMB1,038,440,000 was
denominated in RMB, RMB735,870,000 was denominated in US
dollar, RMB24,531,000 was denominated in Hong Kong dollar,
RMB11,510,000 was denominated in Euro, RMB4,830,000 was
denominated in Viethnamese dong and the remaining balance was
denominated in other currencies). The balance of bank borrowings
was RMB1,241,433,000 (2015: RMB656,851,000, all being short-
term bank borrowings), all being short-term bank borrowings.
The outstanding balance of the debt component of convertible
bonds was RMB3,410,145,000 (as at 31 December 2015:
RMB3,117,009,000). Net borrowings (bank borrowings and the
balance of the debt component of convertible bonds less cash and
cash equivalents) of the Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted
to RMB2,546,394,000, which increased by RMB588,212,000 as
compared to RMB1,958,182,000 as at 31 December 2015. The new
bank borrowings was mainly utilized for capital expenditure of the
Group in Vietnam and investment financial products.

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted
to RMB15,092,944,000 (2015: RMB13,074,120,000). The Group
was in a good cash flow position, with a debt to equity ratio
(total outstanding borrowings (including the balance of the debt

component of convertible bonds) as a percentage of equity
attributable to the equity holders of the Company) of 30.8% (2015:
28.9%).
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On 18 June 2014 (the “Issue Date”), the Company issued convertible
bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HK$3,900,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB3,097,380,000 if calculated at the
exchange rate of HK$1=RMB0.7942 on the Issue Date), bearing
a coupon rate of 0.5% and payable semi-annually. The maturity
date of convertible bonds is on 18 June 2019 (the “Maturity Date”),
unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased, cancelled or
otherwise provided in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The
Company will redeem the convertible bonds at 103.86% of their
principal amounts on the Maturity Date. The initial conversion price
of the bonds is HK$38.56 per share (subject to adjustment) and the
current conversion price after the adjustment on 11 June 2016 is
HK$37.50 per share (subject to further adjustment in accordance
with its terms and conditions). The maximum number of shares to
be issued upon full conversion of the convertible bonds under the
above conversion price will be 104,000,000 shares. On the Issue
Date, the initial recognition amount of RMB2,846,450,000 for the
liability component of the bonds was calculated using a market
interest rate of 3.55% for a non-convertible bond of the same class.
Equity component amount of RMB197,140,000 was credited to the
reserves of shareholders’ equity. Net proceeds from the issue of
these bonds were approximately HK$3,832,271,000, which were
fully used for business expansion of the production base in Vietnam
and for general corporate purpose for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Details of the bank borrowings and convertible bonds of the Group
are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements.

As part of the Group’s overall treasury management policy, the
Group purchased financial products (including entrusted loans
and available-for-sale investments) from licensed banks in the
PRC to maximize return on the Group’s idle cash through a legal
and low-risk channel. The applicable size test results in respect
of the purchases of these financial products are all below 5% and
thus, these purchases are not subject to the notifiable transaction
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules (as defined
below). The purchases of these financial products were approved
by an investment and lending committee established by the Board
to monitor the execution of the Company’s treasury management
policy. Details of these financial products can be found in notes 21,
22, 24 and 25 to the Financial Statements contained in this annual
report.
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Pledge of the Group’s assets

Bank borrowings of the Group in Vietnam amounted to
approximately US$55,302,000 (approximately RMB383,633,000) and
outstanding balance of letter of credit amounted to 7,777,000 Euro
and US$1,797,000 (totaling approximately RMB69,290,000) were
pledged by relevant equipments of Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd..
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the costs of the pledged
equipments was US$100,000,000 (approximately RMB693,700,000)
and its net book value was approximately US$88,337,000
(approximately RMB612,791,000).

At 31 December 2016, some of the Group’s time deposits with an
amount of RMB500,000,000 (2015: Nil) were pledged to secure
bank loans granted to the Group. The time deposits have terms of
more than one year and have fixed annual rates of return at 3.5%.

Finance costs and tax

For the year ended 31 December 2016, finance costs increased
from RMB98,733,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB119,834,000, mainly due to the increase of interest expenditure
of the convertible bonds resulting from the appreciation of HK$
against RMB and the increase in average balance of the Group’s
bank borrowings during the year. During the year, the Group’s US
dollar annual borrowing rate ranged from 3.1% to 3.5% (2015: the
US dollar annual borrowing rate ranged from 2.6% to 3.0%).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB695,267,000, representing an increase
of RMB163,208,000 when compared to income tax expense of
RMB532,059,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
increase in income tax expense was mainly due to the increase in
taxable profit of the Group.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE ISSUANCE OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS OF THE COMPANY
Issuance of convertible bonds in June 2014

The Company issued convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$3,900,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,097,380,000 when calculated with the exchange rate of
HK$1=RMBO0.7942 on the Issue Date) on the Issue Date, bearing
a coupon rate of 0.5% and payable semi-annually. The maturity
date of convertible bonds is on the Maturity Date, unless early
redeemed, converted, purchased, cancelled or otherwise provided
in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The Company will redeem
the convertible bonds at 103.86% of their principal amounts on the
Maturity Date. The initial conversion price of the bonds is HK$38.56
per share (subject to adjustment) and the existing conversion price
after the adjustment on 11 June 2016 is HK$37.50 per share
(subject to further adjustment in accordance with its terms and
conditions). The maximum number of shares to be issued upon
full conversion of the convertible bonds under the new conversion
price will be 104,000,000 shares. On the Issue Date, the initial
recognition amount of RMB2,846,450,000 for the liability component
of the bonds was calculated using a market interest rate of 3.55%
for a non-convertible bond of the same class. Equity component
amount of RMB197,140,000 was credited to the reserves of
shareholders’ equity. Net proceeds from the issue of those bonds
were approximately HK$3,832,271,000, which was intended to be
used for business expansion and for general corporate purpose.
As of 31 December 2016, the proceeds from such issue had been
all utilized for expansion of the Vietnam production bases and as
general working capital. For details of the issuance of convertible
bonds, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 22
May 2014, 18 June 2014 and 19 June 2014, respectively.

As of 31 December 2016, no convertible bonds have been
converted into shares of the Company pursuant to the relevant terms
and conditions of the convertible bonds.
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EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in US dollar, while its
purchases were mainly settled in RMB, the Group’s costs and
operating profit margin were affected by exchange rate fluctuations
to a certain extent. The Group adopted a policy to hedge part
of its foreign exchange risks in light of the existing fluctuations
of exchange rate between US dollar and RMB. The amounts
to be hedged depend on the Group’s revenue, purchases and
capital expenditure in US dollar, as well as the market forecast of
fluctuations in the exchange rate of US dollars against RMB.

To avoid the reduction in the value of future cash flows and the
volatility thereof arising from any exchange rate movement between
RMB and US dollar, the Group has arranged for appropriate number
of loans denominated in US dollars and loans denominated in
Hong Kong dollars with linked exchange rate with US dollars. As
at 31 December 2016, of the total amount of bank loans, there
were loans of approximately RMB383,633,000 denominated in
US dollars (approximately US$55,302,000 in original currency),
and loans of RMB357,800,000 denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$400,000,000 in original currency) (31 December
2015: loans of RMB70,391,000 denominated in US dollars
(approximately US$10,840,000 in original currency) and loans of
approximately RMB586,460,000 denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$700,000,000 in original currency)). The global layout of the
Group’s production bases will reduce the impact of the exchange
rate fluctuations of RMB against US dollars on operations.

EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed approximately
74,600 employees in total. Total staff costs, including administrative
and management staff, accounted for approximately 27.4% (2015:
27.9%) of the Group’s sales during the year. The Group remunerated
its staff according to their performances, qualifications and industry
practices, and conducted regular reviews of its remuneration
policy. Employees may receive discretionary bonuses and monetary
rewards based on their ratings in annual performance appraisals.
The Company also offered rewards or other incentives to motivate
personal growth and career development of the employees, such
as ongoing opportunities for training to enhance their technical and
product knowledge as well as their knowledge of industry quality
standards. Each new employee of the Group is required to attend
an introductory course, while there are also various types of training
courses available to all employees of the Group.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

During the year, the Group’s total investment in property, plant
and equipment and prepaid land lease payments amounted to
approximately RMB2,082,682,000, of which approximately 54% was
used for the acquisition of production equipment, approximately
42% for the construction and acquisition of new factory buildings
and land lease prepayments, and the remaining balance was used
for the purchase of other fixed assets.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had contracted capital
commitments of approximately RMB435,010,000 in connection with
the acquisition and construction of land use right, properties, plants
and equipment, which will be mainly financed by internal resources.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

On 26 August 2016, the Company entered into a share purchase
agreement with NetEase (Hong Kong) Limited (“NetEase HK”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of NetEase, Inc., pursuant to which the
Company agreed to transfer 49% equity interests of Maxwin BVI
(which holds Maxwin HK, Maxwin (China) Limited, Anhui Maxwin
Fashion Co., Ltd., Ningbo Maxwin Fashion Co., Ltd. and Shanghai
Maxwin Garments Co., Ltd.) to NetEase HK. The share transfer was
completed on 1 September 2016. Maxwin BVI and its subsidiaries
are engaged in the retail business of casual and sportswear apparel
under their own brands in Mainland China.

Save for the aforesaid, the Company did not have any other
significant investments, acquisitions and disposals during the period.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio was 30.8%,
calculated according to the total outstanding borrowings (including
the outstanding balance of the debt component of convertible
bonds) as a percentage of equity attributable to the equity holders of
the Company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has no material contingent
liability.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Group has no material event
after the reporting period.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

With the slowdown in global economic growth and rising costs
resulting in great challenges to the development of textile and
garment enterprises, differentiation in business operation of different
enterprises in the industry will continue to expand and concentration
of the industry will further increase. Cross-border industrial transfer
will gradually strike a balance and the entry barrier of the industry
will gradually increase. The current industry is undergoing a period
of adjustment. Enterprises with better resources should accelerate
industrial restructuring, changing from external expansion growth of
low resource costs and high material consumption in the past to high
efficiency and detailed internal growth. With the help of improvement
in informatisation and automation, development of the industry is
promoted as new growth opportunities in the industry are being
conceived during the change.

The future development of the Group will focus on enhancing the
sustainable development capability of enterprises, implementing
the plan of strengthening manpower resources, enhancing R&D
innovation of products, improving the level of informatization of
enterprise management and automation level of the production
process, and continuing to push forward strategies such as lean

production management.

Human resources are fundamental guarantee for continuous
development of enterprises. In consideration of expansion of
enterprises and the need for future management succession at
various levels, the Group will strengthen efforts in recruiting and
training of talents, select outstanding individuals who agree with the
corporate culture of the Group and establish talent pool mechanism
for various levels of management. The transformation and reform
of enterprises not only depend on experience in the industry
and dedication of the existing team but also various professional
capabilities of new entrants for achieving better management results.

The Group will further increase capital investment and management
improvement, enhance all-round innovation capability of enterprises
with the focus of innovation on products, technologies and
management, and establish a good mechanism for promoting the
continuous improvement of innovation capability. The Group will pay
particular attention to the development and utilization of new raw
materials, develop quality eco-friendly new products for promoting
growth in demand; lower the skill requirements of production staff
and improve the comfortability of staff with work through innovation
and improvement of equipment and technique.
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The Group will further enhance the level of informatized management
for promoting the improvement of management efficiency and the
relevance of decision-making. The Group aims to achieve quick
and accurate data and information through informatisation as well
as lower the efforts for information analysis and processing while
improving efficiency of information processing and accuracy of
feedback intervention through the analysis of irregular data and
the alert of information system. In addition, the Group will continue
to optimize the means of information collection, establish better
connection with information of automation equipment and improve
the intelligence level of production process.

The Group will continue to promote lean production management in
order to achieve optimal use of relevant resources as energy-saving,
eco-friendly production equipment is introduced to achieve whole
process of green manufacturing. The Group will produce quality
eco-friendly products at a competitive cost, which is the goal of
production and management.

The current industry environment is challenging, but still presenting
development opportunities. The Group will strive to promote
innovation and reform, integrate resources and implement
established development strategies. We believe in brighter future
prospects and will create better returns for investors. As the retalil
business has not reached the expected target, the management will
review the development strategy of the remaining 51% equity interest
in retail business. The Group plans to focus on OEM business in the
future.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently
stable cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of the Company through the provision of continuous
training for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covers all of the code provisions and most of the recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 9 October 2005. The
Company had complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Terms of Reference of Board Committees

In order to comply with the Listing Rules and the CG Code, the
terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company are
regularly revised based on amendments to the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. Such terms of reference and the list of Directors and their
roles and functions are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Responsibilities of Directors

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 set out in the CG Code. The
Company arranged for continuous professional development on
the update of the Listing Rules and the related legal and regulatory
requirements for the Directors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board had complied
with (1) the requirement that the board of a listed issuer must include
at least three independent non-executive directors under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (2) the requirement that at least one
of the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; and
(8) the requirement that the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

ZAER ()
Types of training (Note)

HITES

Executive Directors

BEEkEE

Mr. Ma Jianrong

mEAME A

Mr. Huang Guanlin

BLfksE

Mr. Ma Renhe

B ¥E &+

Ms. Zheng Miaohui
(RZE—+F—H—BEHE)
(resigned on 1 January 2017)

TERESE

Mr. Wang Cunbo

REHFut

Ms. Chen Zhifen

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BRARTE £ 4

Mr. Chen Genxiang
(RZT—+F—A—HEHE)
(resigned on 1 January 2017)

BRfB 5% &

Mr. Chen Xu

BEBmAE

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

EERLE

Mr. Qiu Weiguo

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B
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Note:
A: attending seminars organized by the Company

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements

Corporate governance functions

The Company adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions on 26 March 2012 in compliance with
the code provision D.3 set out in the CG Code, effective from 1
April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate
governance functions, the Board shall be responsible for developing
and reviewing and/or monitoring the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group; training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management and
making recommendations; compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and the Group’s compliance
with the CG Code.

Communications with shareholders

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2 set out in the CG Code,
the Company has invited representatives of the external auditors
of the Company to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company to be convened on 26 May 2017 to answer shareholders’
questions relating to the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

The Company adopted a shareholders’ communication policy and
procedures with effect from 26 March 2012 for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director. The policy and the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board comprised five
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
whose biographical details and family relationships among certain
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Members of Senior Management” on pages 97
to 104. There are no other material financial, business or relevant
relationships among the Directors.

The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities of
the Board include the formulation of the Group’s business strategies
and management objectives, supervision of the management and
evaluation of the effectiveness of management strategies.

The day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Directors or officers in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the operating condition,
business activities and development of the Group. Independent
professional advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their
request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.
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Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of
this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the significant operational decisions of the Group,
while the Group General Manager is responsible for managing the
day-to-day operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Ma Jianrong
is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Huang Guanlin is the Group
General Manager.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Independent Non-executive
Directors accounted for 37.5% of the members of the Board. The
Independent Non-executive Directors are outstanding executives or
experts in the textile industry and business sectors who bring with
them expertise in different areas. They provide adequate control
and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests of the
shareholders and the Group. The role of the Independent Non-
executive Directors is to provide independent and objective opinions
to the Board for its consideration and decisions. All Independent
Non-executive Directors have submitted annual written confirmation
of their independence and compliance with the independence
guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to Directors to ensure timely access to the relevant information
for discharge of their duties.
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Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are also sent to all Directors for
their comment and records, respectively.

The Company held 4 full Board meetings for the year ended 31
December 2016, with all the existing members of the Board at the
relevant time attended.

Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to determine overall
strategic directions and objectives and approve interim and annual
results and other significant matters.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

BOARD DIVERSITY

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members of
the Board, it is the policy of the Company to consider a number
of factors when deciding on appointments to the Board and the
continuation of those appointments. Such factors include gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee have been structured to include a majority
of Independent Non-executive Directors as members in order to
reinforce independence, while the Audit Committee only comprises
Independent Non-executive Directors. All of the Committees are
governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website www.hkexnews.hk.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005. As of the Latest
Practicable Date, the Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Ma
Renhe, an Executive Director, Mr. Chen Xu and Mr. Jiang Xianpin,
who are Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Chen Xu is
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. No Director
will take part in any discussion on his or her own remuneration. The
details of the Directors’ fees are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to the members of the Board of Directors, market rates
and factors such as each Director’s workload, responsibility, and job
complexity are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting with full attendance in
2016. At the meeting, it reviewed the remuneration of Directors and
senior management.

Details of the remuneration by band of the 10 members of the
senior management of the Company, whose biographies are set out
on pages 102 to 104 of this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out below:

A

FMER (B¥ETT) Number of

Remuneration band (HK$’000) individual

1,000LA Below 1,000 8
1,000£ 2,000 1,000 to 2,000 2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9
October 2005. As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Nomination
Committee comprises Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director, Mr.
Qiu Weiguo and Mr. Jiang Xianpin, who are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Ma Jianrong is Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as Directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board; regularly review the structure,
headcount and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
for any proposed changes.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting with full attendance
in 2016. At the meeting, it reviewed and recommended the
reappointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case
of an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in
the case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject
to reelection by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for specific terms of not more than three
years.

Annual Report 2016 4 5

43



44

TEERKRE

Corporate Governance Report

EREEE

RZZEZRAF+ANA AAREREMH

AIZE3.21 2323 (K L BEZEZE T - NE&xEE

BRelfTHE BZEZEeXB =28 IkH

TEZ DRARBBERLEE MBEEREE

BHEE BEREEAEZZEEMNER H
Eﬁ'%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁiﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ
BEZZEGNEE-

i

ERZEENTIEEERRAEENM KA
SEES AREERABEEIELERND
BB BERERAEEZNEERE
B EEASEEAREEITEIKRR  BFHA
%lm¢%&£¢%ﬁ'uﬁﬁﬁ$%l%
AARMBEEEE TERR -

EZZEENBENEREAESHAAER

e (ERZ B BIGEIEIES]) ERHERS
BmhkeEERTRG —30 AR EBE
HeREELER(BELTRA)  EFE
A] 2B AN A B 49 3 www.shenzhouintl.com ©

—RETZA=1+—
REF TEKEHAL
°%$§E§#@iﬂﬂ%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ
hE2FXEE WEBERERERSEE:
AR —ZF—R"FHRREE AEENRIR
TBEEERY EHRKENARBEZRE L
BB S -

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.28 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005. As of
the Latest Practicable Date, the Audit Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Xianpin, Mr.
Chen Xu and Mr. Qiu Weiguo. Mr. Jiang Xianpin is Chairman of the
Audit Committee. His expertise in accounting, auditing and finance
enables him to provide leadership for the Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
conduct critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and
accounting practices, risk management and internal controls. These
include determining of the nature and scope of statutory audit,
monitoring the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management,
reviewing the Group’s interim and annual accounts and assessing
the completeness and effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and
financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG
Code and are subject to amendments in response to the regulatory
requirements from time to time (including the Listing Rules). Please
refer to the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com for the
details.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings for the year ended 31
December 2016 with full attendance. At the meetings, it reviewed
the 2015 final results, financial report and auditing issues, with the
external auditors, and the 2016 interim results, the activities of the
Group’s internal audit functions, the internal audit report on business
operations and continuing connected transactions.
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Details of Director’s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board

Committee Meetings held in 2016 are set out in the following table.
The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board meetings was

100%.
HE/BTEERY
Meetings Attended/Held
Exgsez ERERS FHzEE REZEE RRBEAE
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

HITES
Executive Directors
=4 bt 4/4 - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Ma Jianrong
BRMNEE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Huang Guanlin
SLCMESE 4/4 - 11 - 1/1
Mr. Ma Renhe
ByEL+ 4/4 - - - 1/1
Ms. Zheng Miaohui
FEREE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Wang Cunbo
REHnL 4/4 - - - 1/1
Ms. Chen Zhifen
BYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BRARM 4 4/4 3/3 11 - 1/1
Mr. Chen Genxiang
BBt 4/4 3/3 11 - 1/1
Mr. Chen Xu
BEmEHE 4/4 3/3 11 1/1 1/1
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
REELE 4/4 3/3 - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view in accordance with the
accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published
by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to
make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s current
conditions and prospects in the financial report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility of risk management and
internal control system and reviewing its effectiveness. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility to assess and determine the nature
and degree of risks that it is willing to take in achieving strategic
goals as well as to maintain an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system and to ensure accurate
reporting of the Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the
public in a timely manner.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to manage and enhance operating effectiveness and
efficiency, to safeguard assets against misappropriation and
unauthorized disposition, to maintain appropriate accounting
records and financial reports that are true and fair, and to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system aims
at providing a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and managing rather than eliminating
operational risks.

The overall risk management process of the Company is integrated
in the day-to-day operations of the Group and the management
is entrusted with duties to analyze, identify, monitor, evaluate
and respond to risks associated with the business activities and
operations of the Group. The management will evaluate risk levels
acceptable for the Company, set up contingency plans and formulate
contingency plans to minimize impact of unpredictable events and
report its findings to the Audit Committee and the Board, who
ultimately determine the nature and extent of significant risk that the
Company is willing to take in achieving its business objectives and
direct the Group’s risk management strategies.

The Internal Audit Department is tasked with performing internal
control functions of the Company and plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The Internal
Auditor reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to
the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted
access to information that allows it to review all aspects of the
Company’s risk management, control and governance processes.
On a regular basis, it conducts audits on major activities and
process of the Group’s business and support units. It also conducts
special reviews or investigations of areas of concern identified
by the management or the Audit Committee. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee, Directors and key senior
management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for proper
implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
Directors and senior management directly and periodically.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016, which covered controls
over financial reporting, operations and compliance, as well as risk
management functions, and considered that the system of internal
controls in operation in the Group have been in place and functioning
effectively.

Assisted by the Audit Committee, the Board assessed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group by reviewing the investigation results of management
report and internal audits, and considered that the risk management
and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 was effective and adequate.

The Group has formulated procedures on the handling and
disclosure of inside information which provides a general guide
to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries. The procedures
help ensure that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any officer of the Company should be promptly
identified, assessed and reported to the Board if required, and
that inside information of the Company is disclosed promptly in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations when necessary.
To further enhance the internal control of the Company, the
Company has adopted a written inside information disclosure policy
on 27 March 2017 to standardize the responsibility and procedure of
information disclosure.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Audit Committee
will, prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The related remuneration for the audit services provided by Ernst

& Young to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to RMB3,589,000.
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The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing Rules as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy of the Securities
Trading Code is provided to all Directors upon their appointment.
Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days prior to the
Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results and 60
days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s annual
results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed to deal in
the Company’s securities prior to the announcement of its results
(the period during which the directors are prohibited from dealing
in shares) and that all transactions must comply with the Securities
Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed
their strict compliance with the relevant provisions of the Securities
Trading Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

Senior management may be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information or inside information due to their positions
in the Company, and hence, are required to comply with dealing
restrictions under the Securities Trading Code.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji, is responsible for
facilitating the Board process, as well as communications among
Board members, with shareholders and management. Mr. Chan’s
biography is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Members of Senior Management” section on pages 97 to 104 of this
annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of communication with its
shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to shareholders
and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

Our Investor Relations Department communicates with research
analysts and institutional investors in an on-going manner and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive information about
the Group’s strategies and development.
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The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
press releases and presentations material can be retrieved through
our Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on the
website is updated in a timely manner to ensure the speed, fairness
and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not all
shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet. If
necessary, hard copies of those website information listed above are
available free of charge upon request to the Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a policy of open communication and fair
disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. We understand
that more disclosure does not necessarily result in increased
transparency. The integrity of the information provided is essential for
building market confidence.

The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4919, email at
2318ir@shenzhougroup.com or raising questions at an AGM or
EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary by the same means.
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requesting
member(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requesting member(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene such meeting shall be
reimbursed to the requesting member(s) by the Company.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the sustainability report, which outlines approaches,
commitment and strategies of the Group’s major subsidiaries in four
aspects — workplace quality, environmental protection, operating
practices and community involvement. The reporting period of
this report is from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016. The
data disclosed in this report are provided by the respective human
resources, administration, finance, energy and other relevant
departments, and are prepared and collected by sustainable
development department.

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules. During the reporting period, the Company has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”.

VISION

Shenzhou’s position for its future corporate development is to be
committed to becoming the best garment operator in the worldwide.
Shenzhou is the biggest vertically integrated garment enterprise, with
a complete operation system including research and development,
design, production and logistics. The future development strategy of
Shenzhou is not only to pursue the continuous growth of the scale of
the enterprise, but also to focus on the comprehensive uplift in the
corporate competitiveness, especially the improvement in innovation,
automation, informatisation and environmental protection.
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MISSION

“Building a green enterprise and offering people a comfortable life” —

Environmental protection is Shenzhou’s primary social responsibility

as well as the basis of long-term viability for any enterprises. The

Group shall always remain devoted to environmental commitments,

from which corporate sustainability can be realized; Comfort is not

merely a tactile sensation from our knitwear, but also a state of living

that we so fervently pursue. By creating a life of comfort, we seek to

make the enterprise one with nature.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1.

The Profile of Shenzhou’s Environmental Protection:
Environmental protection is one of the key policies of the
government. In recent years, the Chinese government
has strengthened its effort in the policy of environmental
protection through reform of the supply side, which restricts
and eliminates the outdated production facilities that have
negative impact on the environment. The Chinese government
has implemented the amended Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention Law since January 1 2016 and the amended Law
on Environment Impact Assessment since September 1 2016.
More clear and comprehensive requirements have been made
in monitoring of pollutants in the whole process, optimization
of energy structure, evaluation of the impact on environment
and measures for environmental issues and the environmental
responsibility of relevant entities are also emphasized.

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with
all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Company relating to environmental protection and
emissions of gas, wastewater and solid waste.

The main resources and energy used in the process of the
Group’s production include water, electricity, coal, biomass fuel
and steam. Fabric production is the main process of energy
consumption. The main wastes generated from production
are wastewater and waste gas etc., the former of which is
generated from dyeing process. Through clean water and
sewage split-flow in the production process, lightly polluted
water for dyeing and cleaning is recycled after treatment, and
dyed polluted water is discharged after strict treatment.
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Currently, the Group has recycled facilities in Mainland China,
with capacity of 15,000 tons of reclaimed water per day, which
effectively lower water consumption and direct discharge of
sewage. The air pollutant generated from production process
are mainly smoke and dust, sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxide.

The Group pays attention to the control of pollutants in the
whole process and attaches importance to the environmental
protection of raw materials provided by suppliers in
identification of suppliers. Each production department
continues to improve technique and tries to uplift the level
of environmental protection in technique. It optimizes energy
structure and gradually increases use of clean energy. It
updates old equipment promptly through introduction of
advanced equipment with environmental protection and low
consumption to reduce the consumption of resources and
emission of pollutants. In the final treatment of pollutants, it
strictly complies with relevant requirements of government and
ensures compliance with standards in emission.

In 2016, the emission of hazardous wastes was 16.14 tons in
aggregate. In addition, the Group also has facilities for emission
of non-hazardous wastes and the emission of non-hazardous
wastes is 28,813 tons in aggregate.

The total consumption of electricity of the Group for the year
was 449,939,264 kwh, representing a year-on-year increase of
37.7%. The main use of electricity was production of fabrics.
In 2016, the fabric output of the Group was 130,697 tons,
representing an increase of 15.1% as compared to that of
last year. The electric consumption of the fabric factory was
345,729,747 kwh, representing an increase of approximately
18.5% as compared to that of last year.

The consumption of biomass and coal were 208,504 tons,
representing an increase of approximately 30.8% as compared
to that of last year. The main fuel for the fabric factory in
Ningbo was biomass while the main direct energy of the fabric
factory in Vietham was coal.

In 2016, the consumption of steam was 1,108,405 tons,
representing an increase of 4.8% as compared to that of last
year.
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The reason for the above increase in energy consumption is
that the statistics in 2015 did not include major subsidiaries
outside China. As there is no steam provided for the fabric
factory in Vietnam, the heat energy required is mainly replaced
by fuel and electricity. The production capacity of fabric
for the year is totally attributed to the factory in Vietnam.
Consequently, the unit consumption of fuel and electricity of
the Group for the year increased while the unit consumption of
steam decreased.

In 2016, the total consumption of environment-friendly biomass
and coal was 208,504 tons (2015: 159,441 tons), of which
approximately 100% were biomass fuel in the area of Ningbo,
substantially reducing sulphur dioxide discharge and effectively
reducing adverse impacts on environment.

In the current year, the Group had no significant impact on the
activities of environmental protection and natural resources.
In terms of the relevant policy in environmental protection
and natural resources, the emission of 100% qualified factory
includes waste water, waste gas and noise, respectively. In
terms of the emission of waster water, the current emission of
waste water of the Group is better than standard. In addition,
the fresh water used by the Group for the year increased by
6.3%, which was mainly due to the increase of production
capacity of fabric factory in Vietnam.

In addition, the Group planted 17,650 trees in the current
year which covered a lawn of 6,000 square meters and Radix
Ophiopogonis of 2,200 square meters. Therefore, emission
of carbon dioxide could be reduced. Furthermore, in terms of
the factory in Ningbo, the electricity consumption of the Group
through the power plant was 331,054,257 kwh which resulted
in the emission of carbon dioxide of 344,848 tons. Thereinto,
in terms of the factory in Ningbo, the electricity consumption in
treatment of waste water in the current year was approximately
7,806,970 kwh which resulted in the emission of carbon
dioxide of 8,132 tons. Further, the electricity consumption in
treatment of clean water in the current year was approximately
2,567,500 kwh which resulted in the emission of carbon
dioxide of 2,674 tons.
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Shenzhou’s wastewater discharge and smoke emission
in 2016
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The statistics in 2015 did not include the data of subsidiaries
outside China. The emission increased in 2016 and in particular,
the emission of sulphur dioxide increased significantly. The main
reason is that there is no steam provided for the fabric factory in
Vietnam and the heat energy required is supplied by conversion
of the direct energy — coal. The increase of the proportion of
direct energy consumption increases the emission of waste gas
of the Group.

150
100

50
T»k‘ﬂtw (Hg)

Nitrogen oxides (Tons)

Note:

Measures in energy conservation and emission
reduction:

In 2016, the Group adopted measures in energy conservation
and emission reduction, such as improvement works on steam
network and motors, with a view to enhance production
efficiency and reduce emission. In the beginning of 2017, we
changed biomass boiler to boiler of natural gas, which would
reduce emission further.

In addition, the Group plans to implement projects like
transformation of facilities and promote automation of garment
washing and clothing test center in the future.
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1.2. ERENIEREE

1.2. Solid waste separation and treatment

$’§lﬁ}5ﬁﬁl SEMET O ERE We conduct a classification and treatment process for all
. mER o E A EE Y A A B IR B solid waste, part of which will be recycled and reused to
B AE iﬂ DIRIBIF R - RIBREE Y D minimize its pollution to the environment. Our Group classifies
EREEEBRAT ~AEBTEEHRE all solid waste into four categories according to the relevant
kpEgEmEEEBEY D RMUE A Regulations for Waste Classification and Management in the
BOBEMEEFLE TR factory and office in Ningbo. Please refer to the following table

for the specific classification and weight.

—T-RF —E-REF
hl E5 B IR BEE(TR) EE(TR)
Weight in Weight in
Category Particulars Source of waste 2015 (kg) 2016 (kg)
ABRNARATRRZARIARR BHS EAE BEL ER - RERAEKEE 6,117,000 6,041,800
Reusable or recyclable Waste paper boxes, waste Knitting, dyeing and garment
paperboards and papers paper cones, waste paper cores, making process
waste papers
ABRMARARRZ EENE @ mEH - REREKAR 17,167,021 19,055,393
Reusable or recyclable waste fabric Waste fabric, pied hair Knitting, dyeing and garment
making process
BARRE R EEREY BRI ERE - REREKAR 415,330 652,320
Reusing or recycling of Plastic wire cores, plastic bags Knitting, dyeing and garment
non-hazardous waste making process
WEBMBXEUL ERBED B#Ea R EBERBERE 2,411,000 3,063,480
No reusing or recycling of Household garbage Canteen and office
non-hazardous waste
. LA BEREME B E TR R E . All above mentioned wastes are collected by different local

[EEVE T

service providers.

HOME METAL PLASTIC
FIEINIH T Bl ALkl [l EESE

wlwid | 2¢ Wit
s
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1.3. Sewage treatment and testing of smoke emissions

The Group adopted the following facilities in treating sewage and
smoke emissions. Meanwhile, ozone wash and digital printing
were also applied to improve water efficiency. Furthermore, the
Group also set up boiler heat recovery system and built yarn
dye-heat recovery in the beginning of 2016 to improve the
Group’s energy efficiency, details of which are as follows:

The Group has set up integrated sewage treatment facilities
in its Ningbo and Vietnam factories since the plants was
built up to comply with the emission standards before
discharging. It carries out regular inspections according to
the Environmental Protection Bureau’s requirements. The
respective environmental protection authorities have installed
online detection devices at the sewage outfalls.

At our Ningbo Factory, the frequency of inspection on
wastewater discharge is: realtime monitoring for on-site
inspection; once every three months for sample inspection.

The Group also conducts online monitoring on smoke
emission to ensure compliance with the emission standards
before discharging. The respective environmental protection
authorities have also installed online monitoring devices at
our smoke outfalls. At our Ningbo Factory, the frequency of
inspection on smoke and gas emission is: real-time monitoring
for on-site inspection; once every three months for sample
inspection.
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2. BRER 2. USE OF RESOURCES

21. ZTE—XREZEFRHEE 2.1. Energy consumption in 2016
REEBEAMF 2 EERFHEENT Our main energy consumption in the last two years was as
follows:
ZEEBERREENZEAHE FERE The data includes the Group’s total energy consumption in the
MIARBTBERAREMEEEN entire knitting, dyeing and finishing and garment manufacturing
B2 R IRHFERE - processes and all its operational regions.
BERREREE - RR BEREREREE - &R
Indirect energy consumption-Gas Indirect energy consumption-Steam
397
400 1,200,000 1,057,199 1,108,405
1,000,000
300
233 800,000
200 600,000
400,000
100 [5 ] m
5. 0) Fooone ()
0 Gas (Tons) 0 Steam (Tons)
“T-RFHRE —E-RFHERE —T-REHER —T-REHER
Consumption in 2015 Consumption in 2016 Consumption in 2015 Consumption in 2016
o Mzt MRORICAMR)EERREEBIZ o MR ZOTARER D ENA AR
¢ Note: Gas (LPG) mainly used for singeing process * Note: Steam used for part of dyeing machine to heat up
BEEREREE-ED HERERHEE
Indirect energy consumption-Electricity Direct energy consumption
500,000,000 449,939,264 250,000
208,504
400,000,000 326,654,906 200,000 150,441
300,000,000 150,000
200,000,000 100,000
100,000,000 u 50,000 n
BN (THEE) YR + 1 ()
0 Electricity (Kwh) 0 Bio-mass fuel + Coal (Tons)
—T-RFERE —E-RFERE —T-RFERE —ERFERE
Consumption in 2015 Consumption in 2016 Consumption in 2015  Consumption in 2016

o MIRE - B AEYE AR R E SR AR AR R
* Note: Coal and bio-mass are used as fuel for boiler to heat up

RIRE D HFEKE
Water consumption by source
eTo000 23,215,312
21,847,460
20,000,000
15,000,000 u
ek (W)
10,000,000 Fresh water (Tons)
4,828,200 4,634,304

5,000,000 (2 ]
ERERAK (W)
0 Recycled water (Tons)

—T-REEREE T ATHEEE

Consumption Consumption
in 2015 in 2016
Mg —E—HAFRE -EZR B EEED Note: The data of gas, steam, electricity, coal and bio-mass fuel and
BIREFKEEEENEE R RN water consumption in 2015 is only limited to China while the
WE M- NFEEERER data of direct energy consumption, indirect energy consumption
2 MEBEREREENKAEEENE and water consumption in 2016 includes China, Vietnam and
BRI EPE - BRI R o Cambodia.
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2.2. Yarn Dye-Heat Recovery

In 2016, the Group invested USD200,000 to build yarn dye-
heat recovery facility. This project is still on the stage of
transformation and adjustment.

This system is capable of making 60,000 tons of steam
annually which will save USD1.3 million every year. It is more
efficient to dispose wasted water than discharging water after
cooling-down in this system.

The following is the picture of Yarn Dye-Heat Recovery facility:

5] Y R 45 24 B
REBRLTHERER KRS B
—E-RFORBERENRESREE

EEZL R 28,405ME A EEF A - i B KA
554116% % o

AT = E e E R ee e B

2.3. Boiler Heat Recovery

The Group set up boiler heat recovery system. In 2016, the
boiler heat recovery system produced 28,405 tons of steam for
the use of production, which saved USD554,116.

The following is the picture of Boiler Heat Recovery system:
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3.

3.1.

LEAN PRODUCTION AND INNOVATION
In order to expand the globalization layout of Shenzhou,
we launch development of new products, and process
improvement of manufacture technology in the innovation
center which is extremely crucial to our strategic planning.

The strengths of the innovation center

The vision to be achieved by Shenzhou through its innovation
center is to increase the added-value and profitability of
products, while developing the Company into a sustainable
operator through introducing our ideology of environmental
design when designing products with our customers in
the innovation centres, reducing the use of fabrics and the
pressure on the environment caused by production emission.

° Design for Manufacturing and Assembly (DFMA) and
design production-friendly products as well as increasing
productivity

o Product diversification
° Shortening the cycle of product development and

saving the labor and cost deployed by Shenzhou and its
customers in R&D

° Integrating green elements in the design, reducing the use
of chemicals
° Increasing the product quality

° Ensuring a healthy and safe production environment for
the staff
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3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

Intelligent hanging system

The Group has always upheld lean manufacture. The
“intelligent hanging system” is controlled by computers and
is a transmission and logistic tool which is responsible for
allocating tasks to operators in each workstation. The system
lowers the heavy workload of operating staff and reduces the
transmission time of each working process as well as increases
the production efficiency by 2 to 3%.

Digital Print

Through digital print, more accurate and vivid colors can be
achieved and consumption from film and water in traditional
print way is eliminated. The consumption of power and
resources can be effectively reduced. Therefore, a T-shirt with
beautifully-designed printing can also be an environmental-
friendly product.

Ozone Wash

G2 Ozone Wash means ozone washing. Ozone is a strong
oxidant which causes the clothes to discolour naturally and
forms vintage style by washing the
clothes with ozone composing of
G2. Generally this effect needs to
be completed by chemical agents,
however, G2 production replaces the
use of chemicals and reduces water
consumption, which minimizes the
pressure on environment caused by this
type of products.

As an enterprise keen on sustainable development, the
Group vigorously supports and maintains its role as a proper
environmental protector, proactively deepens and internalizes
environmental awareness, and has the low-carbon concept
deeply indoctrinated in the whole Group. We firmly believe that
our commitment to environmental protection will become a
part of Shenzhou’s core competitiveness, leading the Group to
greater success in the future.

The process of the garment factory in Vietnam, from design
and construction to completion, fulfils the standard of LEED
GREEN GOAL. The future target ranking
of the factory is LEED SILVER GOAL.
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4. THEREEE
41 EEEXEHR

4. WORKPLACE QUALITY

4.1 Employees’ Basic Information

HE-_ZT—XRE+-A=+—H -KEEE As at 31 December 2016, there were about 74,600 employees
B AEHAT4600A - FTEREY AZBIE working in the Group. All of them are full-time employees, and the
8 BAZEATEFREE - NREIIZFH  majority are young and middle-aged employees. The tables below
DB K TEH B R MERILL IR 2 show the employee details by age distribution, education level, job

LR

locations and gender ratio.

HIEEEH

A8 Bk

Percentages

of total

REREERSD By Age band Numbers employees
208% LA Below 20 and 20 8,748 11.73%
212 405% 21 to 40 54,238 72.70%
41ZE505% 41 to 50 10,650 14.28%
518 KA £ 51 and above 51 964 1.29%
st Total 74,600 100.00%

EEFHRIM
Employees Age Distribution
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HEERE
AE Batt
Percentages
of total
4 Bl Gender Numbers employees
5 Male 20,978 28.12%
o8 Female 53,622 71.88%
Rt Total 74,600 100.00%
4 Bl tb =
Gender Ratio
HESRE
A [ER
Percentages
of total
ZEIXRE 2 By Country Numbers employees
H B K e Mainland China 51,595 69.16%
jiiAEa) Vietnam 11,880 15.93%
RIFE Cambodia 11,125 14.91%
FEET Total 74,600 100.00%
BEERMES
Employees by Job Locations
HESRE
AE Bok
Percentages
of total
BR#EEBEE D By Education Numbers employees
A Postgraduate 26 0.03%
AR R KH Undergraduate and college 3,782 5.07%
FERF Technical secondary school and high school 13,123 17.59%
A R Middle school and below 57,669 77.31%
st Total 74,600 100.00%

BEHEKF

Employees Education Level
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4.2 Statistical analysis of employee turnover rate

By the end of December 2016, there were 74,600 employees in
total. According to the statistics, the Group’s monthly average
employee turnover rate in 2016 was 4.42%, representing a decrease
of 0.28 percentage point when compared with 2015 (2015: 4.7%).
The monthly average new employee turnover rate in 2016 was
2.75%. Meanwhile, the turnover rate of male employees was 1.38%

£A3.13% °

TREINRERD T R TIEBE LGB D 2

EETHRAE-

while that of female employeess was 3.13% in 2016.

age distribution and job locations.

The tables below show the average turnover rate of employees by

EETS
i ok

The average

turnover
rate of
REREEE D By Age band employees
20BR AR Below 20 and 20 0.66%
215 £ 405% 21-40 3.56%
41X 2505% 41-50 0.37%
51 M A E 51 and above 51 0.04%
RBEF®RSH
Age Distribution of Employees
E&¥13
TE=E
The average
turnover
rate of
ZEXE 5 By Country employees
K R Mainland China 5.08%
=) Vietnam 3.53%
SRR Cambodia 2.05%
H i [= Other regions 0.00%
BERMEDH

Employees by Job Locations
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4.3 The management of employee dismissal

If an employee of the Group is dismissed, the Group will take
relevant action or make compensations based on the applicable
local labor contract law and other labor regulations.

Where an employee is under any of the following circumstances,
the Group may dissolve the labor contract according to the Article
39 of Labor Contract Law: It is proved that the employee does not
meet the recruitment conditions during the probation period; The
employee seriously violates the rules and procedures set up by the
employer; The employee causes any severe damage to the employer
because he seriously neglects his duties or seeks private benefits;
The employee simultaneously enters an employment relationship
with other employers and thus seriously affects his completion of
the tasks of the employer, or the employee refuses to make the
ratification after his employer points out the problem; The labor
contract is invalidated due to the circumstance as mentioned in Item
(1), paragraph 1, Article 26 of this Law; or the employee is under
investigation for criminal liabilities according to law. In addition, the
Group will not pay relevant compensation to the employee.

Furthermore, if the following circumstances has occurred during
the working period of an employee, the Group will make relevant
compensation to the employee. For example: the employee is sick
or is injured for a non-work-related reason and cannot resume his
original position after the expiration of the prescribed time period for
medical treatment, nor can he assume any other position arranged
by the employer; the employee is incompetent to his position or
is still so after training or changing his position; or the objective
condition, on which the labor contract is based, has changed
considerably, the labor contract is unable to be performed and no
agreement on changing the contents of the labor contract is reached
after negotiations between the employer and the employee; or if
the Company is under restructuring according to the Enterprise
Bankruptcy Law; or if the Company encounters serious difficulties
in production and business operation; or if the enterprise changes
products, makes important technological renovation, or adjusts the
methods of its business operation, and it is still necessary to lay off
the number of employees after changing the labor contract; or the
objective economic condition, on which the labor contract is based,
has changed considerably and the employer is unable to perform
the labor contract. After the dismissal of employment relationship
under the circumstances stipulated in Article 40 and Article 41 in
Labour Contract Law, the Group will pay relevant compensation in
accordance with Article 46 of Labour Contract Law.

The dismissal procedures of the Group are as below: the group
leader and department head report specific circumstance and the
human resources department in the headquarter determine its nature
according to the above circumstances and take the relevant actions
or make compensations.

FR M B £ @42 fR A BR A 8] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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4.4 The benefit of the employee

Shenzhou Group has successfully maintained a relatively low staff

turnover rate, thanks to the following effective measures:

1.

For seven years in a row, chartered coaches were arranged
during Chinese New Year holidays for staff to go home:
contribution of approximately RMB15 million in 2016 was made
for arranging 275 round-trip chartered coaches covering 324
locations in 14 provinces such as Anhui, Sichuan, Shanxi,
Yunnan for 13,483 staff to go home, and to return to work after
the Chinese New Year holidays safe and sound. Refreshment
was provided on the coaches for our staff's enjoyment.

The Company is mindful of educational causes and places
great emphasis on team construction of staff and education
for the children of its staff. In May 2011, the inauguration
ceremony of the Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. Education
Development Fund was held at the administration centre
in Beilun region. In the area of schooling for the children of
its staff, the Company liaises with the staff union each year
to resolve practical difficulties in schooling for children of
management staff as far as possible.

Annual Report 2016 4 5
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3 {EAYSTHEmERNLE HMNEEEINE 3. As a labor intensive corporation, Shenzhou Group places

HAEOE T H LR - AaR20114 exceptional emphasis on and pays special attention to
10ARBIRIM T OBEAE— [ DI the wellbeing of its staff, both physically and mentally. The
E] o [DBEBEIREARELERE Company established a mental health information centre,
B THEARTEEMRENEHE “Joyful Community”, in October 2011. With specialists serving
& NEFRRRG RFEBKEE as counsellors, “Joyful Community” is equipped with music
UWERAXREEFARBEIBELER facilities for relaxation and punching facilities for venting
B EREN BRLE- emotions. Through handling cases received, organising

group activities and holding seminars, the centre resolves
psychological distress and relieves emotional pressure of staff
and gives them peace of mind.

4 FEFEFHEFE T T ERMAI0%ZE 4. An average rise in salary has been around 10% to 12% each
12% - year for the past six years.

5. AEBR-_ZF-AFEEEERMEHRE 5 In 2016, the Group invested approximately RMBO0.1 billion

WARBIBTREENNPIRERE B in Ningbo to build a new central kitchen for the purpose of
MEZEEIANENELE FERE providing more secure, clean and delicious food to employees
BR - EMIRIE B TR @5 - FRERE % - to ensure their health and reduce turnover rate.

£

B R

DARTRINA/TROM CLNT IR SHEREHOU KHETTING CO. LTS
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4.5 Working condition

Due to the continuity of production and operation, approved by the
labor department, the Group implements standard working time
system, comprehensive working time system and flexible working
time system according to the working nature of employee.

In addition, the working hour is stipulated by respective department
according to the season, requirement of production and operation
and characteristic of the job.

The working time for the employees of the Group generally starts at
8 a.m. and finishes at 5 p.m. and the normal working time is less
than 8 hours. If overtime working is needed, the daily overtime will
be less than 3 hours and the monthly overtime will be less than 36
hours.

Time for rest:

Time for rest of the Group is generally from 11:30 a.m. to 12:30
p.m. There is also time for lunch and midday rest for employees. The
employees have at least one day off per week.

The employees of the Group are also entitled to the national
statutory holiday, annual leave, marriage leave, funeral leave, leave
for personal affairs and sick leave.

Procedures for application of leave:

The employees of the Group go through the formalities when they
apply for leave and sign the application form. In the meantime,
employees should state the nature of leave, holiday, time, reason and
handover matters and provide relevant valid certification. After the
approval of leaders, it will be reported to the human resources office
of the department for registration and filing.

Health and Safety
The Group distributes labor protection appliances and tools to
employees every year, such as masks, gloves and uniforms.

The Group cares about the physical health of employees. It sets

up employee health records for every employee and also organizes
routine examination of occupational diseases.
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A total of 78 injuries and one significant injury were recorded in
2016. Lost work days due to injuries were 15 to 20 days on average.
The Group will strengthen on-the-job trainings to raise awareness of
occupational safety.

The Group supplies free first-aid kits and medicines to employees,
which plays an important role in emergencies. The Group complies
with national labor laws and regulations and arranges the dayoff
and working timetables stringently in accordance with national
requirements. Employees are also entitled to annual leave.

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with all
relevant health and safety laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company.

Labor Standards

In 2003, the Group formulated some requirements like the “Strict
Prohibition of Engaging Child Labour Administrative Provisions”,
“Underage Worker Administrative Provisions” and “Strict Prohibition
of Forced Labour Administrative Provisions” in order to completely

eradicate child labor, underage workers and forced labor.

Strict forbiddance of forced labor and child labor

Over the past 22 years of Shenzhou’s operation, there has not
been a single case of forced labor or child labor. For the purpose of
compliance with the relevant laws of China, Vietham and Cambodia,
Shenzhou has laid out comprehensive provisions and accountability
procedures in respect of the recruitment, labor use and dismissal.

The above administrative provisions are implemented seriously in
all departments. The following measures reveal how the Group can
eradicate effectively child labor during the recruitment process:

New employee must provide his/her identity card when commencing
employment, so as to verify his/her actual age.

In the recruitment interview, interviewers will observe very carefully
the differences between the photograph on the identity card and the
genuine face. If there is much difference, or the actual age seems
obvious to be younger, then it shall be verified by identity card
identification system or otherwise.
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Zero discrimination

We have established anti-discrimination policy and comply with the
requirements of relevant laws. There has been no occurrence of
discrimination in Shenzhou against race, region, gender, nationality,
age, pregnancy or disability in respect of employee recruitment,
training, salary and promotion.

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with all
relevant employment and labor laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.

5. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
5.1 Training

The Group attaches great importance to the internal and external

studies and trainings to improve employees’ education level and
capabilities, and trains talents properly that are needed in the
Group’s development. The Group has established the Shenzhou
Management Institute and it has become the cradle of developing
the Group’s management talents. By the end of 2016, 10,855
people had been recorded in the training.

AR - 2mMaNEgEERNBEHEE T ASE
3,499A - (R B9 232.23%  MZMEE T2
ANER7,356 A 9 BIMh67.77% : 720164
SMETRFWHFEIESAR29,115/) KM
ZH B THEIE S R53,527/ ) R o

The number of male employees who attend Shenzhou School
of Management is 3,499, representing 32.23% of the total male
employees while that of female employees is 7,356, representing
67.77% of the total female employees. In 2016, the cumulative
training time of male employees was 29,115 hours while that of
female employees was 53,527 hours.
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The table below shows the training number and time of employees

by job position of employees:

I AE Bok

Number of
RE IR By job position trainees Percentage
SREEE Senior Management 242 2.23%
FAREIRE Middle Management 3,206 29.53%
HMBT Other Employees 7,407 68.24%
et Total 10,855 100.00%
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WABZER NERGERERE - TERE
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Shenzhou School of Management was established on 21 September
2012. The preliminary training target was the management staff
of garment manufacturing department. The school formulates the
curriculum according to the training requirements of the Company
and devotes to enhancing the management level of management
staff above the position of group leader, so as to enhance the quality
and efficiency of the products in the production site.

The Group was successfully selected by Ningbo City as the
third batch of pilot enterprises for self appraisal of enterprise
engineer qualification since December 2014. Self appraisal of
enterprise engineer qualification effectively combines corporate
and government performance appraisal. Approved persons are
recognized by the enterprise and will be awarded professional
technical qualification certificate by the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security.

In addition to training opportunities, certain managerial staffs are
provided with promotions to higher positions so that they can
demonstrate and further hone their management skills.
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5.2 Career prospects for employees

Our employees have fair and adequate access to learning
and trainings as well as promotion opportunities. Shenzhou’s
Performance Committee has set up branches in every department
of the Company, establishing a standardized system whereby the
development of employees and the enterprise can be mutually
integrated. We encourage our employees to engage in trainings
with regard to their own specialized duties and other industrial
technologies, and provide such learning opportunities as well as the
possibilities of promotions and adjustments to our employees.

6. OPERATING PRACTICES

6.1 Supply Chain Management

Major Operating Regions:

Shenzhou Group currently has operations in the regions shown in the
following picture: the green color represents the production base of
Shenzhou in Ningbo; the yellow color represents the sales offices of
Shenzhou; the orange color represents the production bases other

than Ningbo.

Sea of
Japan

n

4

S
Shenzhou-Ningbo

SN

- S
¢ Cambodia

RNREEEiE
Operating Regions of Shenzhou Group
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The table below shows the number of major raw material suppliers of
the Group by geographical region.

HEEHE Bok

Number of
BR(ESE) &8 Country (District) Name Suppliers Percentage
H China 310 78.68%
A Hong Kong, the PRC 25 6.35%
=N Japan 16 4.06%
FEZE China Taiwan 13 3.30%
o] Vietnam 11 2.79%
B Thailand 4 1.02%
0% P Macau, the PRC 3 0.76%
EH America 2 0.51%
145 Korea 2 0.51%
N Italy 2 0.51%
R ikt Malaysia 2 0.51%
TN Singapore 1 0.25%
I =* Switzerland 1 0.25%
B Ireland 1 0.25%
ENE India 1 0.25%
BET Total 394 100.00%

AEBETEWMBERARERAMTEBEERAA
THERAXEEERI(ERECER RKRE
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The working system of the main subsidiary of the Group, Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (% & BME 4 BR 2 E), manages
the implementation of critical working processes, and controls and
affects the horizontal linking up of the working processes at the
same time, and all working processes form an organic integrity
thereby.

To ensure the smooth operation of the critical processes, the Group
adopts systematic management measures and formulates a series
of management systems to fulfill the requirements of the processes
and provide tactical execution. At the same time, we utilize
various measures such as management by objectives to stipulate
key performance indicators to control and improve the working
processes.
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6.2 Procurement process

Dedicated staff of the designated departments is responsible for
the procurement of materials of the Group. The materials procured
mainly include cotton yarn, dyestuffs, trims, office supplies,
fixed assets, equipment and spare parts, and canteen supplies.
Procurement cost control is an important measure to enhance profit
on products. The quality of cotton yarn, dyestuffs and trims procured
will directly affect the quality of products of the Group and the
corporate image. Procurement is one of the most important aspects
affecting product competitiveness.

To ensure the effectiveness of the procurement process, the Group
formulates management documents such as “Procurement Control
Procedures”. The chart of the procurement process of the Group is
as follows:

Chart of Procurement Process

% 5R5T#| Demand Plan

REBFAGE

Purchase Requisiton

|
'v

$REE =12 Purchasing Plan

v
HHFERT 12 Selection of Suppliers
v

BRI ER

Determination of purchase price

FETER R RNRBAN

Entering into Framework Agreement

or Purchase Contract

v
EEMERE

Management of Supply Process

v

B8 Inspection for Acceptance

v

N & Fail N
2 ves =& iBiA Pass or Falil SR 3R E Return of Goods
=

]

v v
{43k Payment

v

B EES S5tE
Financial Control, Accounting etc.

ERAE ISR AT A

Post Assessment.of Procurement Business
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Topic Concerned

Topics concerned by our suppliers and the channels we used to
communicate with our suppliers are shown in the following chart:

BEARX

Communication Channel

e 7 AT ff R

Supplier policies and requirements

REEM

Green products

EmEE
Product quality

eSS RS

e
Supplier

QEST &4
Sustainability

BRE
$%laﬂﬁk%%ﬁ“ THERIZR
E2mETER BREEBREMER 2R
Bt BB RE BRI EEEE - RER
ARRBEZ BRI EARLEE BXAEE
REEARZ BB M EHEE K -

AEBEKR —ELEREERRE BRER
FHt R E IR ke E - BBl 3 R BEK
BesE BREEZ(CERERAEE-

Incoming
Inspection

Response to climate changes

):EHH = E/\
Regular meetings

HEBAS

Supplier summit

BIERMTIAR

Cooperative technology projects

e & Mamig

Workshops and forums

Risk management

The Group has established a list of chemicals and conducts
management and control on dangerous or restricted chemicals to
ensure that the dyes, agents and detergent used during production
will strictly follow the management and control list. Non-tested and
uncertified chemicals are not allowed to be used in production and a
stringent identification and tracking system is being established.

The Group has developed a chemical management and control
process which covers dyestuff supplier management, incoming
materials inspection, product testing and wastewater discharge
inspection, ensuring a comprehensive management and control of

chemical applications.

AEAIH
Quality
Innovation

STREER
B RER
Metrological
Control and
Model
Inspection

HEEH
Quality Control

DALY
Finished
Product

Inspection

BEEBRTFEE

Focuses of Quality Control Work
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6.3 Safety and environmental protection management
process

The Group’s major subsidiaries have adopted the I1ISO 14001 and

OHSAS 18001 management systems to strengthen the safety

and environmental protection, after considering facts such as a

large number of employees, plenty of production equipment and

considerable management span.

The Group’s ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 certificates are shown
below:
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ESCH8001: 2004
GEST 24000- 24
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TESRAEDR

ISO 14001 =
ISO 14001 certificate
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ISO 18001 &=
ISO 18001 certificate

In terms of safety and environmental protection, the Group
strengthens the safety education, establishes safety operation
specifications for related job posts and enhances equipment
maintenance. On the other hand, considering a large number of
employees, the Group emphasizes on food safety and occupational
health administration.
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With safety, health and environmental protection in mind, the Group
has established a safety department, an emergency response team
and a professional Three Wastes Treatment System to reduce the
use of toxic and hazardous substances to meet the standards of
Three Wastes treatment, thus ensuring the occupational health of
employees, maintaining clean production, energy conservation and
carbon reduction, and responding to and dealing with emergencies.
For the major focus areas, see the following chart.
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Focuses of Safety and Environmental Protection Work
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In the meantime, Bureau of Work Safety of Zhejiang Province
awarded Standardized Safe Production Certificate to the Group in
2016 and recognized it as Second-Class Enterprise in Production
Safety Standardization (textile and garment). Therefore, based on
checking and controlling of potential hazard, the Group complied
with the principle of “safety first, emphasis on prevention and
comprehensive governance” and uplifted safe production to reduce
accidents and ensure personal safety and health as well as the
smooth running of production and operation activities.
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TERAEENZ2EERELEE:

The picture below is the Standardized Safe Production Certificate:
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6.4 Intellectual property management

The Group obtained the certification of the intellectual property
management in 2015 awarded by Zhongzhi (Beijing) Certification
Co., Ltd. to monitor and guarantee the intellectual property of the
Company.

The picture below is the certification of the intellectual property
management in 2015 awarded by Zhongzhi (Beijing) Certification
Co., Ltd.:
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Certification of Intellectual Property Management
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65 HEEEERE 6.5 Quality management process
ZIKE BEERREREERKBLEMEEE  The Group conducts a full range of monitoring measures in the
EBERAXEHE2EENEGE - BEEEEEEE  purchase and manufacture of products based on a comprehensive
g BE2RATHE- quality management system. Please refer to the following chart for its
quality management process.

GTEERRE
Quality Management Process

& £ B 4Z Quality Objectives

Hae 5 2 3

B E&EE Quality Management  Quality 2

B85 A & B B B 1RE BeuE
Quallt planning J Quahty Control J Quality Assurance Quiality Improvement

EEmHAEETR AT HNEMEEZE  Quality control is a very important segment in the quality
D ETBDRAEEREEET - BA&AIG - management process. It mainly embodies the supervision, inspection
AEBRIEEEH 2 NKER- and testing of product quality. The Group has established six focuses

of quality control.
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ISO 9001 certificate
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Topic Concerned

6.6 Customer Satisfaction

The Group aims to understand all kinds of customer requirements,
expectations and concerns by listening to them. Through the
following methods, the Group has transformed and satisfied
customer requirements and expectations and promoted its market
expansion and service improvement. Furthermore, when customers
visit the Group, the sales department will gather directly relevant
department heads and the person-in-charge to attend meetings to
have a comprehensive understanding of customers’ expectations.
The relevant departments will convene special meetings to seek
specific solutions to those aspects that fail to meet customers’
expectations for the time being. The direct person-in-charge from
the sales, research and development and production departments
will attend regular Sales and Operations meetings every week to
discuss the current problems and customers’ requirements, analyze
the causes and find solutions to meet customers’ requirements.

Topics concerned by our customers and the channels we used to
communicate with our customers are shown in the following charts:

BEARX

Communication Channel

AREER
Sustainability

SEIPETHEH
Regular meetings with senior and
mid-manager

BIRREZ: .
Employees' health and safety EEREERAT
Client satisfaction survey
= ,5\ EE
SOC|aI responsibility 28T K
N Factory visits
HEIRREMm e
=5 Comfortable eco-products EHEFPRERS
Visits to clients’ operation
Customer g headquarters
Operating performance
] MEFBEAERD
HEEER Co-establishing cooperative centres
Supply chain development with clients
ABRENMEEPERING  AAR@EETF  To protect the security of customers’ information from leaking out,
BEEENREZE R ToRERZFEEFS  the Company entered into confidential agreements with specific
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customers and also protected the patents of specific customers.

In the policy of protecting the personal information (privacy)
of customers, the Group establishes relevant documents of
procedures, management system of customer relationship to protect
the customer information from leakage. In the meantime, in the
policy of implementing and monitoring the personal information
(privacy) of customers, the person-in-charge of respective
department conducts regular maintenance and review of the
information of customers to prevent the personal and private

information of customers form leakage.
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In 2016, the Group was awarded “Talent” award and “Speed” award
by Creation Center Shanghai 2016 of Adidas. Furthermore, the
Group was awarded “Leadership award” and “Sustainability award”
by Adidas in the Global Supplier Summit 2016 of Adidas. Meanwhile,
the Group was also awarded “Quality award” and “Sustainability
award” by North Asia 2016 of Adidas. In addition, the Group was
awarded “Safe Award” by Supplier Summit 2016 of Puma. The
following pictures are the trophies awarded to our Group by Adidas
and Puma.
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In the meantime, the Group was awarded the Certificate of Zhejiang
Famous Brand Products by the Quality and Technical Supervision
Bureau of Zhejiang Province i TAE EHITEEH) in 2016.
According to the Quality and Technical Supervision Bureau of
Zhejiang Province, a total of 879 applications for Zhejiang Famous
Brand Products have passed the re-assessment in the current year,
which will expire on December 31 2019.

The picture below is the Certificate of Zhejiang Famous Brand
Products:
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In addition, the Group was awarded “Top 100 Ningbo Brand in
2016” by China Brand Research Center, Research Institute of
Yung Business in Ningbo, Research Institute of Yung Business
Development in Ningbo and Council of Yung Business in Ningbo in
2016 and the value of the brand amounted to RMB6.54 billion. In
2016, there were 64 brands for the manufacturing industry on the
list, among which was a brand of the Company.

The picture below is the Certificate of Top 100 Ningbo Brand in
2016:
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In the meantime, the Group was awarded Top 100 Technical
Innovation Enterprises in Zhejiang Province in 2014 and 2016,
which recognizes the technical innovation ability of the Group. The
Top 100 Technical Innovation Enterprises in Zhejiang Province are
the model pioneers selected for in-depth implementation of the
strategy of innovation-driven development, speeding up the building
of innovative province and encouraging technical innovation of
enterprises. The assessment factors include devotion to innovation
and innovation output and involves 7 aspects including proportion
of research and development fees and staff, average research
and development fees for research and development staff, the
amount of intellectual property rights owned by 1,000 research and
development staff, revenue rate of sales of new products, labor
productivity of the whole staff and profit-taxation rate. The Group
plays a model role in uplifting the industry and promoting the local
economic development in its advantageous industry of textile.
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TERAEBEE T —NFEMNIITEEMA  The picture below is the certification of the Top 100 Technical
e W BRI RS Innovation Enterprises in Zhejiang Province in 2014:
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R-Z—RAF—AHE AEBMTAF - Since January 2015, the registered trademark of Shenzhou Knitting

B 8% B ST M R AZ (REAESE - 7226707) #  (registered number: 7226707), a subsidiary of the Group, was

MIEATITRTHREERRA MIAERME recognized as a “Famous Brand of Zhejiang Province” by Zhejiang

Z] AZLRENMELSYAEBERFERE  Provincial Administration of Industry and Commerce, signifying the

FENET BPHATHMRBEETANE  recognition of the Group’s development over the past few years and

BHEAMZE- reflecting the influence and reputation of the Shenzhen brand in the
industry.
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The Group vigorously encourages patents filings by research and
development staff, introduces rewarding policies for the authorization
of patents for inventions, steadily promotes patent commercialization
and endeavors to create its own brand products. In recent years,
the Group has had 35 self-developed projects with an annual
average of 23 series of patents turning into products, The Group
has over 575 new products, and 163 patents, including 69 patents
of new materials and fabrics and 94 patents for transformation
and innovation of equipment and technique during production. In
addition, it also has 98 new invention patents and 38 corporate
standards (including an addition of 8 corporate standards in 2016).
The Group introduced encouragement policies on technological
innovation, including the Rewarding Methods on Scientific and
Technological Achievements and established a scientific and

comprehensive incentive mechanism on technological innovation.

Annual Report 2016 4

85



86

RIR - HERERERE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RBEHRE ARAREERZ 2N REAM
HERAETHBENSZSECETHEHART
BEARENRRERIESR -

7. RES
AEMANARNERERALERESE
ABEBMNEERT -+ EUR —BX
BIOE CEEBASE L BELA
EE 2 TATH R EEEE.

RE_ZZTFY BAREEERH[HE]
¥ WBRHRNKERR EESUES IS
AEBZRAKREFR - B REMAEEBT K
SETEOEBFFIREPBREEE -

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company in respect of health and safety and other matters relating
to product responsibility.

7. ANTI-CORRUPTION:

In the over two decades of the Shenzhou Group’s history, the
founder and former chairman of the Group, Mr. Ma Baoxing, and
each senior management have always been focusing on “integrity”
in establishing the corporate culture. Integrity is the code of conduct

and moral standard of the Group.

Back in early 2000, Mr. Ma wrote the two Chinese characters “# {5
(integrity)” and hung them in the centre of the lobby hall, reminding
every employee that it is the principle and requirement of the Group.
Every employee must abide by it and the Group also welcomes close
monitoring by related authorities and customers.

R-B-—RF - AEBREEMNAERES
FRRREER R

In 2016, the Group had no law suit of corruption and bribery.
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The Group has set up internal audit department and has engaged
Ernst & Young as external auditor to improve the Group’s anti-
corruption standard in preventing corruption in the Group.

The Group’s employee handbook sets out expressed requirements
in relation to anti-corruption, anti-bribery and conflict of interest.
Accordingly, the employees should follow the requirements.

The anti-corruption procedures of the Group according to the
guideline for the staff are as follows:

(1)  We educate major staff for some major positions in anti-
corruption and anti-bribery;

(2) Suppliers and service providers which have business
relationship with the Group should sign integrity undertakings
and anti-commercial bribery agreement;

(3)  We have special email and phone line to receive the report
against corruption behavior from people in and outside the
company;

(4) Internal auditor and competent department analyze data
irregularly, know characteristics and features of corruption
behavior and implement and improve the prevention measures
and systems in anti-corruption;

(6) We should deal with the corruption matter in work in a timely
manner and report to competent department. People involved
in the crime should be transferred to the public security organ.

The
monitoring of prevention of corruption. For example, when we

Group takes relevant measures in implementation and

first sign contract with new suppliers, suppliers must sign integrity
undertakings and anti-commercial bribery agreement simultaneously.
In addition, internal auditor and competent department check email
and receive reporting calls at any time and register and investigate
reporting matters. The investigation results will be reported to
relevant leaders and departments and relevant staff undertake that
they will keep the personal information of the informer confidential.
Further, relevant departments including internal audit and legal affairs
monitor and review daily course of business, track and investigate
the abnormal information and circumstances.

If the staff of the Group finds corruption behavior, they primarily
report corruption to senior staff through reporting email and phone
calls. Senior staff will track and investigate relevant corruption
matter.
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8. INTERACTION IN COMMUNITY

8.1. Community involvement

Since 2014, the Group joined Ning bo (Beilun) Charity Association.
In 2016, the Group was awarded the 4th Top Ten Co. in Ningbo by
Ningbo (Beilun) Charity Association.

The following picture is the certificates of merit awarded to the
Group by Ningbo (Beilun) Charity Association:
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The Group considers that supporting the community is one of the
driving forces for corporate development, as well as an important
motivation for building a “Harmonious Shenzhou”. The Group places
great emphasis on cultivating social responsibility awareness in its
staff and encourages them to participate in charitable community
activities. The Group contributed approximately RMB2,060,000
in 2016 towards participating in community activities and making
various donations for charitable causes.
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The main use of donations for charitable causes is to devote to
various charity activities. For example, the Group has established
environmental protection fund in the aspect of environmental
protection. In addition, in the aspect of education, it invests
approximately RMB100,000 in summer tutorial class, which is
“Speak Love Loud”, so that children can have a happy summer
vacation. It also contributes approximately RMB120,000 to about
10 university students who have financial difficulties in the form
of payment of tuition fees so that they can have opportunities to
enter universities. Meanwhile, it establishes scholarship for Minshan
School so that more students with financial difficulties can receive
educational sponsorship.

The picture below is the activity of “Speak Love Loud”:
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The Group establishes an environmental protection fund with
enterprises nearby and invests approximately RMB1 million to this
fund for the purpose of protecting the local environment of Beilun.

Iil!&jti

The Group has devoted to the free blood donation over the years.
Since 2008, we have organized over 40 events for free blood
donation and a total of over 4,000 people have donated blood.
The blood that we have donated amounts to over 1.2 million ml. In
recent 3 years, the Group has held 17 events for free blood donation
with over 2,000 people and 58,000 ml blood. We have obtained the
honor including Outstanding Unit for Free Blood Donation in Zhejiang
and Promotion Award for Free Blood Donation of the city.

In 2016, the Group was awarded Red Cross Charity Award in
Beilun in the fourth representative meeting of Red Cross in Beilun.
The activities of Red Cross embody the dedication of love, deliver
positive spirit and love, which spreads the spirit of Red Cross across
the community and aims to build a harmonious community.

The picture below is Red Cross Charity Award in Beilun in 2016:
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8.2 Participation in non-profit organizations

Shenzhou has become a member of Textile Exchange since October
2011. Textile Exchange is a non-profit organization based in USA,
the mission of which is to promote the sustainable development of
the entire textile value chain. Shenzhou has all along been actively
participating in industry conferences, seminars and other activities,
sharing best practices with relevant parties and discussing the future
development of the textile industry.

Since 2012, guided by PUMA, our Group’s major subsidiary, Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. has participated in the development of
PUMA C2C (Cradle to Cradle) closed-loop ecological environmentally
friendly products. From its selection of original yarns to dyeing
materials, printing material and agents, this category had complied
with the C2C environmentally-friendly products requirements and
passed the C2C products certification. For more relevant C2C
information, please refer to C2C website: www.c2c-world.com.

The Group has been a member of BCI (in full “better cotton
initiative”) since 2013. The keynote of BCI (in full “better cotton
initiative”) is to ensure the cultivation of cotton to be more beneficial
to cotton farmers, the cultivation environment and the future
development of the industry. Nike and Adidas, being the major
customers of Shenzhou, are both members of BCI Organization. The
six major principles (quality assurance, water resources, the health
of soil for cotton cultivation, protection of the ecological environment
of the surrounding areas of cotton cultivation, quality of cotton and
decent work) of BCI are increasingly recognized by the community.
These are in line with Shenzhou'’s rationale of emphasizing social
responsibilities and promoting business with a conscience, which are

therefore well-received by the management of Shenzhou.
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The Group also concerns on the protection of the wild animal. The
Group became a silver member of WWF since 2013.

The following pictures are the trophies awarded to our Group by
WWF from 2013 to 2016.
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9. OTHER AWARDS:

Sustainability:

Starting from September 2015, Shenzhou International was included
in the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index Series, which
includes Hong Kong listed companies with the most outstanding
performance in terms of corporate sustainability. The index is a
cross-market index covering leaders of corporate sustainability
in Hong Kong and Mainland. The constituent stocks are carefully
selected with reference to the rating results of sustainability by
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, an independent professional
accreditation body, in accordance to the framework it designed
for sustainability rating. This enables the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index Series to achieve objectivity, reliability and of high
investment significance, offering a series of quality benchmark for the
index funds under the theme of corporate sustainability.

Below is the certificate of membership of the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index Series of Shenzhou International in 2016:

Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index Series

Certificate of Membership

This is to certify that

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Ltd.

is a constituent company of the

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index Series

September 2016

The Hlaing Seng Corgrorsic Snsinability ndey Serica. Launchod by Hang Seeg Indoms Company Limisal,

inchuadey compunicn that perfrm widl in

Companies in 1he Hang Seng

cmponass nneamahilin

a1n Senziaabilivg Inskex Sevien S amvainad  high mandand

i
oif performance in grvonmenaal, wcisl and corpoacare gevernane apeen

Vincent Kwan
Diwnitar asd Gracts] Miaget
Haag Seng Iralean Comuiry Lanienl

) | EEEN

* | HANG SENG INDEXES
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Corporate Governance:

In terms of corporate governance, Shenzhou International was
recognized in 2015 and was named as one of the 2015 Best
Corporate Governance Awards for Listed Companies by Ta Kung
Pao, and was selected as one of the Private Companies with the
Largest Market Capitalization on the Hong Kong Stocks Ranking, the
Mainland Enterprises Category in 2014-2015 (2014-2015% Z [
AECZEBANFTERMETENRAMER®) by Yazhou Zhoukan.
Furthermore, during 2016, Shenzhou International was awarded
“ENTERPRISE AWARD” in 2016 DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Awards 2016. This greatly encourages Shenzhou International and
proves that the community is confident in the corporate governance
of Shenzhou International. Therefore, the Group will continue its
efforts to raise the level of corporate governance, so as to meet the
higher international standards of corporate governance.

Below is the Group’s trophy of “ENTERPRISE AWARD” in 2016 by
DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards 2016:

A

BAY® o
SENEERNR
salimphe dmanal

A E DHL/SCMP
LI HONG KONG
LD BUSINESS AWARDS
DHL/SCH
HONE T 016
BUSINESS AWARDS DHL/BW R
0 mm
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The Group was awarded “Zhejiang May 1st Labour Certificate” in
2016, which is one of the highest provincial honor that the labor
group can get. It is also an important honor that Zhejiang Federation
of Trade Unions awards to the entrepreneurial labor groups which
make significant contributions to the society. The recommendation
standards and the selection procedures are strict. After over 2
months of recommendation and selection, the honor was awarded
officially following recommendation, preliminary review, publication,
re-examination and final review.

The picture below is “Zhejiang May 1st Labour Certificate” in 2016:

T O B 7
BrratHiaednsgd

UL 47 AR

Energy conservation and emission reduction:

To uplift the production capacity of the Group and decrease the
impact on environment in production effectively, the Group has
been endeavoring to energy conservation and emission reduction
in production. In 2009, the Group was awarded “Enterprise with
Outstanding Energy-saving and Emission-reducing in 2009,
“2011 Group with Outstanding Pollution Reduction in Ningbo”,
“2012 Industrial Cyclic Economy Pilot Enterprise in Ningbo”, “2013
Enterprise with Outstanding Water-saving in Ningbo”, “Unit with
Outstanding Energy Conservation and Consumption reduction
in the 11th Five-year Plan in Ningbo”, “Unit with Outstanding
Pollution Reduction in the 11th Five-year Plan in Ningbo”, “Model
Enterprise of Industrial Recycling Economy in Ningbo”, “2012 Energy
Conservation and Emission Reduction in Knitting Industry in China”
and “2014 Water-saving Enterprise (Unit) in Zhejiang” from 2009 to
the current year in energy conservation and emission reduction. The
awards of the Group in energy conservation and emission reduction
sector are as below:
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2011 Group with Outstanding Pollution Reduction
in Ningbo

BT [+ — R 5REEETIELESN
Unit with Outstanding Pollution Reduction in the 11th
Five-year Plan in Ningbo

BERM [+ R eI EREEM
Unit with Outstanding Energy Conservation and
Consumption reduction in the 11th Five-year Plan in Ningbo

012FERM IRBREERBEE
2012 Industrial Cyclic Economy Pilot Enterprise in Ningbo
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2012 Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction in Knitting Industry in China
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2013 F BN M A KB ELE
2013 Enterprise with Outstanding
Water-saving in Ningbo

2014 T & Sk B (D2 (B86L)
2014 Water-saving Enterprise (Unit) in Zhejiang

FR M B £ @142 fR A BR A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



EERENEEEXNEEE

Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management

HITES
BRERE A+ =m AEERTESF =
FRIEEZECEIR BHARLKEM A&
AEENBEBERERER EHBEABEA
SHARFREB - BAREE—N/\NFEMALE
B A 1% 8 FA 4B EAR 4 R K AN B T ST 4 AR
HBIE-MBEAEEE FLESHAAE
BrePHgErE-ERANEEEES
PRAR ([T ]) MEI0CTE R
ERIBERERAKE - FE _TTRFMA
AR —EETEFEME AR AR (M
HE O ESERE RS- —SMA—BEMFE
REZESEIF - FRERBINIEARREK
NRPBESSIXHEReR SEE[ER
MEEHE] DN TESE—EALE] M+
HZEEZRHEME SHLE - FREBEBMN
HEMBERMECMEENE L (HRXHRHE
BLEMEENXBERRLE) -

EEMELE DR ARBERTESRRE
RE AEAKENEE THEAMSHES
BREBEF EHBXABB - TNLFE
BoEAERENHIIERE FB(BET
XEBIR —hW/\NFMBEARKEA K2
AT & RN AR B TE- A& E
B EBEEEAEERBENEIELE LR
MElREE - B - ETAFHANKR—H
EERMtBeEE - R_TTRAF+AE
“E-CF-A mERLERREZEELIRE-
WABEEEENKK -

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Jianrong (FE#%8), aged 53, is an Executive Director,
the Chairman of the Group and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is a senior economist. He is responsible for the
overall business development strategy of the Group and has over
36 years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill (43 %45 477 & )
and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant (71 B 3 &+ 4%
AREE B ) . After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the manager
of the knitting and weaving department, a deputy general manager
and the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Weaving Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating entity of the Group.
He has been the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. He was appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma is
a deputy to the People’s Congress of Zhejiang Province. He was
awarded “Charity Model of Ningbo (Z & HZEZ 4 ) ", “Charity
Prize of Zhejiang — Individual” (#7)T & % & — il A 2&) and “Prize for
Outstanding Charity Contribution in China”( M Bl Z =52t HE#E) .
Mr. Ma is the brother-in-law of Mr. Huang Guanlin and is a cousin of
Mr. Ma Renhe (his father and Mr. Ma Renhe’s father are brothers).

Mr. Huang Guanlin (ZEIM) , aged 52, is an Executive Director
and the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 29 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (#7;T T 2
AE ), majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill
in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005. Mr.
Huang was the chairman of the Nomination Committee during the
period from October 2005 to March 2012. He is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Ma Jianrong.
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Mr. Ma Renhe (F1=#), aged 57,
a deputy general manager of the Group and a member of the

is an Executive Director,

Remuneration Committee. He is responsible for administration,
dyeing and finishing affairs of the Group and has over 40 years of
experience in textile industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1989,
he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill and Hangzhou Linping Knitting
and Garment Plant. After joining the Group, Mr. Ma worked as the
manager and a deputy general manager of the dyeing and finishing
department of Ningbo Weaving. He has been a deputy general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2002. From October 2005
to March 2012, Mr. Ma was also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and subsequently redesignated as a member of the
Remuneration Committee. He is a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong (his
father and Mr. Ma Jianrong’s father are brothers).

Ms. Zheng Miaohui (B &) , aged 62, was an Executive
Director and a deputy general manager of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2016. She was responsible for the financial
management of the Group and she has over 32 years of experience
in financial management, and she obtained an accountant
qualification certificate. After joining the Group in 1988, Ms. Zheng
served as the manager and an assistant to the general manager
of the finance department of Ningbo Weaving. She was a deputy
general manager of Shenzhou Knitting from April 2005 to January
2017. Ms. Zheng resigned on 1 January 2017 as an Executive

Director of the Company.

Mr. Wang Cunbo ( E1F%) , aged 45, is an Executive Director and
a deputy general manager of the Group. He joined the Group as the
department head of the finance department of the Group, promoted
as the financial controller of Shenzhou Knitting in May 2004 and
became deputy general manager of the group since 16 December
2016. He was appointed as a Director of the Group in 2011. He
graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology ( #TT T¥ K2)
majoring in biology and chemical engineering, with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in 1995. In the same year, Mr. Wang
studied at Zhejiang University of Technology where he obtained a
master’s degree in management in 1998. In addition, he obtained
the certificates of the PRC certified public accountant, the PRC
registered tax agent and the PRC certified public valuer and senior
accountant and the operating permit of the PRC public certified
accountant engaged in securities and futures-related business. Prior
to joining the Group, he was a partner of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde
United Accounting Firm ( 2% KK EHE A 5TRIE15ET) |, a deputy
general manager of Ningbo Yongde Corporate Management and
Consulting Firm (28 K EPEEBEREHAT) ,
years of experience as certified accountant.

and has over 6
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Ms. Chen Zhifen (FRZ %), aged 48, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 1 December 2013. She is a deputy general
manager of the Group, responsible for all garment manufacturing
departments, and has over 27 years of experience in the textile
industry. After joining the Group in April 1990, she worked as
the section chief, the manager of the garment manufacturing
department, the manager of the No. 2 and No. 6 garment
manufacturing departments, an assistant to the general manager
of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general manager of the
Group. During the period from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms.
Chen studied at Naval University of Engineering (/& T2 K&)
majoring in management engineering. She also graduated from TBM
LeanSigma Institute with a certificate for completion of the Kaizen
Promotion Office Toward World-Class Manufacturing Excellence in
2007 and the College of Economics of Zhejiang University (i iT A2
w2 ) with a certificate for the senior seminar class for modern
entrepreneur managers in 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Xianpin (B Ef), aged 52, studied accounting in
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the PRC
(PR BT 48 K &) from 1982 to 1986 and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Economics majoring in accounting. Mr. Jiang started
teaching at Zhejiang University of Technology (J#/IL T % K &)
in 1986 and is currently a professor in the School of Accounting,
Trade and Management (48 B2 2t ) of Zhejiang University of
Technology. Mr. Jiang is also a key teaching staff in the University’s
MBA Education Centre and has been engaged by the Science
Technology Department of Zhejiang Province (/T & &l £ &)
as its special finance expert, as well as a director of Institute of
Finance Engineering, Zhejiang Province, PRC (/T & & @t T2 &2
BEADE. M.
Jiang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director

@), and the chief financial adviser to /N BEE
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 1 April
2012.
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Mr. Chen Genxiang (BR#R#) , aged 69, has over 47 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Chen obtained a certificate of
dyeing and finishing engineer from L& 42 7. Mr. Chen joined
the Company’s subsidiary, Shenzhou Knitting, in 1998 and served
until his retirement. Mr. Chen worked for the Group until he retired in
2007 and before his retirement, he was a deputy general manager
of Shenzhou Khnitting responsible for the product development of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Mr. Chen served as
an assistant to the factory manager of Shanghai Knitting No. 20
Plant and a deputy general manager of Shanghai Baoye Knitting
Company Limited. Mr. Chen joined the Group in August 2011 as
an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee. He was promoted
to the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee in April 2012.
Mr. Chen resigned on 1 January 2017 as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (3E/&H]) , aged 65, joined the Group on 1 April
2013 as an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Qiu
graduated from Party School of Ningbo Municipal Committee of the
Communist Party of China, holding a bachelor’s degree and the
qualification of practicing as an economist in Ningbo (Intermediate
level). He served as a factory manager of Ningbo Chemical Fibre
Plant (Z KL 24 4% ) , the chairman and chief executive of Z
BIEF S B, a manager of ZE R M4 4 T % A 7], the chairman
and chief executive of & 4 4 & B#E % 2 §], the party secretary
of the Communist Party Committee of the city of Fenghua. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Qiu served as the chief of Ningbo Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision (EF T EERMEEF) and the
secretary to the Party Committee and retired from these positions in
April 2012.

FR M B £ @42 fR A BR A 8] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



EERENEEEXNEEE

Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management

BRMBELE Nt N\ —E—=F+-F—H
MAXEBEEXTBLFENTESE EREE
ERERTMEESER -MRAEEEENM
ML BT HEEBR - 2 EMb THEWER T
TAZRERSPHEINM-R—NLEZTELA
E-ANZFNA BREEREEGZEIER
BEZEABMNM PREAEE £ERNRE
AR BHEA EZIAECEBR -BREE
TR—ANEFENAZ—ANRAFE+AEE
BEEGRZHEBITR-BER—AN\AF+
RE-AWNZHE=ZRAEEEEMAES (@)
EEZERLEZELR -BITIR—ANAAFENA
E-NMNZFZAEFEETLEZEFZLZ R
—NWN=ZF=ZAE=-ZTT=F— AHEET
EEmltmREZASZSE ERRERETIL
FREARNSZEETA-R_ZEZT_F_AZF
ZE——F=-A BRAAEAEETAKRE
ZealFE-BR-_E——FN\AEEEA
BEEMARBRNSZAZEGE EE TR
T-=FhARK-

RAMWE
RERELE W+ RZFEN\FAAM
AREE REASEBEERARWE -
REEBEB_+—FFZ YBEE 2F
MEREFZER -REARBIEHEERER
TEMRTEEEERREEE TR TR
REFHAAREANMAGERER S
SRV ARG B BB M A R SR AR R
BBAMSEtMAEgR -

Mr. Chen Xu (BR/8) , aged 68, joined the Group on 1 December
2013 as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee and Chairmain of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Chen graduated from Hangzhou Chemistry and Industry Institute
(FIN{EE2 T 2 24 ) with a diploma in chemical machinery and the
Leadership Training Class of the Party School of Zhejiang Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party GIT/ T & & £ R & 2055 FI1HE) .
Between July 1970 and September 1983, Mr. Chen held various
positions at Zhenhai Fertiliser Plant ()8 2 {t BB &) including
coordinator, deputy section chief of production and technology,
workshop director, deputy secretary of the party committee as well
as factory director. Mr. Chen also served as deputy head of the
organisation department of Zhenhai County Party Committee ( $8/5
S LM ED) from June 1985 to October 1985. He was a member
of the standing committee and the secretary of the Commission
for Discipline Inspection of Binhai (Beilun) District of Ningbo (2
KETES (b ) [&) between October 1985 and March 1992. He
was also a member of the standing committee of the Commission
for Discipline Inspection of Ningbo (%) 47 % ) between August
1989 and March 1992, the vice secretary and the secretary of the
commission and the chairman of the standing committee of the
Local People’s Congress of Binhai (Beilun) District ( Z )& it m & A
KEHEE) between March 1992 and January 2003. From February
2002 to March 2011, Mr. Chen served as the vice chairman of the
standing committee of the Local People’s Congress of Ningbo (2
WHAANEZEE) . He was appointed as the deputy director of the
advisory committee to the People’s Government of Ningbo ( % )&
ARBF##AZE S ) in August 2011 and retired from this position in
September 2013.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (BR#E8) , aged 46, joined the Group
in September 2008. He is currently the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 21 years of
experience in auditing, financial controlling, company secretarial
and accounting. Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in China Business
Management. Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Tax Adviser
in Hong Kong and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hu Jijun (#8422 ) , aged 48, is a deputy general manager of
the Group. He is responsible for sales and marketing of the Group
and has 27 years of sales and marketing experience in the Japanese
knitwear market. After joining the Group in September 1989, Mr.
Hu worked at the production and operation department of Ningbo
Weaving as the deputy manager and an assistant to the general
manager, responsible for export sales. He has been a deputy general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

Mr. Chen Lan (FR/E) , aged 51, is a deputy general manager of
the Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such
as cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 28 years
of experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (B Ei#) , aged 55, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the production planning of the Group,
and has over 29 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department ( &5k
— &) , assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.

Mr. Yan Delin (&%), aged 62, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, in charge of the operations of the Group’s garment
factory in Cambodia and has over 29 years of experience in textile
industry. He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as the head of the equipment
division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant, the
head of its office, and a deputy general manager of joint venture
companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office (RMBIER A E) ,
during which, he served as the general manager of a Cambodian
company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After joining the
Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy head of the
office of Ningbo Weaving and has been an assistant to the general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2005. He graduated from
the Correspondence College at the Party School of the Central
Committee of CCP, majoring in economic management.
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Mr. Jiang Tao (JI3#&), aged 50, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the Uniglo Business Department of
the Group. He has 21 years of experience in knitting and weaving
industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the Faculty of English at Shanghai
University (_ £/ K2) | majoring in English for international trade.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai Dongfang Rimian
Company Limited (_E/8 3R 75 B4 B A Al) . After joining the Group
in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant to the general
manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for the sales to
Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (4 #) , aged 53, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for the Group’s technology
and quantity affairs, and has over 28 years of experience in textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy
factory manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant ( 2§ 1t fs AR 5
8 ) , in charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager
of the production and operation department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving.

Mr. Hu Yonghai (#7k &), aged 51, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of
fabric technology, and has over 28 years of experience in textile
industry. He obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu
graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (#7/T T3 K&)
with a bachelor’s degree in industrial management engineering. He
joined the Group immediately after graduation and worked as an
assistant manager, deputy manager of the production and operation
department and an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo
Weaving, responsible for the affairs of fabrics and technology.

Mr. Ma Bin ( E#2) , aged 46, joined the Group in 2001. Currently,
he is an assistant to the general manager and the manager of the
NIKE Business Department of the Group. He is fully in charge of
the operation and project management and customer relationship
maintenance of the NIKE business department. Mr. Ma has 17
years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the Group,
he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department of
European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the NIKE business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University and later obtained
his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Ma served as the business development manager of the Sealand
Securities.
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Mr. Song Qing (R E), aged 47, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the ADIDAS Business Department
of the Group. He is fully in charge of the general management
and system construction of the ADIDAS Business Department of
the Group. He assists the general manager with other aspects of
operations and has 19 years of experience in the textile industry.
In 1994, Mr. Song graduated from the Department of Computer
Science and Technology of the Northwestern Polytechnical
University. He obtained a Master of Technology from the National
University of Singapore in 2005 and graduated from the NTU-SJTU
Joint Executive MBA (EMBA) Programme in 2008. Having joined the
Group in January 2007, Mr. Song has 10 years of work experience
in Singapore. Beginning in 1997, he worked as a senior software
development engineer for a software development firm for a year.
In 1998, he joined x#E T XM AFRAF of the textile industry
and served as its IT Manager and Chief Information Officer CIO
successively.

Mr. Xu Huiguo (R El) , aged 64, joined the Group in 2011. He
is currently a deputy general manager of the Group in charge of
the administrative affairs of the Group. Mr. Xu has over 45 years
of experience in administration and management. Mr. Xu obtained
an undergraduate qualification in economic management from the
Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. and is a qualified
engineer. Prior to joining the Group, he was the team leader of the
wiring team (#4238 ) of Ningbo Electricity Bureau (B R EZ/E) | a
manager and the secretary of the party branch of Z ) ERKIE L
# 2 F], the general manager of 2 )73 & & /A A, the chief of Beilun
District Electricity Bureau (1t @ #£% /&) and the general manager of
Ningbo Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power Co., Ltd.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
garment trading. The primary activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements and the Management Discussion and Analysis section of
this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position and principal risks
and uncertainties facing the group are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement, Financial Review and Business Review sections
respectively from pages 10 to 13, pages 23 to 32 and pages 21
to 23 of this annual report. The future development of the Group’s
business is discussed throughout this annual report including in the
Chairman’s Statement and Future Prospect and Strategies from
pages 10 to 13 and 33 to 34 of this annual report. In addition,
more details regarding the Group’s performance by reference to
environmental and social-related key performance indicators and
policies, as well as relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers, are provided in this annual report in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report. The discussion above forms part of
this Report of the Directors.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 126 to 235.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$1.20
per share (including a special dividend of HK$0.35 per share)
(equivalent to approximately RMB1.07 per share) for the year ended
31 December 2016 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 9 June 2017. However, the
proposed payment of the dividend shall be subject to approval by
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
to be held on 26 May 2017 and subject to such approval having
been obtained, the payment of such dividend is expected to be in
late June 2017 (which will be confirmed in a separate announcement
after the relevant resolution is passed at the AGM).

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30 June
2016.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company had waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 42 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately RMB2,998,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2016,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands,
amounted to RMB1,613,910,000, of which RMB1,501,687,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 236.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2016.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the Latest Practicable Date
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ma Jianrong

Mr. Huang Guanlin

Mr. Ma Renhe

Ms. Zheng Miaohui (resigned on 1 January 2017)
Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Genxiang (resigned on 1 January 2017)
Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Qiu Weiguo
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In accordance with Article 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Wang Cunbo, Mr. Jiang Xianpin and Mr. Qiu
Weiguo shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election thereat.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations
of independence from Mr. Chen Xu, Mr. Jiang Xianpin and Mr. Qiu
Weiguo pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that
they are all independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which will be automatically
renewed for another term of three years subject to compliance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing Rules
until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the respective service
contract. According to the respective service contract, it may be
terminated at any time by either party giving the other party not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years which
will be automatically renewed for another term of three years subject
to compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the
respective service contract. According to the respective service
contract, it may be terminated at any time by the Independent
Non-executive Director giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.

Under the respective service contracts, each of the Executive
Directors is entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus
as the Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided
that the aggregate amount of the discretionary management
bonuses payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial
year of the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the
Group after taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate
amount of the discretionary management bonuses but before non-
recurring items for the relevant financial year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’
AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company and subject
to the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or
other officer of the Company, other than for any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any such persons. The
Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against the Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of
their duties or in relation thereto.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
and “Continuing connected transactions” below and “Related party
transactions” in note 41 to the financial statements, no Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the Directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND MEMBER OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
members of the Senior Management of the Group are set out on
pages 97 to 104.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Securities Trading Code”) contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

HERRATE BT

£ e SHREZER RHEA RZAH 2 L (%)
Percentage of

the Issued Share

Capacity and Capital of

Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
BREEEE 1 NS E 750,332,500 53.63%
Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Corporate interests 750,332,500 53.63%
B[R EE NERER 84,936,500 6.07%
Mr. Ma Renhe 2 Corporate interests 84,936,500 6.07%
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2016, 750,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
80.08% by Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”),
13.92% by BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 6.00% by Super China
Enterprises Limited (“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma
Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed
to be interested in the 750,332,500 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2016, 84,936,500 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 72.94% by
MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 27.06% by certain senior management
of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui, Mr. Wang Cunbo and
Ms. Chen Zhifen (all are executive Directors). MCC, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a cousin of Mr.
Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Renhe is deemed to be
interested in the 84,936,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Securities Trading Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executive of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2016, the following persons who held interests of
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than
Directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

LR NS £y

=x M SHRERER R & E R4 H 2 L (%)

Percentage of

the Issued Share

Capacity and Capital of

Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company

kS 1 EREEA 750,332,500 53.63%

Keep Glory 1 Beneficial owner 750,332,500 53.63%

TES 1 NERER 750,332,500 53.63%

Splendid Steed 1 Corporate interests 750,332,500 53.63%

Eo 2 ERnEEA 84,936,500 6.07%

Fairco 2 Beneficial owner 84,936,500 6.07%

MCC 2 NEIE £ 84,936,500 6.07%

MCC 2 Corporate interests 84,936,500 6.07%
B 5 - Notes:

1. RZTE—X"E+ZA=+—8 HE(—%
REBELZBEESEMALZERAREE
750,332,500 f% 1% + i F £ 5 - BMX K Fll
812 Bl A % A F180.08% ~ 13.92% F.6.00%
2 TEF(—RREBRE LS EM
RMYZERARHAGEREELZERA-
BUX (—RKREBREZHSEMAZ GR
AR HAEEREE2EREE - FIE (—FRR
EBELRETMRIZBERAT)AEE
AL (BBRRAEZRB)2EHEE R
BREHFRBEKL TESHEBERBEM
48 2750,332,500 B 1D P B S o

1. As at 31 December 2016, 750,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which is owned as to 80.08% by Splendid Steed, 13.92%
by BMX and 6.00% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin. Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is deemed to
be interested in the 750,332,500 Shares held by Keep Glory.
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2. As at 31 December 2016, 84,936,500 Shares were held by Fairco, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which is owned as to 72.94% by MCC and 27.06% by certain senior
management of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui, Mr. Wang
Cunbo and Ms. Chen Zhifen (all are executive Directors). MCC, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a cousin
of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, MCC is deemed to be
interested in the 84,936,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and
short positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
and “Connected continuing transactions” below and “Related party
transactions” in note 41 to the financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2016 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

HERBEZ HHERZ

A 2 (%) B2 (%)

Percentage of Percentage of

Purchases (%) Sales (%)

BAHRER TP The largest supplier/customer 17.11 25.62
AAEEREEFEF  Five largest suppliers/customers combined 30.35 85.73
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For further information about the top four customers, please refer to
note 4 to the financial statements.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in the major suppliers or
customers at all times during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 41 to the
financial statements also constituted connected transactions under
the Listing Rules, which are required to be disclosed in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following transactions
between certain connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules)
and the Company have been entered into and/or are ongoing
for which relevant disclosure had been made by the Company in
announcements in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The remaining related party
transactions do not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company.

On 26 May 2016, Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou
Anhui”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Ningbo Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd.
entered into the a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
Shenzhou Properties agreed to sell,

(“Shenzhou Properties”)

and Shenzhou Anhui agreed
to purchase, the property (the “Property”) known as Shenzhou
New Century Gui Garden comprising 14 buildings located on a
parcel of land located near New Century Road and East Ring Road,
Cheng District, Wangjiang County, Anhui Province, the PRC at a
consideration of RMB134,047,842. The Property shall be used to
as staff quarters of the Group. Shenzhou Properties is owned as to
80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, the Chairman and an executive Director
of the Company, and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong Industrial
Investment Company Limited (“Rongrong Industrial”), an associate
of Mr. Ma Jianrong under the Listing Rules. As such, Shenzhou
Properties is a connected person pursuant to Rule 14A.07(4) of the
Listing Rules by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Ma Jianrong.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26 May
2016 for details.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

a.

Lease of certain production premises and facilities
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shenzhou
Properties entered into a lease agreement on 18 December
2013, pursuant to which Shenzhou Properties leased to
Shenzhou Knitting the apparel production properties for
a period commencing on 1 January 2014 and expiring on
31 December 2016, with a right of renewal exercisable by
Shenzhou Knitting for a further term of three years at or
below the prevailing market rate (the “Lease Agreement”). The
Lease Agreement is terminable by Shenzhou Knitting giving
no less than three months’ notice to Shenzhou Properties.
The rental so charged by Shenzhou Properties is determined
by reference to the market rates for leasing similar properties
and production facilities from independent third parties under
normal commercial terms during the course of ordinary
business in Ningbo, China. The management of the Company
has followed the procedures adopted by the Board to ascertain
the market rates charged by independent third parties for
similar properties. Shenzhou Properties, which is owned as to
80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director, and as to 20%
by Rongrong Industrial, an associate of Mr. Ma Jianrong, is a
connected person by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing
Rules. During the year, rentals paid to Shenzhou Properties by
the Group amounted to RMB8,989,000. Shenzhou Knitting and
Shenzhou Properties have renewed the Lease Agreement on
16 December 2016 for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019 with a total
annual rent of RMB10,105,380 payable by Shenzhou Knitting
to Shenzhou Properties for all the properties leased under the
Lease Agreement.
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Provision of cutting and sewing services

Shenzhou Knitting and Ningbo Shenzhou Shitong Knitwear
Co. Ltd. (Z RNt B BB 2 R*) (“Shenzhou Shitong”)
entered into a processing services agreement (the “Processing
Services Agreement”) dated 18 December 2013, pursuant to
which, Shenzhou Shitong agreed to provide the Group with
certain cutting services for a period commencing on 1 January
2014 and expiring on 31 December 2016 at a rate of service
charges ranging from RMB1.0 per piece to RMB1.2 per piece,
depending on the technology involved. The related charges
are determined with reference to the current market prices
charged by independent suppliers for the provision of cutting
services of knitted garments. Shenzhou Shitong, which is
indirectly owned by Worldon as to 80% interest and owned
by Rongrong Industrial as to the remaining 20% interest, is a
connected person by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing
Rules. During the year, the processing services fees paid to
Shenzhou Shitong by the Group amounted to RMB10,528,000.
During the year, the Processing Services Agreement between
the Group and Shenzhou Shitong has been terminated.

Supply of packaging materials

Shenzhou Knitting and Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
Materials Company Limited (“Huaxi Packaging Company”)
entered into a supply agreement (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”) dated 18 December 2013, pursuant
to which, Huaxi Packaging Company agreed to supply
packaging materials to the Group from time to time on normal
commercial terms which are no less favorable than those
available from independent third parties. The Packaging
Material Supply Agreement is for a term commencing on
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. Huaxi Packaging
Company is owned as to 87.5% by Mr. Huang Guanquan,
who is the younger brother of Mr. Huang Guanlin, an Executive
Director, and as to 12.5% by Mr. Huang Fuchang, who is the
father of Mr. Huang Guanlin. Huaxi Packaging Company is a
connected person by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing
Rules. During the year, the amount paid to Huaxi Packaging
Company by the Group for the purchases of packaging
materials totalled to RMB48,377,000. Shenzhou Knitting and
Huaxi Packaging Company have renewed the Packaging
Material Supply Agreement on 16 December 2016 for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2017 and
expiring on 31 December 2019 with proposed annual caps of
RMB56,000,000, RMB59,000,000 and RMB64,000,000 for the
amounts to be paid by Shenzhou Knitting to Huaxi Packaging
Company for the years ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and
2019 respectively.
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For further details of the above continuing connected
transactions, please refer to the announcements dated
18 December 2013 and 16 December 2016 made by the
Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the aforesaid transactions had been entered into (1) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (2) either
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and (3) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
have provided the Company a letter, confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that cause them to believe that
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions (1) have not
been approved by the board of directors of the Company;
(2) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group; (3) have not been entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and (4) have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual values disclosed in
the previous announcement dated 18 December 2013 made by
the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group, such as the Listing Rules and the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. The Board is responsible
for monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are regularly
reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects

with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, for the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company had maintained a public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

Ma Jianrong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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To the shareholders of

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhou
International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 126 to 235, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

BEBFTEREETHTROTEHN

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment risks for trade and bills receivables
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The Group is exposed to credit risks arising from the
significant balance of trade and bills receivables. As
at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of approximately RMB2,653 million, which
accounted for 12.2% of the Group’s total assets.
No bad debt provision was provided based on the
management’s impairment assessment. A high level
of management judgement is required when assessing
the recoverability of trade and bills receivables.

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of
trade and bills receivables included, but are not limited
to, inquiry about management’s special consideration
and examining subsequent receipts by checking against
bank receipts. We also tested aged balances by checking
customers’ historical repayment pattern, and evaluating
the financial strength of customers with significant overdue
balances.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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The accounting policies and disclosures for trade and
bills receivables are included in notes 3 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FRBFLEEFRRRE

Inventory excess and obsolescence provisions
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The total inventory and related excess and obsolete

BRCE: L

provision as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
RMB3,715 million and RMB16 million,
The gross inventory balances are material to the

respectively.

consolidated financial statements and significant
management judgement is required when assessing
the adequacy of provision.
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The accounting policies and disclosures for inventory
and related excess and obsolescence provision
are included in notes 3 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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We assessed the process, methods and assumptions
used to develop the provision for slow moving, excess or
obsolete items. This included comparing management’s
calculations for consistency against those used in the prior
year and considering whether there was any indication
of management bias such as manual overrides to the
established methodology.
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We tested the reliability of the underlying data used by
management to calculate the inventory obsolescence
provision, typically an ageing analysis of inventories. We
also tested the accuracy of the resultant calculation by
assessing the calculation criteria and recalculating the
provision for a sample of products.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continuea)

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Wing Kwong.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2017
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mEBREmK
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BHE_Z—X"F+-_A=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2016

—E-RE —E—HF
2016 2015
LiEE: AR¥ T ARBT T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
' ON REVENUE 5 15,099,076 12,639,332
$H 55 B AR Cost of sales (10,189,636) (8,790,416)
E A Gross profit 4,909,440 3,848,916
HAth Ug A Other income 5 461,640 459,402
$HE & 9 HK A Selling and distribution expenses (353,693) (255,494)
THAX Administrative expenses (1,102,797) (962,064)
HihAE Other expenses (154,305) (104,169)
& B AR Finance costs 7 (119,834) (98,733)
FEAG — R E AR MBS Share of profits and losses of
an associate 17 2,496 (957)
R Bt A R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 3,642,947 2,886,901
FriS %5 2 Income tax expense 11 (695,267) (532,059)
FERE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,947,680 2,354,842
AT AR Attributable to:
ZIN/NEIEZ T =N Owners of the Company 2,947,673 2,354,664
FE 122 ) 1 i 2 Non-controlling interests 7 178
2,947,680 2,354,842
AARAERARBREFEA EARNINGS PER SHARE
EhaEsRAER ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 13
H Basic
—FEHHE — For profit for the year AR%2115t AR¥1.687T
RMB2.11 RMB1.68
g Diluted
—FEHH — For profit for the year ARY2.02 ARM1.627T
RMB2.02 RMB1.62
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHE_Z—X"F+-_A=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2016

—E—REF —E—hF
2016 2015
H 5 AR® T ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FERHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,947,680 2,354,842
Hip 2w &= OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REMEE A Cash flow hedges:
FEEEAYMIA Effective portion of changes in fair
DABEES 2 BB value of hedging instruments
arising during the year 23 - (2,961)
HNGR A B m R ERZ Reclassification adjustments
Wz EF D BRAE for gains recognised in the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 23 - (6,402)
- (9,363)
ME W ZRE Exchange differences:
MEIBINETS 2 IE K ET Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations 186,687 36,921
FEHMmZ2EWKE (BRH#%) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 186,687 27,558
FEXHWEAHE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 3,134,367 2,382,400
LTALTREEESR: ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
ZN/NECIE ZDN Owners of the Company 3,124,619 2,382,222
FE 172 I 1 2 Non-controlling interests 9,748 178
3,134,367 2,382,400
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—T—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2016

—E—-REF —E—RF
2016 2015
H 5 AR¥ T AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
I EN Property, plant and equipment 14 7,013,037 5,549,750
TET + A & FRIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 923,172 931,255
mEEE Intangible assets 16 105,228 109,450
ZEER Entrusted loans 21 - 550,000
EAELIRET N Pledged deposits 25 500,000 =
ERREBITHRHATEHFEHR  Long-term time deposits at banks 350,000 300,000
REFE T 3B Long-term prepayments 20 78,328 =
R—EEE AR Z2®E An investment in an associate 17 7,173 4,677
FIETRIEE = Deferred tax assets 31 3,629 4,981
WIERBNE E Total non-current assets 8,980,567 7,450,113
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 18 3,699,090 3,232,847
FEBR R R ZE Trade and bills receivables 19 2,652,707 2,001,783
FENRIE EZE R Prepayments, deposits and other
b e W R IE receivables 20 674,236 676,284
JE IR BE BSE A - FIE Amounts due from related parties 41 826 559
ZEEN Entrusted loans 21 150,000 120,000
AHBERE Available-for-sale investments 22 3,120,000 800,000
HEBFENR Structured deposits 24 - 110,000
EHREFR Pledged deposits 25 - 1,830,908
MisFEFRHa=EA 2z Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITIF X over three months 433,452 323,442
BeLBREZEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 2,105,184 1,815,678
BREEE Total current assets 12,835,495 10,911,501
REBAME CURRENT LIABILITIES
JERBRERREE Trade and bills payables 27 758,217 678,535
T8 Ug BR X Advances from customers 16,650 5,130
Eh JE T FRIE K R RIB Other payables and accruals 28 787,074 642,939
FFEIRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 29 1,241,433 656,851
JEAT — R A 508 Amount due to a related party 41 - 2,166
JE A 3R Tax payable 291,108 169,148
mREAaE Total current liabilities 3,094,482 2,154,769
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—T—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2016

—E—RE —E—HF
2016 2015
B 5 ARE T AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BARABEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 9,741,013 8,756,732
HEERRBARS TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 18,721,580 16,206,845
kRBAE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Al R E 5 Convertible bonds 30 3,410,145 3,117,009
BEEFIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 31 1,833 =
WIERBAE Total non-current liabilities 3,411,978 3,117,009
FEE NET ASSETS 15,309,602 13,089,836
R EQUITY
RATEEAEGER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
& A Share capital 32 142,105 142,105
G Reserves 33 14,950,839 12,932,015
15,092,944 13,074,120
e HI RS Non-controlling interests 216,658 15,716
48 7 Total equity 15,309,602 13,089,836
BEg EEM
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
ETEHEHITEF TTABFHFENITEE

Chairman and Executive Director

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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mEEREHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_ZT—XE+_A=1+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2016

LN LN,
Attributable to owners of the Company
TRRESZ FERH EX RaRE BE
kx  RHEER BER5 HHEE Py & RDRE BHRE RERA AERE B3 FENEER L §:
Equity Employee
Share  component of Statutory Exchange equity Proposed Non-
Share premium convertible Hedging surplus fluctuation benefits Retained final controlling Total
capital account bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity

Mt  AR%Tr  ARBTr  ARBTr  ARBTr  ARBTr  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(Hi3t32) (H3t30) (ko) (Massp)  (A3Essq))
(note 32) (note 30) (note 23) (note 33() (note 33
RZE-R5-A—-B At1Janvary 2015 142,106 1471742 197,140 9,363 1,138,126 (26,787) 48,191 7,712,018 1,103,671 11,795,569 16,757 11,811,326
EE2AKEEE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (9,363) - 36,921 - 2,354,664 - 2,382,222 178 2,382,400
WFERBFERE  Dividends paid to non-
controling sharefolders = = = = = = = = = = (219) (219)
Final 2014 dividend declared
- - - - - - - - (1,103,671) (1,103,671) - (1,103,671)
: Proposed final 2015 dividend
AEARE 12 - (810,094 - - - - - (444,034) 1,254,128 - - -
BRERERN Transfer from retained profits - - - - 12,379 - - (12,879) - - - -
At 31 December 2015
142,106 661,648 197,140 - 1,160,605* 10,134* 48,191 9,610,269 1254128° 13074120 16,716 13,089,836
ANARAAES
Attributable to owners of the Company
TRRESZ EERE Ej EERE B3
ks ROEEE BERS Py & RBRE EAGE ARk RERA RERE B FRNEES L 43
Equity Employee
Share  component of Statutory Exchange equity Proposed Non-
Share premium convertible surplus fluctuation benefits Other Retained final controlling Total
capital account bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Tota interests equity

B AR®TR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(KiEs2) (K3E30) (K&E3s()) (H&E33(ii)) (H3E33ji) )
(note 32) (note 30) (note 33(i)) (note 33(ii)) (note 33i))
RZE-7~E-A-B At1January 2016 142,105 661,648 197,140 1,150,505 10,134 48,191 - 9,610,269 1,254,128 13,074,120 15,716 13,089,836
EF2ENEEE  Totel comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 176,946 - - 2,947,673 - 3,124,619 9,748 3,134,367
1 Effects of transaction with
ETRSHFE  non-controling interests
of subsidiaries 34 - - - - - - 148,333 - - 148,333 (71,088) 71,245
HE i3 Capital injection from non-
REEE controling shareholders
of subsidliaries - - - - - - - - - - 266,705 266,705
W SERHIER  Acquision of non-controling
interests - - - - - - - - ° - (4,420) (4,429
Final 2015 dividend declared
5 o = - - - - - (1,254,128) (1,254,128) - (1,254,128)
Proposed final 2016 dividend
12 - (607,187) - - - - - (894,500) 1,501,687 - - -
Transfer from retained profits - - - 20,911 - - - (20911) - - - -
At 31 December 2016
142,105 54,461 197,140* 1,171,416* 187,080* 48,191* 148,333* 11,642,531 1,501,687* 15,002,944 216,658 15,309,602
* FEMBRAERFRZEEHEBARE These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
14,950,839,000t (ZE—HF: AR RMB14,950,839,000 (2015: RMB12,932,015,000) in the consolidated
12,932,015,0007T ) 9 i& 55 & B BR 4B X © statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE_Z—X"F+-_A=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2016

ZE-RF —T-RF
2016 2015
H 5 AR%ET ARBT T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REXKMBHEELRKE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B ¢ B A8 Profit before tax 3,642,947 2,886,901
P Adjustments for:
BMEKAR Finance costs 7 119,834 98,733
fEfh — Rt & A R]Bz  Share of profits and losses of
an associate 17 (2,496) 957
BB A Interest income 5 (177,656) (222,435)
LEWME - BE & Loss on disposal of items of property,
REEB 2 EE plant and equipment 6 5,034 5,847
REBEHNBETE Unrealised exchange loss from
bE S B 18 financing activities 241,090 179,273
Y BB &EHEIEE Depreciation of items of property,
e plant and equipment 6 639,818 492,045
FE T EFRTEESE  Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 6 23,280 20,536
| A = Amortisation of intangible assets 6 12,321 9,681
4,504,172 3,471,538
FEIE M Increase in inventories (466,243) (625,637)
JE U BR 3k & R R 38 0 Increase in trade and bills receivables (650,924) (358,866)
FERRE RS R Decrease in prepayments, deposits and
H th, & U R IR R other receivables 16,127 20,848
FEUGBERE A T FIEIE A1 Increase in amounts due from related parties (267) (559)
FERTBR R N R IR 38 A0 Increase in trade and bills payables 79,682 210,911
TEUBEFIE N, (B4)  Increase/(decrease) in advances from
customers 11,520 (2,663)
H b JE T FRIB Increase in other payables and accruals
N & FT R IRIE AN 162,983 39,573
JEAT—ZBAEE AT FUE  (Decrease)/increase in amount due to
wA (3 a related party (2,166) 306
KEEBREERS Cash generated from operations 3,654,884 2,755,451
EAHE Interest paid (23,364) (10,287)
ERNEAFEM Hong Kong profits tax paid (22,769) (38,168)
BERPEMEMSH PRC corporate income tax paid (547,353) (447,889)
REXBRE NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
HEFREFE ACTIVITIES 3,061,398 2,259,107
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_T—R"ET-_HA=1+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2016
ZE-REF —ET-ILfF
2016 2015
B 5 AR¥ T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REXKFMAEELRE  CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
2 YR8 Interest received 206,869 157,220
BEVE BEXR Purchases of items of property,
RiBIER plant and equipment (2,090,085) (1,859,912)
LEVE- BE & Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
REIEE 2 plant and equipment
PSR IR 1,458 4,572
THFEM LA ERE  Payments of prepaid land lease payments - (177,937)
& BB T8 5 IR 18 A0 Increase in long-term prepayments (78,328) =
WEREMmEREE Purchases of other intangible assets (8,099) (16,285)
AT A E b FE Y IE 2 Decrease in financial products included
% Rl EE R A in other receivables = 470,000
BEBIFEZOR D (A1) Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 1,330,908 (937,425)
BT (#N)  Decrease/(increase) in entrusted loans 520,000 (55,000)
HERFEIUR D Decrease in structured deposits 110,000 2,101,160
WA HERE Purchases of available-for-sale investments (2,320,000) (480,000)
RIT71F FIE AN Increase in bank deposits (160,010) (601,050)
REXBHA NET CASH FLOWS USED IN
HEFREFE INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,487,287) (1,394,657)
METEHTAELAKE  CASH FLOWS USED IN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
FERITER New bank loans 2,035,884 928,209
BRRITER Repayment of bank loans (1,451,302) (318,095)
W FE 2 M i A Acquisition of non-controlling interests (4,423) -
BB B8 A R FEHE Il 1 Proceeds from transaction with
BRETRS non-controlling interests of a subsidiary
TS 508 34 77,245 -
BB AR FFIER AL R IEE  Capital injections from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries 266,705 -
MARNEHEEB A Dividends paid to owners of the Company
A AR B (1,254,128) (1,103,671)
) FE 28 1 14 4 2 Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
TR B - (219)
EENEESS Interest paid (16,890) (15,385)
BEEEATA Net cash flows used in financing activities
Hen=e ¥ (346,909) (509,161)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE_Z—X"F+-_A=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2016

ZE-RF —T-RF
2016 2015
H 5 AR TR ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RERBELZEY NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
07 &E CASH EQUIVALENTS 227,202 355,289
FUReMIBEELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 1,815,678 1,428,074
EXEH) 2 HE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 62,304 32,315
FHRESRESLZEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 2,105,184 1,815,678
ReRESZEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
RO CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
4 RIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 1,961,086 1,748,380
RERERE DR Time deposits with
=EARE original maturity of less than
EHEFR three months when acquired 144,098 67,298
BN R NIBELMER Cash and cash equivalents as stated
FrolzRe &k in the statement of financial position and
REEEY the statement of cash flows 26 2,105,184 1,815,678
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Notes to Financial Statements

—T—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2016

AAREEER
RNEREEZERER AR ([AREF]])
N EERFENA_+t=ZHERSE
SEMK L AEER R B R A A o 5 Mt 9
= BZ b 5iF A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands ° A 2 & i%
ME_ZEZTRF T —HA-THERESD
BEHAERSMBR AT ER ([ER])
£

AR REMBAR (REIREE])
TRRERERHEHBREER ([§
BER]) -

EZRA TEBREERAA (=K
REBRZES ([RBREXES])E
M2 A8 BARRZREIERRA
AleARBERRAA (— RN RERELE
EEMALZ AR BAREZHNIE

/NI

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman lIslands on 23 June 2005. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”) since 24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”).

In the opinion of the directors, Splendid Steed Investments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), is the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Keep Glory Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the
intermediate holding company of the Company.

ME LR &R Information about subsidiaries
ARREEMBAR ZFBWOT: Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:
NG 3
AR EMER EEEAH TEEBR
£ EABRZME ERITRE H# mMiE R
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
KEREBBRAF KBRS 30,002% 7T 100% - REBRLHEBUERE
(x%&]) BBEFRE EREREEFERE
Top Always Investments BvVI, US$30,002 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
Ltd. (Top Always) limited liability company and property leasing in
Hong Kong
ERBMIBER AR mENEBALE 135,000,000% 1. - 100%  RAPBEAERERHEE
(TeEmEr4l) HEREER
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd.  PRC, US$135,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of

(“Shenzhou Knitting”)

wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise

knitwear products in
Mainland China

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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1. RAIREEEH (@) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
MBARER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AN EEL
AL B R EEEOH TEEKR
A% EARBZME BRTRA H# HE KERH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
=it B AR AT - 2,100,000% ¢ - 100%  RAEARENRR
(Tt EEta]) NEBEELE HEHBREER
Ningbo Shixing Knitwear PRC, USs$2,100,000 = 100%  Printing and sale of knitwear
Printing Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign-owned products in Mainland
(“Shixing Printing”) enterprise China
ERBREEERAA AR 10,000,000% 70 = 9%  RPBEARERE
([R&mEE]) NERELE ﬁ%ﬁ%@aﬁ&%f‘mu
Ningbo Yongmian Fashion PRC, US$10,000,000 = 91%  Manufacture and sale of
Garment Co., Ltd. foreign equity joint knitwear products in
(“Yongmian Fashion”) venture Mainland China
ERBREEFRAA hE IEHRALE 5,000,000% 7T - 100%  RREAREZE
([ ] ) iﬁ%ﬁ%@aﬁ&%éuu
Ningbo Shendie Fashion Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, US$5,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Shendie Fashion”) foreign equity joint knitwear products in
venture Mainland China
B (REFR)BRAF RERIH NEBEALE  30,000,000%T - 100% RRBERHEER
(TEMREE]) HEHBREER
Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. Kingdom of Cambodia, US$30,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Shenzhou Cambodia”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
ERATHBRARRAA mENEBERE 78,000,000% 7T - 100%  RAPBERERE
([RF@&]) wﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ&%éuu
Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, US$78,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Dagian Knitting”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
R MM ER A mEIEBALE 1,050,000% 70 - 100%  RREAREZE
([#rhgt&]) JJDHM‘;&H&%E‘%W
Ningbo Linlin Knitting Co., Ltd. PRC, US$1,050,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing

(“Linlin Knitting”)

wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise

of knitwear products in
Mainland China
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1.

PREAIREEER (&)

MEARESR (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NG 3
AL R BEADL FTEEBR
A% EARBZME ERTRE H# ME KEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and

Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations

ERERRHERR A mE - MEBERE 4,000,000 7T - 100%  RPBEAERER
(TEXEE]) MISBREER

Tuton Textile (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. PRC, US$4,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
(“Ningbo Tuton”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in

enterprise Mainland China

BN S (RE)BERRA mE - NEBERE 10,000,000 7 - 100%  RPBEAESERMNT
(Tez@l) HEREER

Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., Ltd.  PRC, US$10,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
(“Shenzhou Anhui”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in

enterprise Mainland China

BN (M) BERRA B NEBERE 8,000,000% 7T - 100%  RPBERESERMNT
(TemEml) HAREER

Shenzhou Knitting (Quzhou) PRC, US$8,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Quzhou”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in

enterprise Mainland China

HEBRRHERRR HE BELERR AR #2,000,0007T - 51% RABEAEETEIER
(TE&SE])

Shanghai Maxwin Garments PRC, RMB2,000,000 = 51%  Trading in Mainland China
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Maxwin”) sole proprietorship

company

ERATELENEBREME HEBEREEAT AR 10,000,000 - 100% RABEAREELOER
RAE([RFEHA])

Ningbo Dagian Import & PRC, RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Import and export of
Export Co., Ltd. limited liability company commodities in Mainland
(“Dagian Import & Export”) China

BNESERDA([RNES]) BB BREARR 100 7T - 100%  mEG

Shenzhou Trading Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Dormant

(“Shenzhou Trading”)

limited liability company

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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1.

PREAIREEER (&)

MEARESR (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NG 3
AL B R EEEOH TEEKR
A% EARBZME BRTRA H# HE KERH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and

Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations

KT (BB)REBRRA B BREARAR 1008 7T - 100% REBREZR
([xFEE]) R O &

Top Always (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Investment holding and
Investment Limited limited liability company import and export of
(“Top Always HK”) commaodities in Hong Kong

EREERERABRAA hE EREERR AR #8,000,00070 - 100%  RAEARBEETRKE R
(ME&])

Ningbo Hengzhi Clothing Detection ~ PRC, RMB8,000,000 = 100%  Quality check of garments in
Co., Ltd. (“Hengzhi”) limited liability company Mainland China

PHEAGA SR (TRMEA]D) BR BREELRA 5,000,0008 - 100% RERETESES

Shenzhou Japan Co., Ltd. Japan, JPY5,000,000 = 100%  Trading in Japan
(“Shenzhou Japan”) limited liability company

ERSHRHERR A mE EREERR AR #80,000,0007 - 51% RABEABEETEELHR
(MERSH])

Ningbo Maxwin Fashion PRC, RMB80,000,000 = 51% Retail in Mainland China
Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Maxwin”) limited liability company

ZERMNELOBRDOA mEEREAERR AR #%5,000,0007T - 100%  RABEAREELOER
(TRNEE])

Anging Shenzhou Import & PRC, RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Import and export of
Export Co., Ltd. limited liability company commodities in Mainland
(“Shenzhou Anging”) China

LESREEERAA mE EREEAR AR ¥10,000,0007 - 100%  RREAEETNE
(IHEEZ]) EEER

Shanghai Maxwin Industry Co., Ltd.  PRC, RMB10,000,000 - 100% Property management in

(“Maxwin Industry”)

limited liability company

Mainland China

Annual Report 2016 4 5
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1. REREBEER (&)

MEARESR (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NG 3
AL R BEADL FTEEBR
A% EARBZME ERTRE H# ME KEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
BEERABRAF RERARE BRAMCAR 10,000% 7T 100% - REBRLES
(BEEERE]) REREER
Buddies Investments Limited BVI, US$10,000 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
(“Buddies Investments”) limited liability company
SHBVI)ERAR RERARE BREMEAR 10,000% 7T 51% - REBRLHES
(I%EBVI]) REREER
Maxwin (BVI) Limited BVI, US$10,000 51% - Investment holding in the BVI
(“Maxwin BVI”) limited liability company
SE(EE)BERAA BB BERAEEAF 10,0007 7T - 51% REBREIREZR
(IHEEE])
Maxwin (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 = 51%  Investment holding in Hong
(“Maxwin HK") limited liability company Kong
SE(PE)BERLQA mENEBERE 50,000,000 7T - 51% RABEAEETESER
([HEHE])
Maxwin (China) Limited PRC, US$50,000,000 = 51%  Trading in Mainland China
(“Maxwin China”) wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise
ERGBARNA ([£2]) hE IEBALE 60,000,000 7T - 100%  RPBEAEREREE
HEREEM
Huayao Textile Limited (“Huayao”) PRC, US$60,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
BEE(EMBFEERE) B BREERT 100,0008 % - 100%  RRFETESER
BRAR([AFERM])
Buddies (Macao Commercial Macao, MOP100,000 - 100%  Trading in Macao

Offshore) Limited
(“Buddies Macao”)

limited liability company

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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1.

PREAIREEER (&)

MEARESR (&)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NG 3
AL B R EEEOH TEEKR
A% ERTRE H# HE KERH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
AT (RER)BRAF 40,000,000 70 - 100% HRBFRHEENRHE
(TRFRHEE]) HEREER
Dagian Textile (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.  Kingdom of Cambodia, US$40,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(‘Dagian Cambodia”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
Cambodia
BEEEEBRAA RERARE BEREMEAR 1% - 100% HEBRXES
(MBEEE£HE]) ETRERR
Buddies Group Limited us$1 = 100%  Investment holding in the BVI
(“Buddies Group”) limited liability company
AT o8 (B BRAA hEIEBALE 8,000,000% 7T - 100%  RPBEARERER
(TRF=#]) HEHBREER
Dagian Textile (Anhui) Co., Ltd. PRC, wholly-foreign owned US$8,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Dagian Anhui”) knitwear products in
Mainland China
EHNBRAR ([EH]) KBRS BREANA E 100% - REBRLES
ETRERR
Gain Lucky Co., Ltd. (“Gain Lucky”)  BVI, limited liability company US$1 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co.,Ltd. HeE AREEAA 50,000,000 7T = 100% REBERER
([ErHmE]) HEHBREER
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. Vietnam, limited liability US$50,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of

(“Gain Lucky Vietnam”)

company in Vietnam

knitwear products

Annual Report 2016 4 5

139



140

B RS R R Y

Notes to Financial Statements
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1. REREBEER (&)

MEARESR (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NG 3
AL R BEADL TEEKR
A% EARBZME ERTRE H# ME KEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and nature Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Worldon (Vietnam) Co.,Ltd. WE AREERH 36,000,000 7T = 100% AHEESKERNT
([t-@sm]) HEREER
Worldon (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. Vietnam, limited Liability US$36,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing
(“Worldon Vietnam”) company of knitwear products in
Vietnam
ZHBERAERA A hE EREERR AR #5,000,00070 - 51% RPBEAEETZERHK
(T=2BSE])
Anhui Maxwin Fashion Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability RMB5,000,000 = 51% Retail in Mainland China
(“Anhui Maxwin”) company
BRI SMMHERAR mE EREERR AE#44,932,4287C - 100% RPEAERERHEE
(IZRmE]) HEREER
Ningbo Ruiding New Materials Co.,  PRC, limited liability RMB44,932,428 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Ltd. (“Ningbo Ruiding”) company knitwear products in
Mainland China
ERERREEZXBRAA mEEBELE A K #238,597,2007T - 100%  RPEAEETHE
([ERER]) MEREERY
Ningbo Huasu Clothing Delivery PRC, limited wholly-foreign-  RMB238,597,200 = 100% Property rental and

Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Huasu”)

owned enterprise

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

warehousing service in
Mainland China
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21 B E%E 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

REMBHRRDBBEELSFMAE
(IEAEFMAS])BHE2BEMB
SEA ([BEMBRELER ] ES
ERETRAMBHREER FEGHE
AN (TEAGER]) k) FERQ
R RANEBTERAGIINRERE
M3 BT R TIIRE L X ANE PIE R
Bo-BRERBER BAMEMBRE
UARE (TAR¥]) 25 BERES
BE RN EAEEREOTM-

mEEE
HEMBRREBEARTLEMB LT
(G AEBDBE_T—RF+=
AZ+t—BUEFEZUBHRKR KB
BADHARBERAHEREN ZER
(BRABUER) - EXAKEHM28K
BHRZEMBZ A2 EHAZER K
FHEN BREAERHEHREHS
BAOZEZFEHNeEN (A TAE
BB R EHRBMEFRBEN 2R
BN B BRI IESIE -

HARBERAEEREINREHR
REBERRLBUENERN QAL
ERFEERCHEEHREHRNEN
BFeZE - UHBFEERER 8

@ HEBEHREMEEFBEANAG
kg

() EibAHRHFELORRA: R
(0 FEBZREEREELZE

M A RMM B REER —BROE:
B Y REARFERNKRS BER
H-MBRARMNEECHAEERGE
HEERGAAR TREESHERE
SEEHRRLEER /L

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.
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21 RBEE (&) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

142

B3R A2 AR S AR BH NS
BAKEESATEE ARIEHIEE
A BDERLBE BE M 25 A B
o RAEER B A TR 5 ME L
FEEBANARMEEREE -
WA BYRESRENRA HBEYR
54 -

A FERERER _EXH BB P
M =R HETET B —ERA L
REY MAKESEHTEEEEH
REER - —ZXWEBRARZMAEER
AR (WEREEHE) RESER
N N

AR EEREE —KME QR 2 2
RIEBHERONZMB AR EE
(BREEE) RAE  (i)EAFEZ= 61
2 BRTEME R (i) R N EC 8k 2 RET iR
HEHE RBERIIMKREZAR
(i) FTIR BB (IR & 2 A 1B K (i) B 2= Bk
FAEMELEEZBHIEE - TR
HM2EWRRAER NS B -GS
D SEREEAEEEZLHEREEES
BEATHEREESHHERIBRN
REBAMN(RAEBEE) -

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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22 B BREHRIKE 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
REBRAFE 2 P B HREE R The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
THE] RSB BT R E R for the first time for the current year's financial statements.
BEAMBREEFE105% REERE: EFEH Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
BRUBREENE12% R HIBISNEE HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception
7S & ST 2RI 085 (2011)
(ZB——F) 2z
BEERBRELEN S5 VI Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
2B Bmu @it Joint Operations
BB %
BERHBREERE145 EERERF HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
BB ERE1R 2 B] BE:1E Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
BB ERF16% K HHERHTER Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
B EREBH 2] B R ANER HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation
BRSITENEI6R K BE LEHEY Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants
BAGHENEHR 2B HKAS 41
BE T ER|E275 BUHBEHLH Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)  Equity Method in Separate Financial
(Z2——%) Z 1 g3l Bt Statements
T ZFECT-NFRY ZEEEHFHE Annual Improvements 2012- Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
ZEEME A Z 2T 2014 Cycle
BB B mE % H‘Jfﬁm%‘% BBYB Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
WELERIFE125 BB LERIZE285 HKAS 28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS 11, HKFRS 14,
:f——i)Zf HRES %Hﬁk#ﬁiﬁ amendments to HKAS 41, and amendments to HKAS 27
AISB11SR 2 188] - BBV BHRE LS (2011), which are not relevant to the preparation of the
1458  BESHERNBNRETRE Group’s financial statements, the nature and the impact of the
Y ENE2TR (ZE——F) 218 amendments are described below:

STHHR B SR BB B R 2 T A 4
AMETZ MR R EHFIMT

(a) BAEAGIERFEIF 2B BES (@ Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
AV EBRERERIBEEZRES improvements in respect of the presentation and
FE - ZEEBTREE: disclosure in financial statements. The amendments

clarify:

() BEGTHEAF1IKZEEN ()  the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;
E: e

iy REBERREFEARLR 25 (i)  that specific line items in the statement of profit or
FEIEB A loss and the statement of financial position may be

disaggregated;

(i) EREFEELTHBmKM (i)  that entities have flexibility as to the order in which

HEMEVIER: & they present the notes to financial statements; and
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22 EFTHREHREE &)

(a)

(%)

(iv) DEABREARZBZR
ARGERRZHEMEEY
ARBIERE—RBEMRZ
5 B ERBARERS
ST EREFDERBDE

GEx L

BEAN - R FERT BB R B R
REZEREJNBINMEHERLZ
BE - FER BT HARE
B RELEMNEATZE -

EEGHENFIHRERE LG
ZERFIBFE L IETHB B G E
A F165% K &8 & 5t £ RI 385k
B RBIEH BARESA - R R S
RREEER (BERES —
D)FELZLEN S 2 ok
RRIE B AR AR EFRA K
Mas 2 B - Bt WA 5 H
REYE  BERREETIE
VEAEFFARNBEATAR
BBV ERE -ZFEFTREBERR
EREER - ZFER L EH AL
% B B 75 R 0 3 R R IE R AT
g RR/ANSEY EE R R
AEHERBEENTE-

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@)

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(continued)

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in aggregate
as a single line item, and classified between
those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the
statement of financial position and the statement of profit
or loss. The amendments have had no significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated
from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed
through the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The
amendments are applied prospectively. The amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group as the Group has not used a
revenue-based method for the calculation of depreciation
of its non-current assets.
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22 EFTHREHREE &)

(c)

R=ZF—WF+ A B 558 7%
WEEA —FE— —Fr —F— /7
FRHZ FRENEHINZBES
B 53R & E R MERT - X ZERT Y
=3 =R INE

s FBRAMBBEEIFESHA
IFHEZHRBEEREK
IEZRF BRLELD
ETHRBAZEEE TIE
KRS —EMWEEE
e R &l 2 4B - E it -
REBM B HREEA LA
BRWENE - ZFERTT
ERNEREN AL TGN
BOBERFELENERD
BEXREMAGZBH %
FEIHIREREERER-
% 1S R AN 5 B 3 B AE ]
TE RAERAFEARE
B ESREHENEER
BZHEREHBE AR
HEREE -

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments are as
follows:

° HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes to
a plan of sale or a plan of distribution to owners
should not be considered to be a new plan of
disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. Accordingly, there is no change in the
application of the requirements in HKFRS 5. The
amendments also clarify that changing the disposal
method does not change the date of classification
of the non-current assets or disposal group held for
sale. The amendments are applied prospectively.
The amendments have had no impact on the Group
as the Group did not have any change in the plan of
sale or disposal method in respect of the disposal
group held for sale during the year.
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23 CHEMEEAERNE BT 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

&R

ARER B Mt

B mRPEAT

ERME R R ERN IR REERTEE
ARG R -

BEMBEREER

VLA SR
BERBREER
FAKZETR
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BB RELELF105
SR Fo85E
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M E
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BAYBREENF 155
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective,
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

in

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions®
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers?

Leases®
Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of
a share-based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The
amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based
payment transaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain conditions are
met. Furthermore the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction
are modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the standard upon adoption and expects that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the classification
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
application now.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent
and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more
consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and
decrease the cost and complexity of applying the standard.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and
is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition
of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-
use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently assessing
the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The amendments will result in additional disclosure to
be provided in the financial statements. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at
fair value, although they also have a broader application for
other situations. The amendments clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs to
consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that
deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine future
taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable
profit may include the recovery of some assets for more
than their carrying amount. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.
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POLICIES

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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POLICIES (continuea)

ARETE Fair value measurement
AREBREHRERRTEELREMEDN The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
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financial instruments and equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

FEeMEENARNENEBEF AT HELHE A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
%%L@Eﬁﬁﬁiééﬁ’]ﬁ*m&?&ﬁﬁ Rk account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
BRBEELHETHERESZS RRE benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
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selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

F—H& — EREREEXBENER Level1 -  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
Mgz wmE (REFHE) markets for identical assets or liabilities

FoH — ERNHERMN EFRERZ Level 2 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
HAREFEMEBERZ lowest level input that is significant to the
BEBREABE REE fair value measurement is observable, either
S HEERME directly or indirectly

F=H — ERNEHERN EMERC Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
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lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(il

FR M B B 65 4% iR & PR /A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment used for this
purpose are as follows:

fhEt A A EH FerEE

Estimated Residual

Al Category useful life value
BgF Buildings 20 years F 10%
T Tk i 2% Plant and machinery 10 years F 10%
E Motor vehicles 5 years “F 10%
MR EERE Furniture and fixtures 5 years F 0%
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of intangible
assets are as follows:

Al st AEH Category Estimated useful life
;1 104F Software 10 years
FAKHE 20%F Water use right 20 years
HE Leases
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Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no individual
land ownership rights exist. The Group acquires the right to
use certain land and the considerations paid for such right are
recorded as prepaid land lease payments, which are amortised
over the lease terms of 30 to 50 years using the straight-line
method.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. These net fair
value changes do not include any dividends or interest earned
on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash

B2 AEFHTABZERNUIN FE flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification

YEH B4 - of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

EXRENKNE Loans and receivables
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Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in
other expenses for receivables.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to
hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains

SEFER - in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in other expenses.

AHRHET@ERE Available-for-sale financial investments
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Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in other gains
or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

AEBFER RN EETHEES M The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
BEZENREBEGEGEH - BERD its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
HERT AEEREMSEBMEELE still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
BERFEE TAEEASEERZER unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
REESHOBE (MEREERAIEE the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
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management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity
is reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continueq)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

BAREFNEARE A BmztME Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

&

RARBEFABSEZERABRERE Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
EECRMARKRVNERIEIEE AR financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
ARBEFEEEFHTAERCEME designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
f& e or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are first recognised.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference

R o between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
KSR IR Offsetting of financial instruments
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow
hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(continueq)

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

o fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment; or

° cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction, or a
foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment;
or

° hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk
management objective and its strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in
the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually
have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(continued)
R GEZBRBREZEHNEAT Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
7RG BR accounted for as follows:
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Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income in the hedging reserve, while any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when
hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised
or when a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is
the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or
liability assumed affects the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the
hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income remain in other comprehensive income
until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm
commitment is met.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(continued)

Current versus non-current classification (continued)

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting)
for a period beyond 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

° Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labor and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion

o and disposal.
HeRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits (continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own presentation currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. The functional currency of major operating
entities of the Group is United States Dollars (“USD”). Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

SR 5 H B2 ERBE ;AR cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
ARBEFECZIIEERIER  AZRFER rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
NEERACERBRE MEZRNAER items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated

BZFEBREMEENKENER
BHERZER (EREbE2ERES
BaERE A nERENEERNER
HMBEZB Ao REbemia®iE
BHER)NAAEEZSN R ELEE—
BT ARE -

BTN B RRERIMNA B R F 2 6
ERRARBAIEGEE R %&i,ﬁfﬂﬁk'
REERBCEENRBBEREBEHRZ
IEﬁE%xEZ%AE%'Hﬁﬁv B
RAILNFRANMEFHERRESAR
W o

FriSiEH ZHN EM2mBARR I
B EERESFEE-

using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries located
outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could

FHEE o require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
H B Judgements
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In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Management of the Group reviews aging analysis, repayment
history of its trade and bill receivables and takes into
consideration the estimation of future cash flows to determine
impairment of trade and bill receivables. According to the good
reputation of the customers, large transaction volumes and
significant repayment amounts during and after the year end,
management concludes that the trade and bill receivables
balance does not have recoverability issue and hence, no
provision is provided.

Inventory excess and obsolescence provisions
Management of the Group reviews aging analysis at the end
of the reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified that are not suitable
for use in current production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such raw materials, work in progress and
finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions.
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AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
the industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
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AND ESTIMATES (continuead)
2T EERE (&) Estimation uncertainty (continued)
BEHBEEE Deferred tax assets
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(a) HEBEFUA

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. There were no deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2016 (2015: Nil). The amount of accumulated tax losses at 31
December 2016 was approximately RMB586,042,000 (2015:
RMB491,471,000), which will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Further details are given
in note 31 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and there is one
reportable operating segment: the manufacture and sale
of knitwear products. Management monitors the operating
results of its business units as a whole for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

ZE-RF ZET—REF

2016 2015

AR®T ARBTTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

H B K e Mainland China 3,689,875 2,995,543
Eg: European Union 3,355,516 2,319,860
SN Japan 3,003,735 2,859,692
xH United States of America 1,548,387 1,588,689
H b [ 13 Other regions 3,501,563 2,875,548
15,099,076 12,639,332

Eat W AN E R T EE R R A

Loy

The revenue information above is based on the delivery
destinations of the products.
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4. REDHER (7) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
HWEER (Z) Geographical information (continued)
(b) HFHEEE (b) Non-current assets
—E-REF —T—hF
2016 2015
ARE TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B K Mainland China 4,816,266 4,334,664
o] Vietnam 3,161,473 2,149,758
RIpE Cambodia 135,094 99,474
H A [& 15 Other regions 6,932 6,559
8,119,765 6,590,455
LR EEER IR EERN The non-current asset information above is based on the
EHE S UREEEATER K locations of the assets and excludes entrusted loans,
B BIRIT R W ER R — long-term time deposits at banks, pledged deposits, an
MEE AR REREERIBE investment in an associate and deferred tax assets.
o
FEEFZER Information about major customers
RKEUNTEERRP ZWAS ML AREE Revenue from major customers which individually accounts for
W A8%3k A £ : 8% or more of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
—EB-RF —E-RF
2016 2015
AR¥E T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
=P H Customer A 3,868,526 3,390,452
EF L Customer B 3,421,963 2,738,298
XPA Customer C 3,368,179 3,137,291
5PT Customer D 1,319,019 1,092,108
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after

allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

—E—-REF s
2016 2015
AR¥E T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KA Revenue

HEBY Sale of goods 15,099,076 12,639,332

Hiw A Other income
BX K #@8 Bh Government grants 261,275 216,410
HRITH B WA Bank interest income 149,171 187,189
ZEEFFEWA Interest income from entrusted loans 28,485 35,246
Hae WA Rental income 22,709 20,557
461,640 459,402
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6. BRBiA1FH 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEBZBRBATFAEE MR, (GTA) The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
ZE-RF —T—RF
2016 2015
Bt 5 AR TR ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEFEKAR Cost of inventories sold 10,180,276 8,778,279
e Depreciation 14 639,818 492,045
FEN T EREE S  Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 15 23,280 20,536
B EE#BE Amortisation of intangible assets 16 12,321 9,681
BIEKEHEREIZ  Minimum lease payments under
=K & 5KIB operating leases 103,862 84,049
EETRD BN & Auditor’s remuneration 3,589 2,783
EERAFAX (21 Employee benefit expense (including
EE5R&ESTHRAE  diectors’ and
) : chief executive’s remuneration):
IERFS Wages and salaries 3,732,745 3,249,587
RIRETEI K Pension scheme contributions 10 266,562 180,709
H Ath 18 A Other benefits 136,199 98,492
4,135,506 3,528,788
PE N =58 55 Foreign exchange differences, net* 138,831 87,503
WoRTFEE 0 BIFE  Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 1,900 11,023
H]RIT AL B WA Bank interest income 5 (149,171) (187,189)
ZREEFFEWA Interest income from entrusted loans 5 (28,485) (35,246)
HEME - HE R Loss on disposal of items of property,
RiEEB 2 B8 plant and equipment 5,034 5,847
* HE-_Z—X"F+ZA=+—8kZ= * The net foreign exchange differences for the years ended 31

E-RAFE+ A=+ -HILFEZIE
RERFHECAAREERRZ [Hit
XA

December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are included in “Other
expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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7. BMERAR 7. FINANCE COSTS

BEKADTAT : An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
ZE—RF —ET—LF
2016 2015
AR TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AM AR B H 2 F 2 Interest on convertible bonds 96,470 88,446
RITEEZFE Interest on bank borrowings 23,364 10,287
119,834 98,733

8. EERBSTHAEZME 8.

RAZ £ AR B R E B R A &I S383(1)
@ o) ) RHENRER AR (KEE
ENRER) ROIF2HMRE  AFEE
ERBRITBRABZMEREMNT :

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the disclosure requirements of Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:

—E-RE —TRF

2016 2015

ARE T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ik Fees 156 156
e EBREYNE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,417 7,354
RARET B K Pension scheme contributions 96 95
7,513 7,449

7,669 7,605
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8. EENRBEETHAEZME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

(#&) REMUNERATION (continued)
HTES (BERSTHRAB)REY Executive directors (including the chief executive), and
FHITES independent non-executive directors
e RER N
e BEYFI%= R B < 4 58
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
AR¥T R AR¥ET R AR¥ETR AR¥ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—EBE-REF 2016
HITES: Executive directors:
SrEtt Mr. Ma Jianrong - 1,489 26 1,515
ERAMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin
(TTEA##H) (Chief executive) - 1,340 25 1,365
B L4 Mr. Ma Renhe - 1,184 25 1,209
B @it Ms. Zheng Miaohui
(R=—F—+F (resigned on 1 January
—F—HEF) 2017) = 1,150 = 1,150
IHEREE Mr. Wang Cunbo - 971 10 981
ReHat Ms. Chen Zhifen - 1,131 10 1,141
- 7,265 96 7,361
BYIERTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
BERLE Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 38 - 134
PR AR R 4 Mr. Chen Genxiang
(R=—F—fF—f (resigned on 1 January
—AFF) 2017) 60 38 - 98
KEB LA Mr. Qiu Weiguo - 38 - 38
BRAB A Mr. Chen Xu = 38 = 38
156 152 - 308
156 7,417 96 7,669
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8. EENESTHAEZME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

(#&) REMUNERATION (continued)
HTES (BERSTHRABR)REY Executive directors (including the chief executive), and
FEHITES (£) independent non-executive directors (continued)

e ERR RIRETE

ok EWF = K ARt
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
AREFTT AREFIT ARBEFIT ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-FF 2015
HITES: Executive directors:
s g Mr. Ma Jianrong = 1,503 27 1,530
=ML A Mr. Huang Guanlin
(7T A#) (Chief executive) - 1,370 24 1,394
FEMEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 1,048 24 1,072
2R yh B Lr & Ms. Zheng Miaohui
(R=—F—+F—H (resigned on 1 January
— A BHE) 2017) - 1,136 - 1,136
EEﬁ»ffEEE Mr. Wang Cunbo _ 981 10 991
REHa+ Ms. Chen Zhifen - 1144 10 1 154
- 7,182 95 7,277
BYIERTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
BB LA Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 43 — 139
PR AR #F 5 4 Mr. Chen Genxiang
(R—ZF—f4F (resigned on 1 January
— A —HEE) 2017) 60 43 - 103
EKIEHE LA Mr. Qiu Weiguo - 43 - 43
PR B % A Mr. Chen Xu - 43 - 43
156 172 - 328
156 7,354 95 7,605
FRN UREEFAESTHABR There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
BERRENEEMNME 2L HE- executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.

Annual Report 2016 4 5 191



192

B R ER IR FIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

—T—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2016

9. HIEREHFMES 9.
FRAAEBRFMNEEY TREEME
EFXBZRTBRAR (ZT—0F &)
BEZMEFBEHER LXME8 - F R
EEZ(ZE-—AF - ARB)IEARAES
AHRRTRABZRSHMEE 2 EF

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year did not
include any director or chief executive (2015: None), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the five (2015: Five) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the

BT Company are as follows:
—E—RE —ET—RF
2016 2015
AR¥ T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
e EBREYNZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,801 8,567
RARETEIH5K Pension scheme contributions 21 39
8,822 8,606

MENFATENZFEERERITR
ABERSHMEER AR

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

EE A
Number of employees
—E—RE —E—RF
2016 2015
1,000,001/ 8T E HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7T 3 1
H382,000,0007% 7T Over HK$2,000,000 2 4
5 5
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10. EIREF 10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

—E-RE —T—RF
2016 2015
ARE T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RérEEmER PR Charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss
— R R A@ F X — Retirement benefit contributions 266,562 180,709

AEBNFBEARE =2BEE ZRIKE
MZZ BB BT E B < RIKEF BIFTR
B Rz EE AEEAEDL 2R
RERENEFZEEFSEBZET
BOLAE YRAEEHT ERAAE:
I A A BT E BB -

%

ARER B IR IR 58 B 1 R AR & A & R B
FEERAER2ERBEEHEZEERESR
H-RRERRBESE S - HKTR
BEEAF S 2KEBN XM AR
ERESHERUIEAINTREAE
AR - BEEF B2 EEF AR
BHZEGRN BAKENEEDFR
B-AKEZBEHFRABEEE
R R T2 BRNER -

A
N

DRRREETREARMEZIMAL 22
BB AR RMRERE R TRIEE.
Gain Lucky Vietnam }& Worldon Vietnam
ANRBEHENMEE A TREES S
A 3R R A 5 Bk (REHFR) -

The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salary of employees, subject
to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant government
authorities.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution, the MPF
Scheme in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Shenzhou Cambodia, Dagian Cambodia, Gain Lucky Vietnam
and Worldon Vietnam, wholly-owned subsidiaries incorporated
in the Kingdom of Cambodia and Vietnam respectively, are
required to contribute amounts based on employees’ salaries
(defined contribution) to the retirement benefit schemes as
stipulated by the relevant local authorities.

Annual Report 2016 4 ¥

193



194

I RRMIEE

Notes to Financial Statements

—T—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2016

10. BIK\EHR (&)

11.

RRFEMKIZZEMB AR A RE
EIRFT - AR E R B PR E AR K
w|AFEFELE TSR IER

B b XCATI 2 GR35 - Ao AR
Hip R G BRI EEAES 2 BIE-
P&

BE-T-AFR-Z-AFT-A
S+ RLEEZAEHAXEERS

10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continuea)

11.

Buddies Macao, a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated
in Macao, is required to contribute a certain amount to the
retirement benefit scheme as stipulated by the relevant local
authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond contributions in respect of the above.

INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are:

p=

—E—REF —ET—AF
2016 2015
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB ZEHNEM Current Hong Kong profits tax 39,366 27,053

PRk BB 3 Current Mainland China corporate income tax
FTiS®i (TREMBBI) (“CIT”) 652,716 497,297
RFE T IR Deferred taxation 3,185 7,709
695,267 532,059

BREREREHBEERE(—NANALF
BETHR)EANIE ARAFEERASHE
BERERTHEAR BESEEWEX
B A AR sk EZ TS FDE - WA -
WS EHT - AR AR R REBL
BER BWEREBEEZHTERM
MEHEIE16.5% (ZE—FHE:16.5% )
ZHERENEEFEE-

REBRLZESEMK LB AR H
BHMFEEH REAZEMNBRARR
EBRLHEBETELSEMWE (RAeEM
MER) NERABELESETHE
AEFK-E RREBEZESFMK
YZMBARKREERBRAR (K
F]) BEEREAERAR([BEEE
"E]) BEBVILAERRR([ER
BVI)) BEREEEEERAF([BHE
EEMBEBMNAERAR ([EF])HH
BB AR KERBEBENEMERE
¥ MERBEBEEZ T ERTBF
HER16.5% (T —HF:16.5%) 2
REHNBEBRER -

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an
undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law enacted
in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits,
income, gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company or its
operations. As the Company carries on business in Hong Kong,
it is subject to Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI are not subject
to income tax as these subsidiaries do not have a place
of business (but only a registered office) or carry on any
business in the BVI. Accordingly, Top Always Investments
Ltd. (“Top Always”), Buddies Investments Limited (“Buddies
Investments”), Maxwin (B.V.l.) Limited (“Maxwin BVI”), Buddies
Group Limited (“Buddies Group”), and Gain Lucky Co., Ltd.
(“Gain Lucky”), subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI, are not
subject to tax. As Top Always was engaged in the property
leasing business in Hong Kong, it is subject to Hong Kong
profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.
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11. Fr8 % (&) 11. INCOME TAX (continued)

RIFRB\ERIBEHRL L RERBRLE
AEM AL 2 2 BB R A M (RIS )
BRAA ([RMNRERER]) RATH
(RFE)BER A ([KTRHME])A
B20% M R BMAEH - AT RIFHS
B =T AFMEm I EERNFEER
REAMMEN - BMNRBRNFEALE
J&E SR T A o

REBEMK L IMBARNEMNESE
RAB([RMNES]) KT (FB)KR
BERRAR ([XFEE]RFE (F
B)ERAB ([HEEE]) ALR16.5%
(ZZE—AF:16.5%) MEHHERR
BRELZ TR A BHMATIE-

RBARFEMKZZ ZE M B AR HMA
AR g ([HMNAKR])RIEA AR
BRBL AR ER30% MK B AEL
Z RN BB TR - fa 1 F A M
B 83 S B AN B A A FE AR A A E -

AL B AP IS BT IR R o

R E A S 2 2 & M B A FlGain
Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. ([1&F]
] ) R Worldon (Vietnam) Company
Limited (Tt 3@ | ) 78 1 8 E20% 44
MATEH  EREmERNEERHRE
BB HINE=ZFEFNFERE
TEAQRHMFTEH - BIHEF ARG
BEEENFESB KR EMF
(AR F & BEE) BT - Lb I BIRME
VAR ROERR - s (a) @ A #E Kt
RIZE—RERARZZE-NF—HAH
7 B 4 % 60,0001E 5 & (4318
EL)WBIRERE: ROBEELEKA
ZBR=FRNIRBEREFHRASEE
TTOHBBEREABAZABRE=FAE
B iE3,000% B8 T E aJ i SR B K
10% BN TS B - W0 A] JEFA 2 & DU 4F
N E 1% N F DR R50%FT 15 i o 1= F
MR ZE-—RFEFELAIRE - =5
MIEBES - ABEREANEER
FH e

Pursuant to the Law of Taxation in Cambodia, Shenzhou
(Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Cambodia”) and Dagian
Textile (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Dagian Cambodia”), wholly-
owned subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia,
are subject to income tax at a rate of 20%, and Dagian
Cambodia is entitled to an exemption from income tax for the
first four profit-making years starting from 2015. Shenzhou
Cambodia had no assessable profits during the year.

Shenzhou Trading Company Limited (“Shenzhou Trading”), Top
Always (Hong Kong) Investment Limited (“Top Always HK”)
and Maxwin (Hong Kong) Limited (“Maxwin HK”), subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong, are subject to profits tax at a rate
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong.

Shenzhou Japan Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Japan”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary incorporated in Japan, under the Law of
Taxation in Japan, is subject to income tax at a rate of 30%
of the assessable profits arising in Japan. No provision for
Japan income tax has been made as Shenzhou Japan had no
assessable profits arising in Japan during the year.

Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. (“Gain Lucky Vietnam”) and
Worldon (Vietnam) Company Limited (“Worldon Vietnam”),
wholly-owned subsidiaries incorporated in Vietnam, are
subject to income tax at a rate of 20%, and are entitled to be
exempted from income tax for the first two profit-making years
and subject to a lower tax rate of 10% from the third year to
the sixth year. The period of tax privilege will start from the
earlier of the first profit-making year or the fourth year since
its establishment. Furthermore, under the laws and regulations
of Vietnam, provided that (a) the total investment of at least
VNDG,000 billion (approximately US$300 million) is paid by
June 2016 and January 2018 for Gain Lucky Vietham and
Worldon Vietnam, respectively; and (b) it maintains a minimum
annual revenue of US$500 million within three years from the
date of generating revenue, or it employs more than 3,000 staff
members within three years from the date on which revenue is
first generated, it will be subject to a lower profits tax rate of
10%, and the profits tax will be waived for four years and 50%
of its profits tax will be waived for the nine years thereafter.
Gain Lucky Vietnam had met the aforesaid criteria in 2016 and
is entitled to enjoy the tax privilege. Worldon Vietnam had no
assessable profits during the year.
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11. fTEH (#) 11. INCOME TAX (continued)

196

R RBORFIARRR % - FORFIRE M A
YZEEMBARAEE CRFIBERER
ERB)ARAR ([BRERPT]) ER
RRARFIMEH RALEHE FER
P R P RIS 15 8 455

BREBEHEARKMBEEEMRSEOE ([F
TEMEIE])  EPBENBRRNE
7B L BR B UL A 1225% 2 B R B A
(REBEHFEXMBREEE) -

R-F—RE RABAEKRIZEE
MERREREATHBMmERAR (TK
TE&]) DEBERIERNITIE 2RI
X ([EFEMER]) Bt KT
MBAER T R"F—-A—-B#F=
FEAEMGHERHE15% °

No provision for Macao Complementary Tax has been made
for Buddies (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Buddies
Macao”), a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in Macao, as
Buddies Macao is exempted from Macao Complementary Tax
pursuant to Macao’s relevant tax legislations.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), the PRC subsidiaries
for the year as determined in accordance with the New CIT
Law are subject to a tax rate of 25% on their assessable
income.

During 2016, Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“Dagian
Knitting”), a wholly-owned subsidiary established in Mainland
China, was qualified as a High-New Technology Enterprise
(“HNTE”) of Zhejiang Province. As a result, Dagian Knitting had
been entitled to a concessionary rate of income tax at 15% for
three years commencing 1 January 2016.
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11. FIBH (2 11. INCOME TAX (continued)
BERYREHNERNBE_S— A
ER-E—RF+-A=+—B I
FEEZHRESAREZWERENT

A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of
accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate
for the tax years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is as

follows:

ZE—RF —hF
2016 2015
ARET ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 253 Al A1 E Profit before tax 3,642,947 2,886,901
LAE FE i 25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%
(ZZT—HF:25%) (2015: 25%)
AAEZHIE 910,737 721,725
BERARER S 5 28F9  Lower tax rates for specific jurisdictions or
B2 BRIEB = enacted by local authorities (267,836) (206,230)
AR B & BRI 1Y Adjustments in respect of current tax of
HE previous periods (13,790) (123)
JEAGEE & ARl Profits and losses attributable to associate (624) 239
AR A Income not subject to tax (2,210) (10)
IRk Expenses not deductible for tax 21,398 18,328
FRRERZHIEEE Tax losses not recognised during the year 67,114 41,511
FI A AR R FE R 89 AT 3K Utilisation of previously unrecognised
MNPiIEEE deductible tax losses (38,052) (43,381)
676,737 532,059
ALK E KB A A Withholding tax at 5% on the distributed profits
25K M) B 8 45% of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
BB 15,000 -
RN ERRFEIZESHME  Withholding tax at 10% on the proceeds
E= XSG HIE from transaction with non-controlling
BAN10%TEIHL interests of a subsidiary 3,530 -
18,530 -
695,267 532,059
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12. B2

12. DIVIDENDS
—E-RE —T—RF
2016 2015
AR¥Tx ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BORARHR B EFREBAX  Proposed final dividend of HK$1.20
1.208 7T (BHEERIRE  (including a special dividend of HK$0.35)
0.35%87L) (ZZE—A%F: (2015: HK$1.07 (including a special
1.0787T (BHEERIKE  dvidend of HK$0.35)) per ordinary share
0.35%87T) ) 1,501,687 1,254,128

REF 2 R RIS ARARRBRR
RREE R RBF RE B3t

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the

approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

13. A AT EBERKRERFE AL 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
BRER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
a) EX a) Basic
EREXZMNTIBERRG LB Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
RIEEREB ARLFERIAFER profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
EBITEBERMETHEGTE - Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.
—2-RE —T-AF
2016 2015
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A E) AR AR Profit attributable to ordinary equity
A ARMENE holders of the Company 2,947,673 2,354,664
BT T BRI Weighted average number of ordinary
FHE (F®) shares in issue (thousands) 1,399,000 1,399,000
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13. ARAFREERKREFSEAENL
BREFN (&)
b) #8

ShEBRNBREME LEETE
NMEBRCELBMHEITE
Sz & 3B A DN HE T 15 B BUAE 5
BB -ARRRBE—HEHEE
7]5’]31“ B AR E S - B R
RAIBRBRESEEBBRSE B M
Y5 ) B 73 1 58 B DA 85 R BB 32

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has only one category of dilutive
potential ordinary shares: convertible bonds. The
convertible bonds are assumed to have been converted
into ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted to

BB E o

eliminate the interest expense less the tax effect.

—E-XF —hF
2016 2015
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A | AR AR Profit attributable to ordinary equity
WA AR TE holders of the Company 2,947,673 2,354,664
AR ES T S Interest expense on convertible bonds
(BRBi1&) (net of tax) 93,684 73,852
ARETETREE Profit used to determine diluted earnings
B2 M H per share 3,041,357 2,428,516
BEITEBRINEFHE  Weighted average number of ordinary
(F) shares in issue (thousands) 1,399,000 1,399,000
AT SIEAE: Adjustment for:
BEHBRATBRERES Assumed conversion of convertible
(FR%) bonds (thousands) 104,000 102,632
AR E SlEs Weighted average number of
Bz & m AR ordinary shares for diluted earnings
FHE(FR) per share (thousands) 1,503,000 1,501,632
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14. ¥ BERRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HHR
BF BERHESE RE BERE ERIE st
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles fixtures  in progress Total
ARETR AR%Tr ARETT ARETR AR¥TR AR%T:x
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EmFaE: Net book value:
RZF-RF+ZA=1—H  At31 December 2015 2,528,427 2,138,968 62,141 99,691 720523 5,549,750
XA Cost:
RZE-"E-HA—H At 1 January 2016 3,284,630 4,193,289 128,111 262,193 720,523 8,588,746
NE Additions 144,872 559,937 15,118 53,842 1,254,176 2,027,945
g5 Transfers 962,092 638,606 978 28,263  (1,629,939) -
HE Disposals (26,377) (32,240) (6,498) (3,166) - (68,281)
EHAR Exchange realignment 46,958 45,069 1,581 3,165 - 96,773
RZF-REF-A=+—H At 31 December 2016 4412175 5404661 139200 344207 344760 10,645,183
ZHHE: Accumulated depreciation:
RZE-"E-HA—-H At 1 January 2016 756,203 2,054,321 65,970 162,502 - 3,038,996
FENERR Depreciation provided during the year 224,409 347,652 17,940 49,817 - 639,818
HE Disposals (26,377) (27,268) (5,731) (2,413) - (61,789)
BN AR Exchange realignment 2,663 11,131 425 902 - 15,121
RZZE—x"F+-A=+—H  At31 December 2016 956,898 2,385,836 78,604 210,808 - 3,632,146
FmFAE: Net book value:
WZE-R"F+ZA=F+—H At 31 December 2016 3,455,217 3,018,825 60,686 133,489 344,760 7,013,037
REFE: Net book value:
WZZ-mE+=A=+—H At 31 December 2014 2,065,668 1,842,776 41,184 58,438 175,794 4,183,860
AR Cost:
RZZE-1F-A—-A At 1 January 2015 2,709,297 3,651,307 102,429 197,656 175,794 6,836,483
RE Additions 37,202 308,600 35,466 62,195 1,420,284 1,868,747
g Transfers 588,671 278,852 2,824 5,208 (875,555) -
s Disposals (51,415) (53,724) (12,946) (2,984) - (121,069)
ERAE Exchange realignment 875 8,254 338 118 - 9,585
WZE-RF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2015 3,284,630 4,193,289 128,111 262,193 720,523 8,588,746
ZHME: Accumulated depreciation:
RZZE-1F-A—-A At 1 January 2015 643,629 1,808,531 61,245 139,218 - 2,652,623
FENERE Depreciation provided during the year 163,453 286,501 16,174 25,917 - 492,045
HE Disposals (51,415) (44,870) (11,639) (2,726) - (110,650)
ERAE Exchange realignment 536 4,159 190 93 - 4,978
W-Z-FE+-A=F—H At 31 December 2015 756,203 2,054,321 65,970 162,502 - 3,038,996
FHFE: Net book value:
WZZF-HF+-A=F—H At 31 December 2015 2,528,427 2,138,968 62,141 99,691 720,523 5,549,750

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



B R ER IR FIEE
Notes to Financial Statements

—T—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2016

14.

15.

ME - BERRE 2 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
R—E—XRE+_A=+—8" At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s equipment with a
AREBETEHEEAFEOARE net carrying amount of approximately RMB612,791,000 (2015:
612,791,000t (ZE— R F: AR RMB258,418,000) were pledged to secured certain bank loans
258,418,0007T ) E/EEMIE B AR EEFT granted to the Group (note 29).
ERAETIRITERZER (HiE29) °
RAREAH AEBEAESE TE As at the date of this report, the Group was in the process
FHEMERE R_T—X~"F+= of applying for the title certificates of certain of its buildings
A=+ —"BREFEABFHOARE with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
1,697,554,0007C - R AR EERRAE RMB1,697,554,000 as at 31 December 2016. The directors
BEHESEZWERNE RER LE of the Company are of the view that the Group is entitled
FoARARAIEENRALMEEFIGZY to lawfully and validly occupy and use the above-mentioned
REBR-_T—AF+_A=+—H8H buildings. The directors of the Company are also of the opinion
HMBRABERTE - that the aforesaid matters will not have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2016.
AN EERE 15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
—E-REF —T—hF
2016 2015
ARE T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DN Cost:
n—H—H At 1 January 1,027,888 849,951
NE Additions - 177,937
PE 5 PR Exchange realignment 15,623 =
Rn+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 1,043,511 1,027,888
g §i R Accumulated amortisation:
n—H—H At 1 January 96,633 76,097
A Amortisation during the year 23,280 20,536
PE W R Exchange realignment 426 -
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 120,339 96,633
REFE: Net book value:
Rn+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 923,172 931,255
n—A—H At 1 January 931,255 773,854
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16. B & E 16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B4 kg HEt
Water Use
Software Right* Total
ARET R AR¥ETT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE—RF 31 December 2016
+=H=+—8
WRZZE—R"F—H—HZ Costat1January 2016, net of
B - B AR R AT 85 accumulated amortisation 29,362 80,088 109,450
NE Additions 8,099 - 8,099
FEHHERE Amortisation provided during the year (5,871) (6,450) (12,321)
RZE—RE At 31 December 2016
+-—A=+—H 31,590 73,638 105,228
RZZE—RF At 31 December 2016:
+=A=+—H:
B 7R Cost 45,189 129,000 174,189
RETH# 55 Accumulated amortisation (13,599) (55,362) (68,961)
REFE Net carrying amount 31,590 73,638 105,228
1t Rk HE* Rt
Water Use
Software Right* Total
AREFTT AREFTT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZZT—AF 31 December 2015
+-A=+—H”
W-Z—RAF—HF—HZ  Costat 1 January 2015, net of
BRAS  B AR R AT 8 accumulated amortisation 16,308 86,538 102,846
RNE Additions 16,285 - 16,285
FEEHEEE Amortisation provided during the year (3,231) (6,450) (9,681)
RZE—RF At 31 December 2015
+=-A=+—8H 29,362 80,088 109,450
RZE—RF At 31 December 2015:
+ZA=+—8:
X2 Cost 37,090 129,000 166,090
RETH 5 Accumulated amortisation (7,728) (48,912) (56,640)
REFE Net carrying amount 29,362 80,088 109,450
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6. & ﬁ,ﬁE (%)
$E?F$'¥l£ﬁia%/)§mitﬁaaﬂzrw_
= 7/\£|5|EH nTiZTﬁJu M&$%.
Ti&ﬁibﬁl@kﬂ%éﬁ@iﬂzﬁaﬂw
BANRRZZTENFILZ=MHR
W ASEEREREHEFZGA
R #129,000,0007T * AR & LAEBEE
REEFKEREE  BE20F ([F
KE]) RZT—ARFE+ZA=+—
H A&EEE X AR53,000,000
T (ZZ—RF: AR#¥53,000,000
JT)  MERFE A R#76,000,0007T 2 5t

16. |NTANG|BLE ASSETS (continued)

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Group and the
Government of Beilun District, Ningbo City, in April 2006 and
three supplementary agreements entered into by the Group,
Ningbo Beilun Water Conservancy Bureau and Ningbo Water
Supply General Company in 2008, the Group has agreed to pay
the local government an amount of RMB129 million in exchange
for a guaranteed constant water supply with a favourable price
for a period of 20 years (“Water Use Right”). As at 31 December
2016, the Group has paid an amount of RMB53,000,000 (2015:
RMB53,000,000), and the remaining amount of RMB76,000,000
was included in other payables.

A b FE < R IE o
17. R—EBERATA2RE 17. AN INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
—RE —T—hF
2016 2015
AR¥ T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BhEEFR Share of net assets 7,173 4,677
gﬂ?ﬁ“ﬂEE°J\\‘|§+£%EEU+Eﬁ5E@ﬁ (rER Ningbo Avery Dennison Shenzhou Knitting and Printing Co.,
XM RARE —RBE AR LR Ltd. (“Ningbo Avery”) is an associate of the Group and is
TEARSRE BT considered to be a related party of the Group.
AEERZBE R FREH BB The Group’s shareholding in the associate comprises the 30%
RA—H2ENBARRE 230%M 2 equity shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
IR DMK - Company.
TRFUAEEWIFERZHERRZ The following table illustrates the financial information of the
MBER Group’s associate that is not material:
—E-RF ZE—RF
2016 2015
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE/REE S N RIGEER B KR Share of the associate’s profit for the year
Hh 2= and other comprehensive income 2,496 (957)
REBRE L AR EZ  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
BREEARE investment in the associate 7,173 4,677
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18. F & 18. INVENTORIES

—g-x5 —T-1F

2016 2015

ARET R ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R Raw materials 773,025 800,877

R Work in progress 1,525,175 1,295,316

K oh Finished goods 1,416,990 1,160,208

3,715,190 3,256,401

BB Provision (16,100) (23,554)

3,699,090 3,232,847

10. EWERFZ KR EE 19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

—E-RF —E-RF

2016 2015

AR T AREEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

FEWR R R R Trade and bills receivables 2,652,707 2,001,783
AEBEREFZ2EHARFTEZUEER The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
RNET EEHLHNEALNRN-2RE credit with credit terms of within six months. Overdue balances

BEgrcHniafi R TEs- are reviewed regularly by senior management.
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19. EWRRKRERE (2) 19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
R EER BIBEZE B E 2B An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
A RERRRDTUOT end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:
ZE-RF —T—REF
2016 2015
AR¥ T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=@EARN Within three months 2,445,597 1,902,454
=@AMNE Over three months 207,110 99,329
2,652,707 2,001,783
I B E ok LR W AR A B RE 2 BUERE The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are
RREBBEZERSTAOT not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
—E—KEF e S
2016 2015
AR®B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RiE HA SR B Neither past due nor impaired 2,620,070 1,993,905
B HR D = (B A Less than three months past due 8,766 3,135
A= @A E Over three months past due 23,871 4,743
2,652,707 2,001,783
SR8 B SO (B 2 FE U 3k TE B B NP AR 3 Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
Rz BF B - customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
B ERBE BNRIBEERE TEY Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
EFAH ZEEFPRASENRZE number of independent customers that have a good track
BRI - BRERATLR ARFESR record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
R EBERNEEERUEERNEH BZ of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
ZHEHRWBE AT 28D - WEE impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
DEEBRIHTRBERE AEB X ER has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
ZEEHRTEEWER R LH E MR balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
AEEE =T H- not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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19. EWRRKRERE (2) 19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
Rt A=1+—8 FEUREREREEEI At 31 December, the trade and bills receivables were
Y B ETE denominated in the following currencies:

—E-xE 0%

2016 2015
F#  HEARE R#  HEARE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
Trx AR%Tr Tr ARETRT
in thousand RMB’000 in thousand RMB'000
ETT Us$ 243,710 1,690,614 178,429 1,158,647
AR RMB 962,093 843,136
2,652,707 2,001,783
FEUBE = I =~ BE T {E B E A S (B 4 The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables
= approximate to their fair values.
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20. EIARE -RERHEMEKRR

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

b | RECEIVABLES
ZE-RF —T—RF
2016 2015
AR¥ T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B H#A Current
ENRERES Prepayments and deposits
—BERMB — Purchase of raw materials 125,029 150,929
—HBEYE HMELREE - Purchase of items of property,

EH plant and equipment 86,782 43,490
—EBNEEkES — Prepaid rental and deposits 124,375 115,648
—Hfh — Others 15,356 15,319

e R AT EIE(EFLRF VAT refund receivable and recoverable 183,540 195,906

& U F) B Interest receivable 69,797 99,010

H th & 3R IB Other receivables 69,357 55,982
674,236 676,284

Ik BN A Non-current

K ERTE A goE Long-term prepayments* 78,328 =

L& B &S MSOR(E - Ll B ERAT

BEzemEEMT BT ER KL The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
JEWGRIE B/ receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
FENFIE me R EMEWHIEZ RE The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits and other

BEEREQXAERE-

* REBENFBERE I WFERE AR * Long-term prepayments represent the prepayments for land use

I8 o

receivables approximate to their fair values.

right.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
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21.

22.

ZTEEX . ENTRUSTED LOANS
ZE-RE ZZ-nf
2016 2015
TeeE 448
= (%) HHAE  ARETR 7% (%) IR ARETR
Principal Principal
Interest amount Interest amount
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
Ik Current
ZRER-HER Entrusted loans - guaranteed 6.40 2017 150,000  5.05-5.10 2016 120,000
FEEH Non-current
ZRER-BER Entrusted loans - guaranteed - 6.21-640 2017 550,000
150,000 670,000

R-_TE—RE+-_A=+—H £#HE
A — B RRERF IR TIR AR -

As at 31 December 2016, entrusted loans are guranteed by a
licensed bank in Mainland China.

AHHERE . AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
—g—xE —T-afF
2016 2015
ARET ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e REEETHY Financial products issued
TRUEm by financial institutions 3,120,000 800,000

RZZE—XFE+-A=+—8 BHZH
CREEBMBETAETEREAARE
3,120,000,000Tt (ZZE—HF : AR¥
800,000,0007T ) #) < B 2 G J0 1% A AN
WEAR TS BERE S A RIE
ERBAERBIABRAGES LR
(TETRA D) F14.076EZELRE
Mo TT 2 FERAAR SRS /N RS % » #UR
BRZEEMERT TERARAN L
MBPRBE T ATRAR G EERA
BEZRARBETREARTE - SHER
ZEHOR—FEEPFOREREDE
48% (ZFE—HF:5.0%) RIEAEH
ERNBA ZECHMERND AR
RAE - AEEBTHMNIHEHEZS SR

EE

As at 31 December 2016, certain financial products issued
by several financial institutions with a carrying amount of
RMB3,120,000,000 (2015: RMB800,000,000) were stated at
cost less impairment. The relevant size tests pursuant to Rule
14.07 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
for such financial products, when grouped by each financial
institution, are all less than 5% and the investment in such
financial products do not constitute notifiable transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The directors are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
financial products have terms of less than one year and have
expected annual rates of return up to 4.8% (2015: 5.0%).
Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices, these financial
products are capital guaranteed upon the maturity date. The
Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.
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. fTEEmIA 23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—AE —hE
2016 2015

BE g BE BfE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARETRT AR®Tn ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RHEEEH Forward currency contracts = = = -

EHEREHN-BHEaREH W
ERERS OB ERELBIEFZE
BARREEZEH T T A ZHEE AL
FEERBETRAT SN BB 2 KT SN AR R
MEZEHMAE - REBE_T—X
FREETEMERTE L -

REEEASANFEHETERRKHEEF
HEF - E_Z—AF BEFEAR
#9,363,000701% 7l 75 =T A ¥ 5

Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges

Forward currency contracts are designated as hedging

instruments in respect of forecast future sales to overseas

customers. The forward currency contract balances vary with

the levels of expected foreign currency sales and changes in

foreign exchange forward rates. The Group did not enter into

any forward currency contracts in 2016.

The terms of the forward currency contracts match the terms
of the forecast future sales. Net losses of RMB9,363,000 for
the year 2015 were included in the hedging reserve as follows:

1
—ARfF
2015
ARETT
RMB’000
FFAE B AN EEBEERES Total fair value losses included in
the hedging reserve (3,529)
DABERE ZEERIE Deferred tax on fair value gains 568
e BERRPER Reclassified from other comprehensive
Hth2EK=EHHE income recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (7,685)
EMOEEERCELERIE Deferred tax on reclassification to
profit or loss 1,283
Beme P2 BaFE Net losses on cash flow hedges (9,363)
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24,

25.

HBEM 24. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS
—E—RE —T—hF
2016 2015
ARE T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TR H B 5 2 R 1T Y Structured deposits in licensed banks
HERFER BB AET  in the PRC, at amortised cost = 110,000

R-ZT—RE+-_A=+—0H &#ERK
FERR—FURN BEFRHES
3.6% - MRIBBEEHNNBE  ZEHE
FRBRE B EHRZA - I~ A A 2 21
HAIEAER - 2 S B ERRAFE
ZIHf o

As at 31 December 2015, the structured deposits had terms
of less than one year with fixed annual rates of return at
3.6%. Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices, these
structured deposits are capital and return guaranteed upon
the maturity date. No redemption ahead of the maturity date is
allowed. These structured deposits matured in the current year.

IK 0 77 =X 25. PLEDGED DEPOSITS
—E-XE —T—RF
2016 2015
ARET AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Current
ThONEES 1 HA 4 ) K Pledged for foreign currency swaps - 1,830,908
R E Non-current
BLERTT B F/E T K 4 Pledged for bank loans 500,000 —
500,000 1,830,908

RZE—RF+-_A=+—R0 EF
7 & @ 7F 83 15 5 A R 500,000,000
(Z2—RF BERETAKEZE
WIRIRTTEFEIR T - E AF R
w—F EEFFEL/ILE o

RZE—hE+_A=+—H0 A%
208,046,000 7t * 5,800,000,000 H
+ 14,000,000 7T M K22,866,000%
1% BF (#T A 49 A R #1,830,908,000
TL) ZRITEBEIEER BEEAREELE
BERRENE TINERB AL WIERNT
12BE20E v EFEFMEFE -ZF
RHERARNFEEZTHK -

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s time deposits
with an amount of RMB500,000,000 (2015: Nil) were pledged
to secured bank loans granted to the Group. The time deposits
have terms of more than one year and have fixed annual rates
of return at 3.5%.

As at 31 December 2015, bank balance of US$208,046,000,
JPY5,800,000,000, EUR14,000,000 and CHF22,866,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB1,830,908,000 were restricted
until certain foreign currency swap transactions held by the
Group were settled, carrying fixed interest rates from 1.2% to
2.9% per annum. These foreign currency swap transactions
were completed in current year.
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26. RERBESEEY

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

—E—RE —E—hF

2016 2015

ARE TR ARETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

0 e MIRTT 8 Cash and bank balances 1,961,086 1,748,380
NEFEZHLR =M A2 Bank deposits with an initial term

RITIF K of less than three months 144,098 67,298

RekBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,105,184 1,815,678

N EIR AEBEUARBFEZR
& RIRTT 4 82 40 B A R #983,234,000
T (ZE—RF: AR®1,088,440,000
L) c ARETAIERIERAHMEY -
SR - AR IR AR B K e 2 AN B R K
HE SERNESEHATE ~AEEE
HAESBEREATNETEL ZEK 2R
THARBRABBEMEE -

TFRRBIT RS LBIT 28 BEFHRA
KT B A R FREUK B, - 52 B SRUA —
REZAATEFZTAHEEFE RTF
AEEZRHRSFRME LIRAE
REIT AR S - RITERER
AROW BB ZEBRIFRIT
RelBeFEMcREEEEARE
EESR

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB983,234,000 (2015: RMB1,038,440,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
pbanks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.
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27. ENERAREE 27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
RMERAR BNERRRERER ST An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
R of the reporting period is as follows:
ZE-RF —T—RF
2016 2015
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
~EA A Within six months 739,842 642,818
NMEAAZE—F Six months to one year 4,377 21,636
—FEMF One year to two years 3,632 4,341
MW E A E Over two years 10,366 9,740
758,217 678,535
ERNERREBIGTE - EBNERRRE The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The
BeREABEEERAERS- carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate

to their fair values.

28. Hih e RIE KR EEHRKIA 28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
—E—KEF —ET—RF
2016 2015
AR®B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BRI Accrued expenses 408,765 296,989
KRN ZTE (MsE16) Payable for Water Use Right (note 16) 76,000 76,000
BEWE BE X Payables for purchase of
B A ROR property, plant and equipment 56,048 74,896
BHRRETIREZRER Guarantee deposits related
to construction projects 9,143 5,740
REFEWFIE Advance from customers 48,268 70,133
HE®RS Rental deposits 4,359 5,921
H fth JE A R 1B Other taxes payable 122,983 52,660
FESEIRHIMEREZS 2 B8 B Dividends payable to
non-controlling interests 587 587
Hity Others 60,921 60,013
787,074 642,939
E A FETFRIB R FERTFRIE < BRE(E B H The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals
NABERE  HMENFIETG B - approximate to their fair values. Other payables are non-

interest-bearing.
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29. Gt EBRITRRE 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
“E-RE “E-hf
2016 2015
BRAE ERF=
(B) HHA AR%Tx (B) IMA  ARETR
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
wE Current
ROTER-BHH Bank loans - unsecured LIBOR/
(REKER) (due for repayment on demand) HIBOR HIBOR
+0.81 2017 357,800 +1-1.35 2016 586,460
ROTER-BER Bank loans - secured
(RERER) (due for repayment on demand) 26-3.5 2019 -2021* 883,633 29-3.0 2019 - 2020 70,391
1,241,433 656,851
* ZERTEEFTARDEERN REA * These bank borrowings are included in current liabilities as the
IRITHEBBHENIERZERNE S banks have an overriding right to call for cash repayment on
BRMBEE—SZEEAEERER demand at any time without further reference to the Group and
RERAEBEERNRITZEME to demand settlement of any balance owing by the Group to the
#ho banks.
—E-RE —E—RF
2016 2015
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MWD& Analysed into:
AR B HARE (838 2 $R 77§ Bank loans and overdrafts repayable:
AREZ
—FAHIRERK Within one year or on demand 1,241,433 656,851
() RZE—RFT+ZA=+—H (a) As at 31 December 2016, the borrowings were
BREYUET - BTRARE denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars
Be and RMB.
b) AEBETRITERIIATAMAE (b)  Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:
TER IR
() AEEETHREBEZ2ZE B ()  mortgages over certain of the Group’s equipment,
—E-RE+=-_A=+— which had an aggregate carrying value as at 31
AEREEERLREHARE December 2016 of approximately RMB612,791,000
612,791,000c (ZZE—H (2015: RMB258,418,000); and
F: AR®258,418,000
L) R
iy AEEZETEHFIHK (i)  the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
& AR ¥#500,000,0007T amounting to RMB500,000,000 (2015: Nil).
—E—RFHE)-
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30. AR ES 30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

214

ZE-RF —T—REF
2016 2015
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZZT—WmFXH+/\H Face value of convertible bonds

BT MRESR ZHEME  issued on 18 June 2014 3,097,380 3,097,380
EITER Issuing expenses (53,790) (58,790)
s Equity component (197,140) (197,140)

R-ZZ—MW&XA+/\H Liability component on initial recognition
ML ERFHBEIT D on 18 June 2014 2,846,450 2,846,450
EXEFHT 2 Effect of exchange rate changes 373,834 160,278
RETRE A Accumulated finance costs 231,023 134,553
JE T F) 2 Interest paid (41,162) (24,272)
BENS Liability component 3,410,145 3,117,009

RZE—WOFNA+T/\B ARQAFE
17 78 & 42 %83,900,000,0008 ;L 1Y —
—NFARA+NAB(TRHBBE]DRHZ
AMRES VTHRRESERAAF
T iBAR38.56 T (] TR ) ZE A X
BOLEBRIEZAIEIER &R i
ikl BRIZEESF BRI B RIRAE
© 8 2103.86%E R - R —F —HF N
A+t=Ak=_ZE—X"EXA+—H &
BR-_ZE-—NFER_E-—RAFERHAKE
B BBRESHARAERAAR LA
}%38.007%8 7T % 37.507% TT °

i

*

BER D kRS D 2 AR ERAE

EHFBTREE -

i

&

BESOHZARE HREREREBLR
B MES 2 T I5 N K365 H -
HERRER D ZEBE FFARRE
mPZFEEA -

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

On 18 June 2014, the Company issued convertible bonds
which will be due on 18 June 2019 (the “maturity date”), in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$3,900,000,000 with an
initial conversion price of HK$38.56 (subject to adjustment)
per ordinary share of the Company, and the coupon rate is
0.5%. Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased or
cancelled, these bonds will be redeemed at 103.86% of their
principal amount on the maturity date. On 13 June 2015 and
11 June 2016, the conversion price has been adjusted to
HK$38.00 and HK$37.50 per ordinary share of the Company
respectively, upon the declaration of the final 2014 and 2015
dividend.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined upon the issuance of the
convertible bonds.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate of 3.55% for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the equity
component, is included in reserves in shareholders’ equity.
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30. AR ES (#) 30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
RZE—ARE+ZA=+—H8 @K The fair value of the convertible bonds approximated to their
BEHFHNANBEEERMERS- carrying amount as at 31 December 2016.
RZE—RE+ZA=+—8 #HERE As at 31 December 2016, no bond holders have converted
FRABABHESFERARNNRZ LM their bonds into ordinary shares of the Company.

B o
31. EEZERIE 31. DEFERRED TAX
RIEFEIHRE 2B T The gross movements in the deferred tax accounts are as
follows:
—E-RF —E-RF
2016 2015
AR%E TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
F 1) At beginning of year 4,981 10,840
REFEBRERINGRZ Deferred tax charged
EERIE (HaE11) to the statement of profit or
loss during the year (note 11) (3,185) (7,709)
RAFERERFTALZ Deferred tax credited
R IE to equity during the year - 1,850
F At end of year 1,796 4,981
BEEHEEERAGERFAZEE): The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows:

(a) EELEHEEE (a) Deferred tax assets
BE
Provisions
ARBTT
RMB’000
R-ZE—RF—HA—H At 1 January 2015 12,690
RAFEERZRNBZ Deferred tax charged to the statement of
EIETIE profit or loss during the year (7,709)
—E—RF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2015 4,981
REFEERENRZ Deferred tax charged to the statement of
IR IEF IR profit or loss during the year (1,352)
R—E—R"F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2016 3,629
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31. EEKRIE ()

(a) EEBEBEEE (&)
RZTE—A"F+ZA=+—8"
AEEERFAMBEEOARE
586,042,0007T (ZF —FH F: A
R #491,471,00000) A —E F
FRFIH - LA 85 K 2R fE R B A
o AN B AR B S AT A0 F A
ERERECHEELE REAH
AN K AT B2 A8 FE AR AR DA 6
AT IR S =58 -

REPBIARRE RIFRTERBREE
A3 AT R 3 S R SR RR A A B
ZHBERER—EAFEH-

(b) EEHEBEEE

(a)

(b)

31. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

The Group had accumulated tax losses of approximately
RMB586,042,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB491,471,000), which will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
deductible temporary differences as it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

The tax losses arising in Mainland China, the Kingdom
of Cambodia and Vietnam for offsetting against future

taxable profits will expire in one to five years.

Deferred tax liabilities

mEREEN
BEITEN ReEmE
¢ HH1EE Ast
Depreciation
allowance in
excess
of related Cash flow
depreciation hedges Total
ARBFT ARBTRT AR¥ETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZE—RAF—HA—H At1January 2015 - 1,850 1,850
RAFEERE Deferred tax credited to the
FFAZIEERIE statement of profit or loss
during the year - (1,850) (1,850)
R-ZZE—RA%F At 31 December 2015
+ZA=+—AH - - -
RARFEBRE Deferred tax charged to the
kR 2 EEFIE statement of profit or loss
during the year 1,833 - 1,833
R-ZB-—RF At 31 December 2016
+=—B=+-—H 1,833 - 1,833
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31. EELEBLIH ()

(b)

EERBEE (Z)
BEPBREEMESRE B
)\i—ﬂ—atvﬁw!ﬂ*ﬁi
ZHEIMNMEEREMTIRZREE
B 0% TE B o fis = B B2 )G HME
BEMBRIZER AR S L A
AEAREKZFENHE - AKE
= @B E A% o Fi 15 1% 78
RZZEZENF_H=t+= Eiﬂﬁﬁﬁ
B #1(2008) %155 - 5T A A A =
TE+F+=ZA=+— ElE’W'%”’Ej
MERRELFRZREERE
BN -

—_ ==

RZEB—XRE+=-A=+—8 #
FEh AN S B A R B K B K 37 2 BT
NAVBHRIEINH 2 REHRBF 2
Fﬁi‘é%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%@@ﬁﬁlﬁo%%
RE ZEMBARNY LIRS
/)EEZQ ELRF Z AT IERRK o
R-ZB—RF+-_A=+—H #
FERRERENE AR BB
BREERIERE 2 R ZHEH
#)5 AR ¥12,293,092,0007T (=
T —hF: AR%9,956,484,000
TT) e

31. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(b)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China effective from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax arrangement
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. On 22
February 2008, Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by
the tax authorities to specify that dividends declared and
remitted out of the PRC from the retained profits as at 31
December 2007 are exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2016, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such unremitted
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB12,293,092,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB9,956,484,000).

32. ®RA& 32. SHARE CAPITAL
B 12 Shares
—E-RE —hf
2016 2015
TEr AR®Tn TET ARETR
HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$'000 RMB’000
BETRAR: Issued and fully paid:
1,399,000,000% 1,399,000,000 (2015:
(ZE—F&: 1,399,000,000) ordinary
1,399,000,000) & & E {E shares of HK$0.10 each
0108 T2 ERK 139,900 142,105 139,900 142,105
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33. il
AEERENRBEFEZBREOAER

H

-

FEE2NRNPERERFEIB0ELE

ET TR

(i)

(i)

(iii)

ZERHBABS ([AEBHAE
£1)

RIE B D RE KA B KRN B
NAZBBERMA - SHBEKREE
MEBARERERTREAARE:
JRANEE 2 BRBEFIEI0%EAZR
EEREBAES BEEEBEAES
ERFEMARARZ50%41E - A E
ERBAES ] AREMNE R R
N WENMBEZBETIB IR
AR 2 25% ©

BE 5% Bh 7 48

PEE 34, % B i s PR ME RC 8 R 1R BB
SMNMB AR MR ELEZE
HER-

H At 7% 45

H A& A1 TR RIEFIENIBR
T BOHEMBRBMESHR
BHEANKS B HAEEHIEER
AREER S

33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 130 of
the financial statements.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the Mainland China subsidiaries,
each of the Mainland China subsidiaries is required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles, to the SSR until the reserve reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Part of the SSR may be converted
to increase paid-up capital, provided that the remaining
balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the excess of the
consideration received for partial disposal of a subsidiary
without loss of control, over the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests as at the transaction date.
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4. FEREHEZRS 34. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(@) TEXEZEFEBERZTHENEA (a) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of

AR control

RZE-—RENAZ+XAB- On 26 August 2016, the Company and NetEase (Hong
RAAGEBS (HBE)ERAFA Kong) Limited entered into a share purchase agreement
Bt H %54,9000% 55 E(BVIE i AR 5T in relation to the sales of 4,900 ordinary shares of Maxwin
J—MERBE REHARE BVI at a consideration of approximately RMB77,245,000.

77,245,0007T °

(b) BEZZE—X<F+ZH=+—HL (b) Effects of transactions with non-controlling
FE HEFEHMERARZHAE interests on the equity attributable to owners of the
ARAEEEEAEGERNEE Company for the year ended 31 December 2016
&
Effect on the
total equity
ARBTT
RMB’000
AATIRRIEGRERZERE : Changes in equity attributable to shareholders of

the Company arising from:

—PERIFHEBRT — disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss
HE B A B s of control 148,333
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35. REBHIE T 2EMT A
RESHR 2HEFeBIAZEER

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

220

PONE instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
TREE Financial assets
ZE-RF
2016
BEXR AHEE
e CREE #at
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
ARBTR AR¥T ARET R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments - 3,120,000 3,120,000
EURBR T K ZiE Trade and bills receivables 2,652,707 = 2,652,707
AT FIE - Financial assets included in
HeREMEKRKIELZ prepayments, deposits
SHMEE and other receivables 139,154 = 139,154
FEUR BBk A T 3KIB Amounts due from related parties 826 - 826
ZEER Entrusted loans 150,000 - 150,000
BHEEER Pledged deposits 500,000 = 500,000
NpEFERHa=MA Bank deposits with an initial term
RITFER of over three months 783,452 - 783,452
ReKREFED Cash and cash equivalents 2,105,184 - 2,105,184
6,331,323 3,120,000 9,451,323

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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35. HERE s 2EMIAE (&)

(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

—T-hF
2015
BERK AHEE
FE W FRIE TRIBE S
Available—
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments - 800,000 800,000
S Y E LS Trade and bills receivables 2,001,783 - 2,001,783
ST ATE R - Financial assets included in
BekEMERGIELZ prepayments, deposits
EREE and other receivables 154,992 - 154,992
g N Amounts due from related parties 559 = 559
ZEER Entrusted loans 670,000 - 670,000
EBIE S Structured deposits 110,000 - 110,000
BEEAER Pledged deposits 1,830,908 = 1,830,908
MeERBa=-@EA 2 Bank deposits with an initial term
RITIE K of over three months 623,442 - 623,442
ReRREFEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,815,678 = 1,815,678
7,207,362 800,000 8,007,362
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35. wEREs2EMIE (&) 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

TREE Financial liabilities
—E-RF —E-hF
2016 2015
R 85 R A R SH AR
FEZ AEZ
A =R TRBE
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERERR R R E Trade and bills payables 758,217 678,535

a1 A H b & A R IR K2 Financial liabilities included in

[EErRBEZERERE other payables and accruals 330,041 275,817
FEAS A BSE A T3R8 Amount due to a related party - 2,166
A] 2% (E 5 Convertible bonds 3,410,145 3,117,009
FFERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,241,433 656,851
5,739,836 4,730,378

222 FR M B £ @2 R A BR A 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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36. TRATAZARERQIAERE

&

AEEZERTARMERAAE (K
FHEEAAEBSEMEERN W

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

™ reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:
EHE ANE
Carrying amounts Fair values
—E-xE§ —ZE-hE —E-RE —Z-hfF
2016 2015 2016 2015
ARBTRE AR%ETT AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EREE: Financial assets:
AHEHERE Available-for-sale investments 3,120,000 800,000 3,111,449 798,472
YRR R R & Trade and bills receivables 2,652,707 2,001,783 2,652,707 2,001,783
STABMFIE Financial assets included in
weREMEKFIEL prepayments, deposits
SREE and other receivables 139,154 154,992 139,154 154,992
) N Amounts dug from related parties 826 559 826 559
REEHX Entrusted loans 150,000 670,000 152,405 688,288
BEER Structured deposits - 110,000 - 110,009
[REAELYER Pledged deposits 500,000 1,830,908 497,255 1,824,280
MieGERBa="A2 Bank deposits with an initial term
BITHER of over three months 783,452 623,442 765,498 622,811
BeRkRESED Cash and cash equivalents 2,105,184 1,815,678 2,105,184 1,815,678
9,451,323 8,007,362 9,424,478 8,016,872
tRERE: Financial liabilities:
ERERERRE Trade and bills payables 758,217 678,535 758,217 678,535
AR MR FIE R Financial liabilities included in
EHFE eRAE other payables and accruals 330,041 275,817 330,041 275,817
JE T BAEE A TR Amount due to a related party - 2,166 - 2,166
AR E s Convertible bonds 3,410,145 3,117,009 3,410,145 3,117,009
FERTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,241,433 656,851 1,216,901 648,273
5,739,836 4,730,378 5,715,304 4,721,800
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36.

37.

EMIBEZARBERAAERE
@)
SREERBBEZANBEUZIARE
B 57 (T3Essif sl B 2 55 ) & Al
XHTHARSLEAE - T35 ERK
BRIVANEERRE:

RekBReEEY VaFRRE=E
AZBROTERNBHR D ZEER &
BEX CHEREREHE D AL
ERE BUREAEER St ARMK
B RHEREBEERBAZEREE
MR R R 5 A AR IR K
EETRBz BB EREY BB
NAEFENAABEEEEEERS £
ZRA/ZEFTANEHAZIM-

i FER B =8 A 2 RITFRIER R
Mo SEIPFRIENHAI S AR
THEERARRES 2 AENERA
BEOUGR EERREGTIHA 2
T A AT RS 2 ) & B8 37 FEHI R 2R 3R
ERMEMatE -

HHEEREEREBEBEREX

BROTETES AEEZTESRMTA
BREASRES RITERRRS AR
RHERER - ZFeRITATERR
RAGEZEEEMFTES -AKET
BzREMEREERAE HIWNER
HEEEE 2 BRBRR R ENRRK

AEEERTEAEEAZTERR SN X
R SMNERR EERRBRMABES
AR -ZEFEMRMERRAETES
TR B BBERR N -

36.

37.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, the current
portion of bank deposits with an initial term of over three
months, entrusted loans, structured deposits, the current
portion of pledged deposits, available-for-sale investments,
trade and bills receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals and amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of bank deposits with
an initial term of over three months, the non-current portion
of pledged deposits, the interest-bearing bank borrowings
and convertible bonds have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments on similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
convertible bonds, bank loans and cash and short-term time
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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37. ¥ AEREEREREE 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
A = [ b Interest rate risk
AEBAAYMSHEESRMESHE The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
AEBESRAEBAEE (BREFE rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations
EREBEFEXBER —FRIBAEE (including the bank borrowings due to repayment after one year
RITHE) B which contain a repayment on demand clause) with floating
interest rates.
TRINAAIRERR - FEFTE E B The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
TR ZIEMRT - 285 B Bk 7 A F)E ¥ 7 the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in interest
KEBA B GURE DT - rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit
before tax.
KRB AT
=) REEm,
(THEEE (R 2)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
ARBTT
RMB’000
—E-REF 2016
A= FA If interest rate increases 50 (44,182)
FET A If interest rate decreases (50) 44,182
—ET—RF 2015
AR If interest rate increases 50 (3,520)
WNF =T If interest rate decreases (50) 3,520

S EE 3 B Foreign currency risk
AEBEEHRZZEERR - ZER B K The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
BEE AEEN6% (ZE—RHF: exposures arise from sales. Approximately 76% (2015: 76%) of

76% ) 35 E ASNEEET(E - T JEDAETT 8
EXREBENIREEE AR E.

the Group’s sales were denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currency of RMB of the operating units
making the sales.
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AEBEENBREERFZE=TE
TRB - AEEZBRBAAEREREE
HETRHZEP VARBEERE
FRFF o MO AN 6% 4 AR B 2R R IRROR
ek BAKEEE 2 RERRBYTE
X o

rEEHEeREE (BRASRRS
FEY NnERRBE=—EA ZRTHF
RRRER SEEEZ ERER A
HHERE FABEMNKE ZERE
fEWHIB EREE  EUKER AL
RB)ZEERBRRERZFUFELN
A EERRAERZETAZER
B

37. ¥ AEREERAEREE 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
SNERK (Z) Foreign currency risk (continued)
TRINTARIRE R  FEFTA Efth B 2 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
DNEZIERT AN & BB A FDE S the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$
ELEXSEAREYN cBEREDN exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
(HREBEERBEZANBERERHR Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
) e monetary assets and liabilities).
HhETE HRRBL AT
E#H(TK) FEzEe
Increase/
(decrease) in Effect on
foreign profit
currency rate before tax
ARBTT
% RMB’'000
—E-REF 2016
M ARMEETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5 (84,110)
MARBHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ (5) 84,110
—E—FRF 2015
WAREHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5 (46,722)
MAREHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ (5) 46,722
EERRE Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits with an
initial term of over three months, entrusted loans, structured
deposits, pledged deposits, available-for-sale investments,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits, and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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37. i AR EEBEEREE 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(#%&)
SERR (£Z)
HRASEERBEANZAEERITZE=
FETR G B BEERGR -EES
FREBIZEER RHGEFEE -NEE
MR AEEEETEESTRR -
REBEZ4% (ZF—RHF :30% ) &92%
ZE-hF:96%) ERERREES
AREAEBZEAREFPRAAEF
HRAEEZFERFHY AT REZRR
fRAE HEASEEZYRAXKE
B AL AEEAEZEEREEES
[ B2 o

ERASBEREEBURERRZERZER

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as 34% (2015: 30%) and
92% (2015: 96%) of the Group’s trade and bills receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively. As the major customers of
the Group are all world-famous brand companies, which have
established long-term business relationships with the Group,
concentrations of credit risk are well managed by the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

[B b2 — F E(LEUER - RN Wm kT credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed
194 7% o in note 19 to the financial statements.
RENE S E ks Liquidity risk

AEBBBBERAPESHE TAEE
ExRmrER R IAZEEESRT
AERemEE (PImEEERANER) 2
AMANRREEH 2 BARERE -

KIS R RS AT O MBR BE

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

:%% AEELBEBEYIHARB RN the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
T undiscounted payments, was as follows:
ZE-RF
2016
AEAE
REX  SWAEAR SRT-EA -ZRE WERL @it
6to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
AR®Tn  ARBTR ARETn ARETRT AR¥Tn AR%Tn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EREIRER Trade and bils payables 18,375 739,842 - - - 758,217
HbEMTE Other payables 330,041 - - - - 330,041
RRES Convertible bonds - 8,721 8,721 17443 3497271 3,532,156
HERARE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 374473 12,866 25,732 916,179 1,329,250
348,416 1,123,036 21,587 43175 4,413,450 5,949,664
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37. K EREEEERBEK

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REE S E MR Liquidity risk
—%-1f
2015
AMERZE
B2k ORAEA HRTZEA —EmE AENE it
6to
Less than less than 1102 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETE ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EREHRRR Trade and bills payables 35,117 642,818 - - - 678,535
HthEARE Other payables 215,817 - - - - 215,817
Ef—2BBALHE Amount due to a related party = 2,166 - - = 2,166
AARES Convertiole bonds - 8,169 8,169 16337 3201926 3,324,601
HERRE Interest-bearing bank borrowings = 593,185 1,040 2,081 74972 671,078
311,534 1,246,338 9,209 18,418 3,366,898 4,952,397
EAREE Capital management

AEBEAERZTZHBAERGEEN
SERBEREZRNNERRIFERL
T AXFHEEB R BRRFREAE
'fﬁo

AEBBEBEEERIEHEERARH
BEARB AEFRABRERER K
EEATEEFAEMBREIRMN ZRE Ak
REBEALBTHR -BE_T—X
F+-_A=+—HE-ZZE—RAF+=
A=+—HBLFE FHEEELAMNE
Z BRSEFLEE-

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015.
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37. KEKRERE B ERBXK 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
EXRER (42) Capital management (continued)
REBERBEAAGL X (BERFHE The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
PRCHBEARINESFRE) BEEERFH debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
BFEBRAERTER BEHERR includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade and bills
ZiR - B b BT SRIE R FE AT RIE A K payables, other payables and accruals, and an amount due
N—BHEBALTRE AREERAEF to a related party, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital
&4 - ﬁ*$@%ﬂ?ﬁ%%%ﬁ% 2 K& includes the liability component of convertible bonds and equity
RRAEEAAEGRER - NREHK attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at
p2 (= ;R N
AXARLROT the end of the reporting periods were as follows:
ZE-RF —E-hF
2016 2015
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,241,433 656,851
EREREREERE Trade and bills payables 758,217 678,535
HME FKIE R EETFIE  Other payables and accruals 738,806 572,806
JE ST RS A T 3E Amount due to a related party - 2,166
ReRRESEFEEY Cash and cash equivalents (2,105,184) (1,815,678)
B F 58 Net debt 633,272 94,680
A ES BEND Convertible bonds, the liability component 3,410,145 3,117,009
RAGHE ANEGER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 15,092,944 13,074,120
AR Adjusted capital 18,503,089 16,191,129
BARREBERHFE Capital and net debt 19,136,361 16,285,809
EXRBELE Gearing ratio 3% 1%
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38. EEH A
ERARERHARER 2 RTER

2 ¥
29

EDRIEHR M B RENME14 25K

39. A

(a)

(b)

AREERBNATHESEHELH
HERETHAZMERKSE

RZF-—A"F+ZA=+—H XK
SERBETIBHELERERN

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the Group’s bank loans, which are secured by the
assets of the Group, are included in notes 14, 25 and 29,
respectively, to the financial statements.

39. COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments
The Group leases certain of its office premises and plant
under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

ZARKEHEESWT : operating leases as follows:
ZE-RF —T-REF
2016 2015
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F A Within one year 95,430 81,293
E_EZERF In the second to fifth years, inclusive
(BREERME) 269,761 178,760
hF#& After five years 143,783 152,166
508,974 412,219
BRI (b) Capital commitments
—E-REF —TRF
2016 2015
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRI @B RBE: Contracted, but not provided for:
BEME KEREE Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 325,766 329,813
g B T 4 Acquisition of land use right 109,244 -
435,010 329,813

FR M B £ @2 R A BR A B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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39. KB (&)

(c)

AFEBBMIEEH

RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—
H A5EBHER —FALE
& [A208,046,0003 7T # BL 4
AR #¥1,323,531,0007T * A
5,800,000,000 8 B3 EX 4 A R #&
298,265,0007T * bA14,000,0008k
T EL A A R #103,260,0007T
LA22,866,000% 1= % BR#R BX 49 A
R #156,944,0007T By i HASNE A
HMEPE- R T —NF AEEH
RBEELBBEE-

39. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c)

Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had commitments
to sell forward foreign exchange contracts of
US$208,046,000 for approximately RMB1,323,531,000,
JPY5,800,000,000 for approximately RMB298,265,000,
EUR14,000,000 for approximately RMB103,260,000,
CHF22,866,000 for approximately RMB156,944,000
within one year. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had
no such commitment.

40. LAREE 40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
R-_ZTE—RFE+-_A=+—8 K£&H As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no significant
WHESERIABE contingent liabilities.

M. BERALIRS 41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a XEEBXEEBASZHE (a) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group
—E-RF —E-hF
2016 2015
AR® TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EELSAEEASME  Remuneration of directors and
senior management 24,663 23,904

(b)

BHRESAERTRABHEZ
E—TH BN BRI ES

BEHEBALTZRS
) —AMEXS
BE-_ZT—RFRA-TRX

HOEEH#E ~EER=E
RERMEEBR LG ([HIM
B WBURTBEZH
BETIGEOYE BReY
BE# AR #134,048,0007T

(b)

Further details of the directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Transactions with related parties

(i) One-off transaction
Pursuant to Sale and Purchase Agreement dated
26 May 2016, the Group acquired property
situated at Wangjiang County, Anhui Province,
People’s Republic of China from Ningbo Shenzhou
Properties Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”)* at
an aggregate cash consideration of approximately
RMB134,048,000.
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1. EBBALTRE (&)
(b) HEABALTZXRZ (£&)

(i)

HEFHA LT ZIFER

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)
(i) Continuing transactions with related parties

B 7 B 765 3 35 L b 3 05 mE At In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
ZRGIN REBRER in these financial statements, the Group had the
ERREEE A T#ETT NIIERR following material transactions with related parties
Z during the year:
ZB-ARE —T-REF
2016 2015
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEMNEXERE Lease of apparel production properties
REEEDZE from Shenzhou Properties 8,989 9,284
B85 R OM HE 3B & 4 Processing services provided
BRAA by Ningbo Shenzhou Shitong
(MMt ]) Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou
REZ IR Shitong”)* 10,528 13,589
MAEEERBER  Purchase of packaging materials from
BRAR ([ER Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
BERAF]) Materials Company Limited
HKEREYR (“Huaxi Packaging Company”)** 48,377 46,438
BOR S F R Printing service provided by
ENTERR 75 Ningbo Avery*** 59,371 31,105
* RN & 3 R BROM 38 | AR * Shenzhou Properties and Shenzhou Shitong are
NE—RBEITESHLH - controlled by one of the Company’s executive
directors.
x> EFRERARBAARAT o Huaxi Packaging Company is controlled by the
— BT EZ 2 HREE relatives of one of the Company’s executive
ffill o directors.
e RS R AN E 2 B ***  Ningbo Avery is an associate of the Group and
AR REREE 2 B is considered to be a related party of the Group.
AT ZRZHAMWRERK L This transaction does not constitute continuing
MRAFAAZERENE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
BREABIS- the Listing Rules.
MABALZHKEREET The purchase and lease from the related parties
BESEARMETERR were made according to the published prices and
Rz ARERS R IGH#E conditions offered by the related companies to their

7

major customers.
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41. A TR F (&) 41.

(c) EEEAEtALTZREELEER
AREBEERRY A LB TR

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Outstanding balance with related parties
The Group had the following balance with its related

parties:
—E-RF —E-hF
2016 2015
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
JE W B8 Bk A = 53R Amount due from related parties
—HEZ5H# : — trade related:
RMNE Shenzhou Properties 70 559
2% A Ningbo Avery 756 —
826 559
FE A REBSE AN - 5IE Amount due to a related party
—HE 55 — trade related:
ERAEmA Huaxi Packaging Company - 2,166

42, KD B B MR R R

RRBRAREHR 2 M BEARREK 25

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

BESN AT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-REF —E—RF
2016 2015
AR¥Tx ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W BE kFEE Property, plant and equipment 6 18
RHTB AR ZEE Investments in subsidiaries 883,681 648,422
BTWBARIZENR Loans to subsidiaries 4,451,989 5,408,283
ERBEELE Total non-current assets 5,335,676 6,056,723
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
JEW AR R Trade receivables 149,101 92,481
b e AR R Other receivables 3,019,144 2,069,645
BLTHBARIZER Loans to subsidiaries 1,037,814 583,493
JFE UL B B A B R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 267,961 88,538
ReMBASEEY Cash and cash equivalents 122,631 231,968
BRBEE Total current assets 4,596,651 3,066,125
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42, KPR EAR R T (#) 42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

—E—RE —E—RF
2016 2015
ARE TR AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
H At & 5 5008 K FE 5T 5RIE Other payables and accruals 261 823
FRRITEER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 357,800 586,460
AN NGI e Amounts due to subsidiaries 3,781,988 2,746,797
e TIE Tax payable 8,262 (12,112)
BREaE Total current liabilities 4,148,311 3,321,968
FREBEE(AHF) NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 448,340 (255,843)
HEERRBAES TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 5,784,016 5,800,880
kRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Al (& 5 Convertible bonds 3,410,145 3,117,009
BIERBAE Total non-current liabilities 3,410,145 3,117,009
FEE Net assets 2,373,871 2,683,871
R EQUITY
&N Share capital 142,105 142,105
i () Reserves (note) 2,231,766 2,541,766
B Total equity 2,373,871 2,683,871
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42,

43.

AATHBERRE (&)

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Bt 5 Note:
RARMFERENT : A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
TRRESZ EX
RGEER RAZH BEHH HHGRE RBRE REEN BIERHRE @t
Equity
Share component Exchange Proposed
premium Capital of convertible Hedging fluctuation Retained final
account surplus bonds reserve reserve profits dividend Total
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR  ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“2-15-f-AH At 1 January 2015 1,471,742 727,430 197,140 9,363 (484,711) 89,986 1,103,671 3,114,621
FEAERGEE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - (9,363) 105,744 434,435 - 530,816
ER-E-NERBRE Final 2014 dividend declared = = = = = - (1,103671)  (1,103671)
BE-ZT-RERERE Proposed final 2015 dividend (810,094) - - - - (444,034) 1,254,128 -
WZZ—RFF-A=1—H At31 December 2015 661,648 727,430 197,140 - (378,967) 80,387 1,254,128 2,541,766
FEZENRERE Total comprehensive
income for the year = = = = 72,253 871,875 = 944,128
ER-E-RERHMRE  Final 2015 dividend declared - - - - - (1254128  (1,254,128)
BEZZ-ERBRE Proposed final 2016 dividend (607,187) - - - - (894,500) 1,501,687 -
R=Z-R"E+-A=1t—H At31December 2016 54,461 727,430 197,140 - (306,714) 57,762 1,501,687 2,231,766

RBEMBRR

EXgRN_T—tF=_A-t+tHHtE
I A T B K

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2017.
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Financial Information Summary
(BRBAETHEIIN FTESEUARETTIR) (Amounts expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

AREBRBERTBRRAEFELERRIAETR A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
EMBRFEZEAMEBEAREE BEK minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
LERRERBEEFHINDOT prepared on the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

BE+-A=+-HLFE R+=-A=+—-8H
For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December
ZE-RE —E-—hHE ZE-MFE —T-=F =%
2016 2015 2014 20183 2012
ARBTR ARETT AR%TE ARETRT AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

E Results
KA Revenue 15,099,076 12,639,332 11,131,532 10,047,217 8,937,578
BB KA Finance costs (119,834) (98,733) (46,442) (10,010) (29,987)
B 5% A AR Profit before tax 3,642,947 2,886,901 2,543,347 2,201,209 2,005,465
FEHHAX Income tax expense (695,267) (532,059) (476,717) (397,297) (383,985)
FEFHE Profit for the year 2,947,680 2,354,842 2,066,630 1,803,912 1,621,480
IATAT G : Attributable to:
ISUNEIEFEWN Owners of the parent 2,947,673 2,354,664 2,065,867 1,802,989 1,620,158
FEPE 1 HE o Non-controlling interests 7 178 763 923 1,322

2,947,680 2,354,842 2,066,630 1,803,912 1,621,480
EE-BER Assets, Liabilities and

FEFMEER Non-controlling
Interests

BWEE Total assets 21,816,062 18,361,614 15,943,028 11,317,274 9,895,409
BaE Total liabilities (6,506,460) (5,271,778)  (4,131,702) (985,617)  (1,773,275)
FEPE I 1 e 2n Non-controlling interests (216,658) (15,716) (15,757) (15,393) (34,764)

15,092,944 13,074,120 11,795,669 10,316,264 8,087,370

Wit: AEBEZ-_Z—HAFE-_Z—F+=-H Note: The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended

=+—HIEMBEFESF2HEEEE UK 31 December 2015 and 2016 and the consolidated assets, liabilities
RZTZ—RAFR=ZT—R"F+-A=+—H and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31 December 2015
ZIEREEE - BB REEHI M B BT 7% R and 2016 are those set out on pages 126 to 235 of the financial
KEFE126E8 2 F2358FTEE © statements.
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